(3 thurrock.gov.uk

Thurrock - An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage
and excited by its diverse opportunities and future

Cabinet

The meeting will be held at 7.00 pm on 12 February 2020

Committee Rooms 2 & 3, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 6SL

Membership:

Councillors Robert Gledhill (Chair), Shane Hebb (Deputy Chair), Mark Coxshall,
Deborah Huelin, Andrew Jefferies, Barry Johnson, Susan Little, Ben Maney,
Allen Mayes and Aaron Watkins

Agenda
Open to Public and Press
Page
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Minutes 5-18
To approve as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on 15
January 2020.

3 Items of Urgent Business

To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declaration of Interests

5 Statements by the Leader

6 Briefings on Policy, Budget and Other Issues

7 Petitions submitted by Members of the Public

8 Questions from Non-Executive Members



9 Matters Referred to the Cabinet for Consideration by an
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

10 Incorporation of South East Local Enterprise Partnership
11 Procurement of Transport and Highway Contracts

12 A13 East Facing Access Scheme Update (Decision: 110523)
13 Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

14 Draft 2020/21 Budget Proposals & Medium Term Financial
Strategy Update

15 Capital Strategy 2020/21

16 Housing Revenue Account - Business Plan and Budgets
2020/21

17 Housing Development Options List (Decision: 110524)

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:

19 - 66

67-72

73 - 104

105 - 122

123 - 158

159 - 186

187 - 198

199 - 228

Please contact Lucy Tricker, Democratic Services Officer by sending an email to

Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Agenda published on: 4 February 2020



Information for members of the public and councillors

Access to Information and Meetings

Members of the public can attend all meetings of the council and its committees and
have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days
before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.

Recording of meetings

This meeting may be recorded for transmission and publication on the Council's
website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
to be recorded.

Members of the public not wishing any speech or address to be recorded for
publication to the Internet should contact Democratic Services to discuss any
concerns.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at
council and committee meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local
communities.

If you wish to film or photograph the proceedings of a meeting and have any special
requirements or are intending to bring in large equipment please contact the
Communications Team at CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk before the
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will then be consulted and their agreement sought
to any specific request made.

Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar
devices to use social media, make recordings or take photographs these devices
must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or
committee.

The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has
been discussed prior to the meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not
disrupt proceedings.

The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording
and use of social media if any of these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting
proceedings at the meeting.

Page 1


mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
mailto:CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk

Thurrock Council Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.

e You should connect to TBC-CIVIC
e Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.

e A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Evacuation Procedures

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.

How to view this agenda on a tablet device

. You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry
w Playbook with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged,
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.

To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this
meeting, Councillors should:

e Access the modern.gov app
e Enter your username and password

Page 2


https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence

Helpful Reminders for Members

e Is your register of interests up to date?
o In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests?
e Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly?

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?

¢ What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet,
Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or

e If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is
before you for single member decision?

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting
. relate to; or
o likely to affect
any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests?

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:

. your spouse or civil partner’s
e  aperson you are living with as husband/ wife
e aperson you are living with as if you were civil partners

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.

A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of H
: the Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests.

What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? — this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so :
: significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest. H

If the interest is not already in the register you must
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring
Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a :
¢ pending notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer : You may participate and vote in the usual
: of the interest for inclusion in the register way but you should seek advice on
Beeeeeoseneoseerssentenseessosersosesssssssessssssosesssseersssetesssessosessoseerssstesssersosertossrsssstessstrsasertes B Predetermination and Bias from the

........................................................ Monitoring officer_

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:

- Not participate or participate further in any discussion of
the matter at a meeting;

- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the
meeting; and

- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted
upon

If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further
steps




thurrock.gov.uk

Our Vision and Priorities for Thurrock

An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage and excited by
its diverse opportunities and future.

1. People — a borough where people of all ages are proud to work and play, live and
stay

e High quality, consistent and accessible public services which are right first time

e Build on our partnerships with statutory, community, voluntary and faith groups
to work together to improve health and wellbeing

e Communities are empowered to make choices and be safer and stronger
together

2. Place — a heritage-rich borough which is ambitious for its future
e Roads, houses and public spaces that connect people and places
e Clean environments that everyone has reason to take pride in

e Fewer public buildings with better services

3. Prosperity — a borough which enables everyone to achieve their aspirations

e Attractive opportunities for businesses and investors to enhance the local
economy

e Vocational and academic education, skills and job opportunities for all

e Commercial, entrepreneurial and connected public services

Page 4



Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the Meeting of the Cabinet held on 15 January 2020 at 7.00 pm

The deadline for call-ins is Monday 27 January 2020 at 5.00pm

Present: Councillors Robert Gledhill (Chair), Shane Hebb (Deputy Chair),
James Halden, Deborah Huelin, Barry Johnson, Susan Little,
Ben Maney and Aaron Watkins

Apologies: Councillors Mark Coxshall

In attendance: Lyn Carpenter, Chief Executive
Sean Clark, Director of Finance, Governance and Property
Tim Hallam, Acting Head of Legal, Assistant Director Law and
Governance and Monitoring Officer
Roger Harris, Corporate Director of Adults, Housing and
Health/Interim Director of Children's Services
Andrew Millard, Interim Director of Place
Lucy Tricker, Democratic Services Officer

Before the start of the Meeting, all present were advised that the meeting may be
filmed and was being recorded, with the audio recording to be made available on
the Council’s website.

49, Minutes

The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 9 October 2019 were approved
as a correct record.

50. Items of Urgent Business
There were no items of urgent business.

51. Declaration of Interests
There were no interests declared.

52. Statements by the Leader
The Leader began his statement by wishing everybody a Happy New Year
and discussing a major power outage that had occurred on New Year’s Eve at
Collins House, during which all 38 residents had to be temporarily relocated.
He stated that all residents had been moved out and back in quickly once the
power had been restored. He thanked the residents, families, and staff who
had managed the incident, and felt that everybody, particularly residents, had

kept their spirits high during the difficult time. He also discussed a second
major incident that had occurred on 6 January during which 415,000 litres of

Page 5



sulphuric acid had been spilled. He thanked the emergency services who had
attended, and had received minor injuries, and thanked every officer and
department who had worked throughout the night to manage the incident. He
stated that the gas cloud had dispersed naturally, but schools had been
closed quickly to minimise the impact, and again thanked everyone for their
management of the situation.

The Leader moved onto discussing two recent inspections that had occurred
of Thurrock’s vulnerable people services which had come back positive, as
well as the recent OFSTED inspection, during which Thurrock had received a
‘good’ rating. He elaborated that Thurrock had narrowly missed the
‘outstanding’ rating, but this was due to timing. He thanked everyone for the
effort they had put in to make the inspection a success, and for their
continued hard work throughout the year. He stated that Thurrock’s care
homes had also recently had an inspection by the Care Quality Commission,
and these services had also been rated ‘good’, which was an improvement on
the previous inspection. He clarified that these services were also on the path
towards an ‘excellent’ rating, and felt that many people had worked hard for
this.

The Leader then mentioned the recent Keep Britain Tidy (KBT) scores that
had improved since the last inspection, and mentioned that Thurrock had
previously inspected themselves, but had moved this responsibility to Keep
Britain Tidy, as they were independent. He felt that although there was still
room for improvement, the directorate was moving forward and had numerous
plans in place to improve the KBT scores. He highlighted that the
Environmental Enforcement team had recently been shortlisted for an award
by KBT, and wished officers good luck. He clarified that last year the
environment directorate had doubled their street cleaning capacity, installed
600 new bins, 4 new road sweepers, and had improved the old road
sweepers, which had made an impact across the borough. He also
highlighted that the Civil Enforcement team had received devolved powers
from the police, so they could now enforce certain laws such as underage
possession of alcohol. He stated that additionally Thurrock had received the
powers of injunction to remove illegal encampments, which was already being
used where necessary, around the borough.

The Leader then talked about housing and the work Thurrock was doing to
tackle rogue landlords and the successes that had been seen in court. He
described how a review of Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO) had been
undertaken, during which 100 HMOs had been visited, 7 of which were found
to be unlicensed, which Thurrock were taking action against. He stated that
Thurrock had £27,000 to tackle criminal landlords who ran unlicensed care
homes for vulnerable people, and this work was being discussed around
Essex and London. He added that if residents knew of any potentially
unlicensed HMOs, they could contact the council who would investigate.

The Leader then discussed £36million town centre funding, which had been

granted for the improvement of Grays and Tilbury, and stated that Grays had
also been one of only 50 towns nominated for the Future High Street fund,

Page 6



53.

54.

55.

which was a share of £1billion to attract businesses and people to the area.
He added that £200million of private investment had also been granted to
improve Grays town centre and the Thames, which showed that private
companies were willing to invest in the town.

The Leader highlighted the work of the Trading Standards team, which had
seized 120,000 counterfeit cigarettes worth £170,000 from 120 shops across
the borough, with the help of sniffer dogs. He stated that one shop had been
fined £13,000 for the possession of 17,000 illegal cigarettes in his shop, and
although the Leader felt there was more to do, he felt glad that the number of
prosecutions had risen since 2016. He added that the Trading Standards
team were working closely with the police, and were now going after the
suppliers of illegal cigarettes, as well as the shops that sold them.

The Leader detailed the work of the Civil Enforcement team as part of his
statement and outlined a recent success whereby Civil Enforcement officers
had found a marijuana growth site whilst tackling a fly-tip in East Tilbury. He
felt that this showed the teams were not just focussed on one issue, but were
working collaboratively. He stated that 15 Fixed Penalty Notices had been
issued for fly-tipping, and 15 had been issued for anti-social behaviour, as
well as 1 arrest for possession of drugs. He added that 10 community
protection notices had issued for possession of marijuana, and 30 had been
issued for anti-social behaviour including the use and disposal of nitrous oxide
canisters. He added that these schemes would be extended in the new
municipal year, and would have a wider scope of powers.

The Leader summarised and finished with the Clean It, Cut It, Fill It update
and stated that since April 2019 156 potholes had been filled, 99% within
target timeframes; 927 fly-tips had been cleared; 2720 tonnes of waste had
been removed; 3213 Fixed Penalty Notices issued; and 3 illegal
encampments moved. He added that 208 £400 fines had been issued for fly-
tipping, and 268 people had been prosecuted for failure to pay fines.

Briefings on Policy, Budget and Other Issues

Councillor Watkins stated that work was being undertaken to install new air
quality monitoring stations around the borough, to provide data for the new Air
Quality Strategy, and help to tackle the problem of air pollution. He added that
the environment team was working with Public Health on the air quality
monitoring, and detailed findings would be reported back to the Cleaner,
Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny Committee in February, which
would outline the proposed changes and upcoming work. He added that as
there had been very strong winds over the weekend 11 trees had fallen, but in
line with the Tree Strategy, these would be replaced.

Petitions submitted by Members of the Public
No petitions had been received by members of the public.

Questions from Non-Executive Members

Page 7



56.

57.

58.

The Leader advised that one question had been received from Councillor
Piccolo regarding Item 17: Acquisition of Land, and this would be discussed
during that item.

Matters Referred to the Cabinet for Consideration by an Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

There were no matters referred to Cabinet for consideration by an overview
and scrutiny committee.

Lower Thames Crossing Task Force Update

The Leader stated that this report was for noting as Councillor Coxshall and
Councillor Rice had been unable to attend the meeting. He stated that a
number of Task Force meetings had taken place, and Thurrock had requested
lots of data from Highways England. He felt that the meeting that had
occurred in December discussing cut and cover had been particularly useful.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:
1. Noted the work of the Lower Thames Crossing Task Force

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

Quarter 2 Financial Report

Councillor Hebb introduced the report and highlighted the three main points.
He stated that the first point was the financial health of Thurrock was strong,
as there was currently a surplus. He stated that the second point was
Thurrock’s handling of the economy which meant that a modest 1.49% rise in
Council Tax was needed to maintain services such as weekly bin collections
and the timely fixing of potholes. He commented that the third main point was
Thurrock’s commitment to delivering funding for new police officers in town
centres and communities across the borough.

He stated that this report looked back at the financial health of Thurrock since
the last budget had been agreed in February 2019, and there were currently
pressures within some services, although the budget as a whole was forecast
to be balanced. He stated that one of the main directorates that was
experiencing financial pressure was adult social care, as pressures were
external and outside of the councils control. He commented that this was due
to a few high-need, high-cost placements, which could push the budget
envelope. He added that this was the first time in many years that the service
would experience overspend, and the budget was being handled well despite
external pressures, and the fragility of the domiciliary care market. He felt that
the most important factor for adult social care was that good quality care was
provided, and the financial budget had to be a secondary concern.

Page 8



Councillor Hebb then moved onto discussing the pressures within children’s
social care, which although was overspending by £900,000 had reduced their
overspend compared to previous years. He felt that this directorate was very
fluid, as a few high-need placements could again push the cost envelope. He
congratulated the team on their ‘good’ OFSTED rating, and felt that the
investment in the system highlighted in the report would help to sustain this
level of achievement and help to achieve the ‘excellent’ rating in the future. He
added that lots of investment had also occurred in the environment
directorate, such as for street cleaning and parks, but was still under-budget
and thanked the team in the hard work dealing with market pressures.
Councillor Hebb added that due to the Homelessness Reduction Act,
Thurrock had seen an increase in the number of people presenting as
homeless, but Thurrock were working hard to tackle this in line with the
central government strategy.

Councillor Hebb stated that Thurrock were predicting a surplus for the next
three years, and if this occurred, it would mean a balanced budget for a total
of seven years. He elaborated that this was due to reform of services, as well
as investment, and this led to the ability for a one-off spend on more policing.
He added that corporate projects totalled £112million spending for new
infrastructure and projects that were outlined in appendix 2 of the report, and
included the regeneration of Purfleet and Grays, A13 east-facing slips, 21st
century care homes and new schools. He added that he had met with the
Leaders of opposition parties to discuss surplus spending and they had
agreed on the maijority of ideas, findings of which would be published next
month. He added that to facilitate necessary elderly care, the report proposed
a 2% rise for the adult social care precept. He summarised and stated that
pressures were being managed to ensure the budget was balanced and there
was a surplus to spend on projects such as additional police officers. He
clarified that the 1.49% council tax rise would be ring-fenced spending. He
finally thanked those departments which were under-budget as these helped
to support the councils wider goals.

Councillor Halden felt that it was good to see a balanced budget and surplus,
and stated that the proposed council tax rise was still below inflation. He also
stated that there had been no council tax rise in 2018/19 and no maximum
increase the year before, which only 5% of councils had managed to achieve.
He highlighted the pressures within the Dedicated Schools Grant, and stated
that this was because there had been a 35% increase in requests for
Education, Health and Care Plans, and a 24% increase in requests for
placements in special schools. He felt that although there were many
pressures, the team were trying hard to reduce the debt. He added that all
special schools across the borough had maintained their ‘excellent’ OFSTED
rating even with new, tougher criteria. Councillor Halden added that there
were plans to build a new special school called Treetops 2, as well as the
infrastructure to support this in Blackshots. He stated that 2020 was the ‘“Year
of Inclusion’ and this scheme was being launched soon, which would involve
more investment in schools, to ensure more rigorous standards and more
timely processes for requests. He stated that statutory guidance for
processing education requests was 20 weeks, but Thurrock wanted to cut this

Page 9



in half to stem late crisis referrals and build a more responsive system.

Councillor Watkins thanked the Deputy Leader for his report, and stated that
the environment directorate had increased their revenue compared to the last
administration, which he felt had been understaffed and underfunded. He
commented that the KBT scores needed to be improved, but the team had
worked hard for worthwhile investment, such as new street sweepers. He
added that officers were being taught about KBT scoring systems, so they
could self-monitor as part of the ‘Think 4 5’ Strategy. Councillor Watkins
summarised and stated that there were overall market pressures in waste
disposal that the team were aware of and working to mitigate, as well as
working closely with partners and the Waste Management Working Group to
look at the future of waste in Thurrock.

The Leader welcomed the report and the ring-fencing of the proposed council
tax increase for the three strategic priorities, as many residents often asked
where their council tax went, and now Councillors could give a clear answer.
He was also pleased to hear that there was alignment between the Cabinet
and opposition leaders, as they had many of the same ideas and could work
together for maximum impact. He stated that areas of overspend were being
worked on, but this could prove difficult in pressure-led directorates. He
summarised and felt that Thurrock were in a good position compared to other
councils, and felt it was good to see tax-payers money being used to invest in
services across the borough.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Noted the revenue forecast outturn position for 2019/20 and that
further mitigation is required to outturn within the agreed budget
envelope

2. Noted the proposed updates to the Medium Term Financial Strategy

3. Noted that the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy forms the
basis of the 2020/21 Budget and asks Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee to comment and make recommendations back to Cabinet in
February ahead of Full Council

4. Following Cabinet’s decision in December 2018 to allocate funding for
additional police officers that the Director of Environment and
Highways, in consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance,
Governance and Property and the Leader, be authorised to enter into a
four year contract (with the right to renew for another 4 years)

5. Noted the results of Treasury Management activities undertaken in the
first half of 2019/20

6. Noted the capital forecast outturn position and the overall position on
the approved proposal.

Page 10



59.

60.

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

Housing Development Process

Councillor Johnson introduced the report and stated it was important as it
ensured the delivery of housing programmes, both internally and through
Thurrock Regeneration Limited. He clarified that this report did not discuss
specific sites but outlined the proposed process and criteria for choosing sites.
He stated that this report had gone to the Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee who had approved the recommendations, and wished to see an
update report in six months’ time to be able to monitor progress. He explained
that this report set out robust criteria for housing development sites, whilst still
allowing projects to be delivered at pace. He described how careful
consideration would be used for all sites to ensure that no unsuitable sites
would be brought forward in the future, and focus would be put on Ward
Councillors and residents views. He clarified that if a site was added to the
long-list, this did not mean it had received planning endorsement, as the new
process meant the site would have to go to scrutiny, then Cabinet, before
finally arriving at Planning Committee. He summarised and stated that this
would be an annual process, with scrutiny committees and Ward Councillors
seeing sites first, for a smoother and more transparent process.

Councillor Halden thanked the Portfolio Holder for his report and thanked him
for his support in the Head Start Housing Scheme, which ensured young
people leaving care had somewhere suitable to live. The Leader added that
he felt it was good to see earlier engagement and consultation with Ward
Councillors and residents as it would improve the process for land release,
and ensure that sites were worth selling before planning approval was sought.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Approved the proposed process and criteria by which Council owned
sites are selected for redevelopment for residential purposes.

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

Homelessness Prevention and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025

Councillor Johnson introduced the report and stated that it strengthened the
strategy, which had last been updated in 2015. He commented that
homelessness was a concern across the country, and the new Homelessness
Prevention Act put the onus on councils to tackle homelessness within their
borough. He stated that the Act had increased the number of households
eligible for homelessness assistance, and this had increased the
homelessness figures across Thurrock. He stated that this report had been
made in consultation with a number of other directorates such as education,
and had consulted with residents who had had lived experience of

Page 11



61.

homelessness. He stated that a Homelessness Partnership Board had been
put in place to monitor the progress of the strategy, and described how the
strategy increased access to services for armed forces veterans and those
people who were escaping domestic violence. Councillor Johnson highlighted
that the report increased accessibility to temporary accommodation, winter
night shelters and council housing for residents faced with homelessness.

The Leader felt this report was very important as many people experienced
homelessness through no fault of their own, and felt glad to see the scope of
the strategy increasing. He was glad to see that Thurrock would not send
homeless people and families to other boroughs unless necessary, as this
further disrupted people’s lives, such as their employment or access to
schools. The Leader stated he was pleased to see increased access to
services for veterans. Councillor Hebb echoed the Leader’s sentiments and
supported the strategy as he felt it tried to avoid crises before they appeared.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Approved the implementation of the draft Homelessness Prevention
and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-25

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

School Protocol to Reduce Serious Youth Violence

Councillor Halden introduced the report and felt that young people needed to
feel safe in schools to be able to receive the best education. He outlined the
changes in the nature of crime over recent years, and felt that gang violence
could affect every area of society. He highlighted that gangs tended to prey on
vulnerable adults and could use their houses as gang bases, as well as being
aware of the legislation regarding curfews and police presence to evade
arrest. He described how the Youth Offending Service had been expanded
and now included officers with expertise in gang violence, and this had
reduced youth reoffending rates to 27%, which was 10% lower than the
national average. Councillor Halden also highlighted that young people not in
education, employment or training was also only 1.5%, which was half of the
national average. He added that Thurrock had granted £1million to Essex
Police to help them tackle gangs across the borough, which had led to 24
injunctions and 16 prosecutions of youth gang members.

Councillor Halden then outlined the proposed Protocol and stated that it gave
schools the opportunity to designate specific staff members with the powers of
stop and search, for both children and adults on school premises. He clarified
that the proposed protocol was clear on the policy and its uses, as well as
being responsible and robust. He added that the Protocol brought together the
Youth Offending Service, as well as pastoral care such as mental health
workers, careers advisors and the drug/alcohol teams. He stated that this
would tackle the root causes of gangs in the borough. He added that the

Page 12



62.

report would produce a proactive network, which would work both in and out
of schools throughout the year to help vulnerable children and young adults,
and would provide a wrap-around service. He stated that this report would
increase the relationship with schools as it expanded the role of the mental
health teams and Youth Offending Service, as well as working to avoid
exclusions and expulsions.

Councillor Hebb stated that he felt this was a good initiative as it increased
collaboration between teams and would support vulnerable children. He
asked if there was a role for the finance team and debt management officers.
Councillor Halden replied that the debt management team could be brought
into the Protocol, as they could work with young adults on the Life’s Ladder
initiative and teach young people how to avoid debt and enter into schemes
such as the Help to Buy. He stated that this could provide young people with
financial stability and mobility, which would reduce the pull of gang
membership. The Leader stated that it was good to see partnerships on
projects such as these, as collaboration became standard practice across the
council. He stated that this report would provide the appropriate level of action
when required, and would not become mass stop and search policies as was
seen in some American schools.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Approved the Schools Protocol to reduce vulnerability factors and
safeguard children and young people from serious youth violence.

2. Continued to invest and identify positive activity programmes to
provide alternative pathways for vulnerable children and young people.

3. Continued to endorse the cross directorate working that is in place to
support our wider community safety ambitions for children and young
people.

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

CCTV Identification Policy

The Leader introduced the report and stated that this report focussed on the
CCTV strategy as a whole, as well as the identification of criminals through
their photos on the internet, which many other councils already do. He
mentioned that this policy would have numerous benefits as it meant that
criminals could be caught quicker, as the police requested Thurrock’'s CCTV
footage very regularly. He stated that the London Borough of Barking and
Dagenham, and the London Borough of Havering currently used the same
system to catch fly-tippers and had a ‘most wanted’ page on their website. He
stated that photographs of criminals would appear both on the council’s
website and around the Civic Offices to ensure criminals are successfully
caught, and anti-social behaviour could be prevented across the borough. He

Page 13



63.

stated that overview and scrutiny had agreed the recommendations and
requested an update report in six months’ time to monitor progress and make
comments. He stated that this would become recommendation 1.4 of the
Cabinet recommendations.

Councillor Little asked if the policy would be used for both town centres and
rural areas, as she felt there was often large fly-tips on the fens. The Leader
replied that the policy would be used across the entire borough, and the
photos of criminals would be easily accessible on the council’s website. He
described how the policy outlined the use of both covert and overt CCTV, and
the team were becoming more adept at recognising hotspots when they
appeared and catching culprits. Councillor Watkins added that this policy also
used inter-departmental working, which he felt was good to see. He outlined
changes to the Household Waste and Recycling Centres that would reduce fly
tipping across the borough, and asked residents to check waste carrier
licences when they used such companies to remove their waste. He also
detailed a new zero-tolerance policy on fly-tippers bringing their waste from
other boroughs, and stated that signs had been erected at the entrances to
the borough outlining this scheme.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Approved the implementation of a Public Identification CCTV policy
for enforcement purposes.

2. Approved the use of images in local publications and on the internet
including the council’s website.

3. Approved that the Community Safety Partnership monitor the
implementation of this policy.

4. Approved the Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview and Scrutiny
Committee receive an update report on the Policy in six months’ time to
monitor the progress made.

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

Mid-Year Corporate Performance Report 2019/20

Councillor Huelin introduced the report and stated that 74% of Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) were now on target, compared to less than
50% under the last administration. She highlighted that 50% of KPIs had also
improved since last year, such as the number of apprentices, number of
potholes filled in on time, and percentage of bins collected on time. She stated
that the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee were particularly happy
with the success of the KPI relating to the percentage of tenant satisfaction,
and the introduction of the ‘route to green’, which focussed on improvements
that needed to be made. Councillor Huelin drew Cabinet’s attention to page
145 of the agenda and felt that there had been a good direction of travel for

Page 14



64.

the maijority of KPIs, and felt pleased to see the spreadsheet was mostly
green.

Councillor Watkins felt this was a good report, and elaborated on the
environment directorates KPIs. He described the KPI relating to bins collected
on the correct day as he felt pleased that this target had been met every
month, barring February 2019 when the target had been missed by a marginal
percentage. He stated that this service had been improved by the introduction
of Bartec, which reported bins missed to the contact centre and the relevant
collection trucks, so bins could be picked up. He added that the KBT scores
had improved and thanked the department for their work on the ‘Think 4 &’
Strategy which set the standard for cleanliness across the borough. Councillor
Watkins then moved onto discussing the environment directorates missed
KPls, such as the percentage of waste recycled. He commented that this was
a challenging KPI, but lots of work had been done on its improvement, such
as the introduction of the Waste Management Working Group who were
currently undertaking resident consultation. He stated that a pilot scheme had
also recently been completed to improve recycling in flats, which the estates
management team had found successful, and had rolled out across their sites
earlier than anticipated. He also highlighted a schools outreach programme
that was currently underway to teach children about recycling, as well as
highlighting changes to the Household Waste and Recycling Centres, which
would be introduced in March.

Councillor Little elaborated on social care’s two missed targets, but stated
these were out of her control, as they were due to the death of residents. She
stated that this report held the council to account and felt that improvements
had been made across the directorates. She also felt pleased to see that all
children’s social care KPIs had met their target. The Leader outlined which
KPlIs his directorate had missed, including the non-payment of Fixed Penalty
Notices for littering, although he stated that these had started to increase. He
mentioned that the new CCTV Identification Policy would help enforcement
officers tackle the problem of criminals providing false names and addresses,
which would increase the number of Fixed Penalty Notices and prosecutions.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Noted and commented upon the performance of the key corporate
performance indicators in particular those areas which are off target.

2. Identified any areas which require additional consideration.

Acquisition of Land

The Leader highlighted that there were two exempt appendices to the report,
but felt that as long as these were not directly discussed, the meeting could
remain open.

There had been one question submitted by a non-Executive Member.

Page 15



Councillor Piccolo asked the following question to Councillor Coxshall, relating
to Item 17 on the agenda: Can the Portfolio Holder outline how his new plans
for Stanford le Hope station will benefit residents? As Councillor Coxshall was
unable to attend, the Leader replied that the Stanford Le Hope Transport Hub
was a significant project to deliver much improved station facilities in Stanford
Le Hope for residents, businesses and commuters. He added that the original
design of the scheme with a cantilevered deck proved to be an expensive
design, requiring complex engineering solutions to be delivered all of which
pushed the scheme much beyond the existing budget available. He clarified
that consequently the scheme had been under review to identify alternative
design and construction options that could deliver a high quality design within
the available budget. The Leader stated that the options included identifying
additional land that could, if secured, result in much improved public realm
outside of the station and a dedicated bus turnaround/waiting area on land in
the vicinity as well as much needed additional parking provision.

Councillor Piccolo was invited to ask a supplementary question and asked the
following question: since the Labour administration sold Sandpits carpark,
Stanford-le-Hope residents have been struggling to park, and there has been
a lack of infrastructure links in the town. Can the Leader assure me that the
proposed purchase of land will reduce the stranglehold of capital landowners
in the town?

The Leader replied that the proposed acquisition of land would increase both
commuter parking and parking for residents wishing to access the town
centre, as well as a new bus turnaround location. He stated that although the
new station car parking would not be as convenient as Sandpits for access to
the town centre, it would still provide parking within walking distance. He
stated that parking and development of the station was long overdue.

The Leader introduced the report on behalf of Councillor Coxshall and stated
that this report was a fantastic opportunity to improve Stanford-le-Hope
station, after the loss of Sandpits carpark, the increase of commuters, and the
expansion of DP World. He felt that this report would deliver the required
improvements to the station at a timelier pace, and would reduce the need for
a complicated design. He mentioned that the new design would not require a
complicated cantilever bridge, changes to Mucking Creek, and would not
encroach as much on resident’s houses. He added that the new design would
also provide better bus turnaround facilities, so workers at the port could
access the buses more easily, and would increase commuter and town-centre
parking. He apologised to the residents of Stanford-le-Hope for the delay in
the implementation of the project, but felt that it was better to get the project
right first time, rather than increasing spending and the risk of flooding with
the original design.

Councillor Hebb added that the new proposed design would benefit residents
more, as it would save bricking over the River Hope, which was a large part of
the identity of Stanford-le-Hope, and did not affect residents near the station
as much as the original design. He commented that this proposal was a
partial resolution after the sale of Sandpits and would unburden the local

Page 16



infrastructure and highways. Councillor Maney echoed the comments made
and felt it was important to get the scheme back on track. He commented that
he hoped the Compulsory Purchase Order option would be a last resort, and
the Leader commented that it was, although would be used if necessary.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet:

1. Noted the regeneration and financial opportunities presented by the
potential acquisition of land identified in Appendix A.

2. Delegated authority to the Director of Place and Director of Finance,
Governance and Property in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Regeneration to commence negotiations and seek to agree final terms
for the acquisition of the site and to enter into any such agreements
necessary to conclude the acquisition of the site.

Reason for decision: as outlined in the report
This decision is subject to call-in

The meeting finished at 8.45 pm

Approved as a true and correct record

CHAIR

DATE

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact
Democratic Services at Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Page 17


mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

12 February 2020 ITEM: 10
Cabinet

Incorporation of South East Local Enterprise Partnership

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All No

Report of: Clir Rob Gledhill, Leader of the Council & Portfolio Holder for Public
Protection and Anti-Social Behaviour

Accountable Assistant Director: N/A

Accountable Director: Andy Millard, Director of Place

This report is public

Executive Summary

The South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) is one of 38 established
Partnerships across the country, set up to provide the vision and strategic leadership
to drive sustainable private sector-led growth and job creation. The Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) is responsible for distributing significant amounts of Government
funding to support growth priorities. Thurrock has been allocated funding to support
the Grays South Regeneration and the widening of the A13 among other things.
Following a Government Review all Local Enterprise Partnerships have been
required by central government to comply with a set of recommendations including
establishing a legal entity. This report explains how incorporation of the South East
LEP is proposed to happen and asks Cabinet to take the necessary decisions.

1. Recommendation(s)
That Cabinet:

1.1 Note that the Council will become a member of South East LEP Limited
with articles of association as set out in appendix 1.

1.2 Note that the Council will sign the framework agreement as set out in
appendix 2.

1.3  Agree that the Leader will be the Council’s initial member of the Board

with the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Strategic Planning as
alternate director.

Page 19



1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Agree that the Leader will be the Council’s initial member of the
Accountability Board with the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and
Strategic Planning as principal substitute.

Introduction and Background

Local Enterprise Partnerships were created to replace Regional Development
Agencies. In order to allow flexibility, the Government did not have any
prescriptive requirements as to legal structure to enable a variety of operating
models to develop. However, following a review of LEPs Government has set
out a series of recommendations with which LEPs must comply — including
establishing themselves as a legal entity if they are to continue to be eligible
to receive government funding.

Thurrock is part of the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP).
This covers the combined administrative areas of:

East Sussex
Essex

Kent

Medway
Southend on Sea
Thurrock

SELEP currently operates as a partnership with Essex County Council acting
as the ‘Accountable Body’. As Accountable Body it is legally accountable to
government for how the money is spent across the SELEP area. SELEP has
a strategic board and four federated boards which are all informal bodies with
no legal constitution. These organisations consider applications for funding
and the Strategic Board makes recommendations to a local authority joint
committee comprising one member for each of the six upper tier local
authorities and an independent non-voting chairperson drawn from the
Strategic Board. Funding passes from ECC to the relevant local authority who
then enters into an agreement with the recipient, ensuring there is local
accountability for funding. SELEP is supported by a small team of officers who
are employed by Essex County Council but who report directly to the Section
151 Officer. The current structure therefore gives:

e A strong voice for business who dominate the Federated and Strategic
Boards.

e An efficient structure which uses existing employers, pension
arrangements and financial systems.

e Local accountability so that local authorities have an input in allocation of
funds via the Strategic Board and the joint committee and are accountable
for the activities of recipients of funding by signing agreements with the
Accountable Body.

A sketch diagram showing how SELEP currently operates is attached at
appendix 3.

Page 20



2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

To comply with the recommendations in the LEP Review the Government
decided that all LEPs would need to have a legal identity by April 2020.

The SELEP partners have been working on how best to achieve this. The
consensus is that a company should be established and that as far as
possible this should be with minimal impact on the other arrangements for
Governance and Operation.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

The Strategic Board of the LEP established a sub-group to consider legal
entity and agreed a proposal to create a company limited by guarantee. A
sketch diagram showing how the company will operate is at appendix 3. The
members of the company would be:

¢ Members of the federated boards who wish to become members of the
company.
e One member nominated by each local authority.

This will continue to give federated boards a strong voice in the running of the
company and the members/federated boards will continue to make
recommendations on allocation of funding and will continue to have a say in
the appointment of the board of the company

The board of the company would be comprised of between 20-25 directors as
follows:

(1) Fourteen Private Sector Directors:

The Chair (independently appointed)

The Deputy Chair (independently appointed)

Two individuals nominated by the Success Essex Members

Two individuals nominated by the Opportunity South Essex Members
Five individuals nominated by Kent & Medway Members

Three individuals nominated by East Sussex Members

(2) Six Public Sector Directors, one appointed by each of the six local
authorities.

(3) Up to five co-opted directors:

Two District/Borough/City Council Leaders or Cabinet Members
One Further Education representative

One Higher Education representative

One Third Sector representative

Page 21



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

5.1

This is the maximum size of board permitted by central government and
strikes a balance between different parts of the LEP. The government also
requires a local authority to remain as accountable body since the statutory
power used to pay money only allows funds to be paid to local authorities.

In order to minimise the changes required the Strategic Board has decided
that it does not want the company to hold the funding or employ any staff.
This minimises risk and cost and does mean that it is still the local authorities
who will be making the final decision on allocation of funding via the
Accountability Board and money will still pass from the Accountable Body to
the local authority.

The business members of the SELEP Boards have decided that this is the
way in which they want to work. They are comfortable with this because in
practice the SELEP partners and the secretariat have worked hard to develop
consensus on funding, meaning that in practice funding is rarely contentious
by the time decisions are taken. The joint committee will of course continue to
give great weight to the views expressed by the federated boards and the
business representatives.

The SELEP Strategic Board has therefore recommended that this approach is
taken.

The other main option considered was to have the company employing the
secretariat and receiving and distributing the funding, but this would involve a
lot of legal and financial structures and the consensus is that the costs and
bureaucracy involved in this outweighs the benefits.

The recommended approach has been developed in consultation with the
Ministry of Communities, Housing and Local Government and the Department
for Business, Energy and Industrial Skills who are happy with the proposals.

Reasons for Recommendation

The Government Review of Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) set out a
series of recommendations with which each LEP is required to comply. The
Recommendations cover issues such as legal identity, board composition and
size, election of Chair and other issues.

To comply with the recommendations SELEP must establish a legal identity
for the Local Enterprise Partnership by 31st March 2020. To establish the
Company Limited by Guarantee requires approval from each of the upper tier
authorities in the SELEP area.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)
The changes to the Local Enterprise Partnership have been considered by the

Strategic Board whose members include each upper tier authority, private
sector and Further Education and Higher Education.

Page 22



5.2

6.1

6.2

71

7.2

The Chair of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been briefed
on the changes and decisions that Cabinet need to take to comply with
SELEP requirements.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

The SELEP Board and secretariat have sought to minimise the changes
required to the LEP and its operating procedures while ensuring that it
complies with the changes required by Government.

As an upper-tier Authority Thurrock will still have representation on the
Strategic Board and the Accountability Board. The Council will still be able to
access funding managed by the LEP and will contribute to development of

policy.
Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Jo Freeman
Finance Manager

This report will have no direct financial implications since SELEP will continue
to operate in the current manner and the Council will continue to contribute
and passport funding to recipients in the same way as it currently does. The
changes will comply with Government recommendations.

Legal

Implications verified by: Courage Emovon

Acting Strategic Lead / Deputy Head of Legal
Services/ Deputy Monitoring Officer

The recommendations in this report have been developed in consultation with
the other five local authorities and with the current SELEP boards.

SELEP has obtained Counsel’s advice on the potential liabilities of Directors
and Members of the proposed new company. Directors’ liabilities are statutory
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Counsel has advised that since
the company will have no assets the risks to Members/ Local Authorities are
low. Potential liabilities will be mitigated by the Directors and Officers
insurance which the company intends to procure. Legal Services will provide
advice as and when required.

Page 23



7.3

7.4

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Becky Lee

Team Manager — Community Development and
Equalities

The Public Sector Equality Duty applies to the Council when it makes
decisions. The duty requires us to have regard to the need to:

(a) Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
behaviour prohibited by the Act. In summary, the Act makes discrimination
etc. on the grounds of a protected characteristic unlawful.

(b) Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

(c) Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not including tackling prejudice and
promoting understanding.

The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or
belief, gender, and sexual orientation. The Act states that ‘marriage and civil
partnership’ is not a relevant protected characteristic for (b) or (c) although it is
relevant for (a).

No equality impact assessment has been written as this report will largely
continue with SELEP’s existing processes. One positive impact which is
related to but not directly caused by the incorporation of SELEP is that the
new assurance framework requires SELEP to meet requirements relating to
equalities which is therefore likely to lead to a greater participation in public
life by people with a protected characteristic.

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder, and Impact on Looked After Children)

None

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):

None

Appendices to the report

e Appendix 1 — Articles of Association

e Appendix 2 — Framework Agreement
e Appendix 3 — Diagrams showing how SELEP operates

Page 24



Report Author:

Stephen Taylor
Strategic Lead — Economic Development

Economic Development

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY
GUARANTEE

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

SOUTH EAST LEP LIMITED (the "Company") Dated 2020
Interpretation, objects and limitation of liability
1. INTERPRETATION
1.1. In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires

Accountability Board means the joint committee of the Councils constituted in
accordance with the Framework Agreement

Accountable Body: means Essex County Council or such other local authority from
time to time having responsibility for overseeing the proper administration of financial
affairs within the LEP Area when these relate to public funds;

Act: means the Companies Act 2006;
AGM: has the meaning given to it in article 26;
Articles: means the Company's articles of association for the time being in force;

Assurance Framework: means the local assurance framework as adopted by the
Company with the agreement of the Accountable Body from time to time in
accordance with the requirements of the central government in order to pay funding
to local enterprise partnerships;

Bankruptcy: includes individual insolvency proceedings in a jurisdiction other than
England and Wales or Northern Ireland which have an effect similar to that of
bankruptcy;

Business Day: means any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in
England) when banks in London are open for business;

Chair: has the meaning given to it in article 12.1;
Code of Conduct: means the code of conduct contained in the Assurance Framework

Confidential: information is classified if it falls within the definition of ‘exempt information’
or “confidential information” by virtue of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. This includes:
(a) Information provided by a Government Department on terms which forbid the
disclosure of the information to the pubilic;
(b) Where disclosure to the public is prohibited by a court or;
(c) Where the Accountability Board holds “exempt information” under Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.
This also includes information relating to an individual, relating to the financial or business
affairs of a particular person, negotiations, labour relations, legal professional privilege
and in connection to the investigation or prosecution of a crime.

. iuation in which o AJE 2 . -
Conflict: means a situation in which a Director has or can have, a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts or may conflict, with the interests of the Company;



Appendix 1

Conflicts of Interest Policy: means the policy of the Company governing Conflicts, as
set out in the Assurance Framework.

Co-opted Directors: means the following, selected in accordance with the Assurance
Framework

- Two District/Borough/City Council Leaders or Cabinet Members
- One Further Education representative

- One Higher Education representative

- One Third Sector representative

Councils means Southend on Sea Borough Council, East Sussex County Council, Essex
County Council, Kent County Council, Medway Council and Thurrock Council

Deputy Chair: has the meaning given in article 12.2;

Director: means a Director of the Company and includes any person occupying the
position of Director, by whatever name called;

Directors: means all of the Co-opted Directors, the Private Sector Directors, the Public Sector
Directors, the Chair and the Deputy Chair.

Document: includes, unless otherwise specified, any document sent or supplied in
electronic form;

Electronic form: has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Act;

Eligible Director: means a Director who would be entitled to vote on the matter at a meeting
of Directors (but excluding any Director whose vote is not to be counted in respect of the
particular matter pursuant to article 15 and/or the Conflicts of Interest Policy);

Federated Boards: means all or any of the four groups of persons known at the date of
incorporation from the four federated areas known as follows,

- “Success Essex”,

- “Opportunity South Essex”,

- “the Kent and Medway Economic Partnership” and

- “Team East Sussex “

or such successor or replacement body approved by the Directors as part of the Assurance
Framework with the consent of each Council whose administrative area is served by the
relevant Federated Board.

Federated Board Members: means a person who appears to the Directors to be a member
of any of the Federated Boards.

Framework Agreement: means the agreement between the Councils and the Company
constituting the Accountability Board

Class of Members means either the East Sussex Members, the Essex Members, the South
Essex Members, the Kent and Medway Members as the case may be

LEP Area: means the combined administrative areas of the Councils or such other
geographical area as is assigned to the Company by government from time to time;

Member: means a person whose name in entered in the Register of Members of the Company
and Membership shall be construed aqag@@gg

East Sussex Member means a Member who was either



Appendix 1

e nominated by the East Sussex Members;

e was a member of the Team East Sussex Federated Board at the date of incorporation; or
has been nominated by the Directors as an East Sussex Member in accordance with article
23

Essex Member means a Member who was either

e nominated by the Essex Members;

e was a member of the Success Essex Federated Board at the date of incorporation; or

e has been nominated by the Directors as an Essex Member in accordance with article 23

Kent and Medway Member means a Member who was either

e nominated by the Kent and Medway Members;

e was a member of the Kent and Medway Economic Partnership Federated Board at the
date of incorporation; or

e has been nominated by the Directors as a Kent and Medway Member in accordance with
article 23.

South Essex Member means a Member who was either

e nominated by the South Essex Members;

e was a member of the Opportunity South Essex Federated Board at the date of
incorporation; or

e has been nominated by the Directors as a South Essex Member in accordance with article
23.

Model Articles: means the model articles for private companies limited by guarantee
contained in Schedule 2 of the Companies (Model Articles) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/3229)
as amended prior to the date of adoption of these Articles;

Objects: has the meaning given to it in article 2.1 and object shall mean any one of them;
Private Sector Director: means the following:

- The Chair

- The Deputy Chair

- Two individuals nominated by the Success Essex Members as the Success Essex
business representatives

- Two individuals nominated by the Opportunity South Essex Members as the Opportunity
South Essex business representatives

- Fiveindividuals nominated by Kent & Medway Members as the Kent & Medway Economic
Partnership business representatives

- Three individuals nominated by East Sussex Members as the Team East Sussex
business representatives

Public Sector Director: means a person nominated as such by one of the Councils being
- One person from Essex County Council,
- One person from Thurrock Council,
- One person from Southend-on-Sea Borough Council,
- One person from Medway Council,
- One person from Kent County Council and
- One person from East Sussex County Council

Scheme of Delegation: has the meaning given to it in article 7.3;
Secretariat means those persons employed by the Accountable Body or a Council for the

purposes of providing administrative, tecn Qetarial or professional support to the
Company and the Accountability Board pursuant to the Framework Agreement



Appendix 1

Secretary: means an officer of the Secretariat nominated by the Accountable Body to act
as such

Special Resolution: has the meaning given in section 283 of the Act;

Subsidiary: has the meaning given in section 1159 of the Act;

Writing: means the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or other information
in a visible form by any method or combination of methods, whether sent or supplied in
electronic form or otherwise.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

2.1.

3.

3.1.

Save as otherwise specifically provided in these Articles, words and expressions which
have particular meanings in the Act shall have the same meanings in these Articles.

Headings in these Articles are used for convenience only and shall not affect the
construction or interpretation of these Articles.

A reference in these Articles to an article is a reference to the relevant article of these
Articles unless expressly provided otherwise.

Unless expressly provided otherwise, a reference to a statute or statutory provision shall
include any subordinate legislation from time to time made under that statute or statutory
provision.
Any word following the terms including, include, in particular, for example or any
similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the
words preceding those terms.
The Model Articles shall not apply to the Company.
OBJECTS
The objects for which the Company is established (Objects) are:

2.1.1.to stimulate economic growth, productivity, employment, community

development, job creation, inward investment, training and development,

and commerce in the LEP Area;

2.1.2.to promote the LEP Area positively at regional, national, European and
international levels on matters affecting its economic development; and

2.1.3.to act as a facilitator to develop strong working relationships between key
stakeholders across the South East of England, ensuring there is a shared vision
for a prosperous LEP Area to unlock barriers to growth.
POWERS

In pursuance of the Objects, the Company has the power to:

3.1.1. do all such things which in the opinion of the Directors are in the best interests
of the Company and its Members; and

3.1.2. do all such other lawful things as are incidental or conducive to the pursuit
or to the attainment of any of the Objects.

Page 30



4.1.

4.2.

6.1.

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

Appendix 1
INCOME

The income and property of the Company from wherever derived shall be applied solely
in promoting the Objects.

No distribution shall be paid or capital otherwise returned to the Members in cash or
otherwise. Nothing in these Articles shall prevent payment in good faith by the
Company of expenses to Members or Directors in accordance with policies that may
be adopted from time to time in the Assurance Framework.

WINDING UP

On the winding-up or dissolution of the Company, after provision has been made for all
its debts and liabilities, any assets or property that remain available to be distributed or
paid, shall not be paid or distributed to the Members but shall be transferred to similar
bodies or another body with objects similar to those of the Company within the LEP
Area or as directed by the government department then responsible for Local Enterprise
Partnerships or their successor body.

GUARANTEE

The liability of each Member is limited to £1.00, being the amount that each Member
undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of its being wound
up while he or she is a Member or within one year after he or she ceases to be a
Member, for

6.1.1.payment of the Company's debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a Member;

6.1.2.payment of the costs, charges and expenses of the winding up; and
6.1.3.adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves.
Directors: General
DIRECTORS' GENERAL AUTHORITY AND CONDUCT
There shall be between twenty and twenty-five Directors of the Company

e Fourteen Private Sector Directors
e Six Public Sector Directors (no more than one nominated by each Council)
e Five Co-opted Directors

Subject to these Articles, Directors are responsible for the management of the
Company's business and may exercise all the powers of the Company accordingly.

Each of the Directors shall use their respective rights and powers to procure, so far as
they are each able, that decisions of the Company are carried out in accordance with the
Assurance Framework and any scheme of delegation for the time being adopted by the
Company and contained in the Assurance Framework (Scheme of Delegation).

Subject always to the Act, in their conduct of the Company's business the Directors
shall at all times:

7.4.1 conduct themselves in a professionally responsible manner;
7.4.2 have due regard to all confidentiality obligations concerning the

Company's business; Page 31
743 observe the seven principles as set out by The Committee on Standards in



8.

8.1.

9.1.

9.2.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

Appendix 1

Public Life (as amended from time to time); and
744 comply with the provisions of the Assurance Framework.

DIRECTORS MAY DELEGATE
Subject to the Articles:

8.1.1 the Directors may delegate any of the powers which are conferred on them
under the Articles and which are in line with the Assurance Framework and
any Scheme of Delegation:

i. to such person or committee;

ii. by such means (including power of attorney)
iii. to such an extent;
iv. in relation to such matters or territories; and
v. on such terms and conditions;
vi. as they think fit.

8.1.2 If the Directors so specify, any such delegation may authorise further
delegation of the Directors' powers by any person to whom they are
delegated.

8.1.3 The Directors may revoke any delegation in whole or part, or alter its terms

and conditions at any time.

Directors: Decision-Making
DIRECTORS TO TAKE DECISIONS COLLECTIVELY

The general rule about decision-making by Directors is that any decision of the Directors
must be a majority decision taken in one of the following ways:

9.1.1. on show of hands at a meeting of the Directors;

9.1.2. by written resolution, copies of which have been signed by a majority of the
Eligible Directors or to which a majority of the Eligible Directors have
otherwise indicated agreement in writing; or

9.1.3. by a majority of the Eligible Directors indicating to each other, by any means,
that they share a common view on a matter.

A decision may not be taken in accordance with this article 9 if the Eligible
Directors purporting to take the decision would not have formed a quorum had the
decision taken place in a meeting.

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

Directors' meetings shall take place not less than once per every three months.
Directors meetings shall be open to the public, with the exception of any information or
items classified as Confidential

Notwithstanding the provisions of article 10.1 meetings of the Directors are called
by the Chair or Deputy Chair by giving not less than twenty Business Days' notice
of the meeting to the Directors or by authorising the Secretary (if any) to give such

notice. page 32

A Director who is absent from the UK and who has no registered address in the UK shall



10.4.

10.5

11.

11.2.

11.3.

12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.

Appendix 1

not be entitled to notice of the Directors' meeting.

A person is able to exercise the right to speak at a Directors’ meeting when that person
is in a position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during the meeting,
any information or opinions which that person has on the business of the meeting

No business shall be transacted at a meeting of directors unless it is either:

(a) included on the agenda for the meeting which is sent out with the notice given
under article 10.2 convening the meeting; or
(b) certified by the Chair as urgent after consulting all directors by email.

QUORUM FOR DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

At a meeting of the Directors, unless a quorum is participating, no proposal is to be
voted on, except a proposal to call another meeting.

The quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of Directors is any fifteen
Eligible Directors, provided that such number must include

At least one Success Essex business representative

At least one Opportunity South Essex business representative

At least one Kent & Medway Economic Partnership business representative
At least one Team East Sussex business representative

At least three public sector Directors

If the total number of Directors in office for the time being is less than the quorum
required, the Directors must not take any decisions other than to appoint Co-opted
Directors if there is a vacancy in accordance with article 19.

CHAIRING OF DIRECTORS' MEETINGS, APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND DEPUTY
CHAIR AND TERMS OF OFFICE

The Company shall have at all times appointed a chairperson who shall be a Private
Sector Director and who shall be appointed in accordance with the process set out in
the Assurance Framework and the person so appointed for the time being is the Chair.

The Company shall have at all times appointed a deputy to the Chair (Deputy Chair),
who shall be a Private Sector Director and who shall be appointed in accordance with
the process set out in the Assurance Framework and the person so appointed for the
time being is the Deputy Chair.

Subject to clause [12.4], a Chair or Deputy Chair (as applicable) shall be appointed
for periods of no more than two years, such appointment ending at the meeting of
the Directors falling closest to the second anniversary of their appointment (or re-
appointment). Unless otherwise determined by [special resolution], the Chair or
Deputy Chair (as applicable) shall be entitled to put themselves forward for re-
election for a further period of two years in accordance with the Assurance
Framework provided that no Chair or Deputy Chair shall be able to serve more
than six years in their respective role.

Where the Chair or Deputy Chair puts him or herself forward for re-election, such
election shall occur at the board meeting at which their board appointment ends in
accordance with article [12.3].

Page 33

NOT USED



14.

14.1

14.2

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

16.

17.

18.

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

Appendix 1

[not used]
CASTING VOTE

If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal at a meeting of Directors are equal,
the Chair or Deputy Chair chairing that meeting has a casting vote.

But this does not apply in respect of a particular meeting (or part of a meeting) if, in
accordance with the Articles, the Chair or Deputy Chair chairing the meeting is not an
Eligible Director for the purposes of that meeting (or part of a meeting).

DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company shall at all times keep in force the Conflicts of Interest Policy to deal with
Conflicts.

Subject always to the provisions of the Conflicts of Interest Policy, if a proposed
decision of the Directors is concerned with an actual or proposed transaction or
arrangement with the Company in which a Director is interested, that Director is not to
be counted as participating in the decision-making process for quorum or voting
purposes unless the Director's interest cannot in the opinion of the Chair reasonably be
regarded as likely to give rise to a conflict of interest

For the purposes of this article, references to proposed decisions and decision-making
processes include any Directors' meeting or part of a Directors' meeting.

RECORDS OF DECISIONS TO BE KEPT

Where decisions of the Directors are taken by electronic means, such decisions shall
be recorded by the Directors in permanent form, so that they may be read with the
naked eye.

DIRECTORS' DISCRETION TO MAKE FURTHER RULES

Subject to these articles, the Directors may make any rule which they think fit about how
they and any committees formed by them take decisions, and about how such rules are
to be recorded or communicated to Directors, provided always that any such rule is
consistent with the Assurance Framework, the Framework Agreement and these
Articles.

Directors: numbers and appointment
NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

Unless otherwise determined by special resolution, the number of Directors shall not be
less than twenty but shall not exceed twenty-five.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors shall be composed of Private Sector Directors, Public Sector
Directors and Co-opted Directors.

Upon a vacancy arising for any reason for a Private Sector Director, other than the
Chair and the Deputy Chair, a replacement shall be appointed by the Class of
Members for the area in which the vacancy has arisen.

_ Page 34
The person appointed to a vacancy as’set out in article 19.2 shall be the person
securing the largest number of votes at a meeting of the relevant Class of Members



19.4

19.5

19.6

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

21.

21.1

21.2

Appendix 1

held for this purpose and notified to the Secretary by the person chairing that meeting
in accordance with any applicable requirements and policies set out in the Assurance
Framework.

Upon a vacancy arising for any reason in the office of Chair or Deputy Chair a
replacement shall be appointed in accordance with article 12.

Upon a vacancy arising for a Public Sector Director, a replacement shall be appointed
on the written nomination of the relevant Council given to the Secretary by the proper
officer of that Council.

If at any time there are fewer than five Co-opted Directors then the Directors may co-
opt a person appearing appropriate to the Board in accordance with the Assurance
Framework.

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS

A Private Sector Director shall retire from office on the second anniversary of their
appointment. Subject to articles 20.2 and 20.3, such retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-appointment by relevant Class of Members.

A Private Sector Director shall, subject to article 20.3, be eligible for re-
appointment for two further periods of two years.

Any Private Sector Director (including the Chair and Deputy Chair) who shall have
served for a total of six years shall not be entitled to be re-appointed.

Co-opted Directors shall retire from office on the first anniversary of their
appointment.

A Director may resign from office by notice given to the Secretary.
DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS
A person ceases to be a Director as soon as:

21.1.1 that person ceases to be a Director by virtue of any provision of the Act or
these Articles or s/he becomes prohibited by law from being a Director;

21.1.2 that person shall for more than twelve months have been absent without

permission of the Directors from meetings of Directors held during that

period and the Directors resolve that that person's office be vacated;

a Bankruptcy order is made against that person;

a composition is made with that person's creditors generally in satisfaction of

that person's debts;

21.1.5 two-thirds of the board of Directors resolve that the person has failed to
conduct themselves in accordance with article 7 and should as a
consequence be removed from office; or

21.1.6 in the case of a Public Sector Director, they cease for any reason to be a
member of Cabinet of the Council which appointed them; or

21.1.7 in the case of a Private Sector Director (other than the Chair and DeputyO, by
a vote to that effect passed by a majority of those present and voting at a
meeting of their appointing Class of Members .

N DN
-
o

>w

Save where a Director is a Public Sector Director, a Director shall upon ceasing to be a
Director by virtue of article 21 at the same time cease to be a Member.

Directors: alternate Directors anpa'g@eygneous



22

22.1

23

23.1

23.2

23.3

234

23.5
23.6

24

241

25

Appendix 1
ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Directors may appoint alternates in accordance with the provisions of the Assurance
Framework for the Directors and any alternate appointed in accordance with such
provisions shall be bound by any rules relating set out in the Assurance Framework [and
Terms of Reference] for the Directors.

Members: becoming and ceasing to be a Member
MEMBERSHIP

The first Members of the Company at incorporation shall be those who have
subscribed to these articles.

Subject to article 23.3 any person appearing to the Directors to be a Federated Board
member shall be entitled to become a Member if they submit an application for
membership in the form prescribed by the Company

The maximum number of each Class of Members (East Sussex Members, Essex
Members, South Essex Members and Kent and Medway Members) shall be as
specified in the Assurance Framework from time to time but shall not in any event
exceed fifty Members per Federated Board.

If the number of any category of Members is fewer than the maximum determined by
reference to Article 23.3 then the Members of that category may, at a meeting of that
category of Members called for the purpose, nominate a further Member to that
category of Members by a majority of those present and voting.

Each Council is entitled to nominate one Member.

If anyone nominated as a member does not opt to become a member within one month
of being nominated (or their nomination being accepted by the Directors if later) then
the person or group entitled to nominate to that vacancy may make a further
nomination to replace the original nominee.

DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF MEMBERS
A person ceases to be a Member as soon as:

24.1.1 that person ceases to be a Member by virtue of any provision of the Act or
these Articles or s/lhe becomes prohibited by law from being a Member;

24.1.2 that person misses two consecutive AGMs without attending any meetings in
the intervening period;

24.1.3 a Bankruptcy order is made against that person;

24.1.4 a composition is made with that person's creditors generally in satisfaction of
that person's debts;

24.1.5 notification is received by the Company from the Member that the Member is
resigning, and such resignation has taken effect in accordance with its
terms;

24.1.6 The Member is in breach of the Code of Conduct or is otherwise disrupting
the business of the Company and at a meeting of that category of Members
called for the purpose a majority of those present and voting resolve to
remove that person as a Member;

24.1.7 In the case of an Essex Member an East Sussex Member, a Kent and
Medway Member or a South Essex Member, it appears to the Directors that
the Member is no longer a member of a Federated Board.

TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP
Membership shall not be transferable.

Decision making by Members: gbagel Meptings



26

26.1

27

271

27.2

27.3

274

28

29.

29.1.

29.2.

30.

30.1

30.2

31.

31.1.

31.2.

Appendix 1
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company shall hold an annual general meeting (AGM) at least once every calendar
year and which shall be open to the general public save at a time when the meeting is
considering items classified as Confidential.

ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING AT GENERAL MEETINGS

A person is able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting when that person is
in a position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during the meeting, any
information or opinions which that person has on the business of the meeting.

A Member is able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when:

27.2.1 that Member is able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to the
vote at the meeting; and

27.2.2 that Member's vote can be taken into account in determining whether or
not such resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all the
other Members attending the meeting.

The Directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropriate to enable
those Members attending a general meeting to exercise their rights to speak or vote at
it.

In determining attendance at a general meeting, it is immaterial whether any two
or more Members attending it are in the same place as each other.

Not used
CHAIRING GENERAL MEETI NGS

The Chair or, in his or her absence, the Deputy Chair shall preside as chair of every
general meeting.

If neither the Chair nor the Deputy Chair is present within fifteen minutes after
the time appointed for holding the meeting and willing to act, the meeting shall
be adjourned and reconvened.

ATTENDANCE AND SPEAKING BY NON-MEMBERS

At an AGM the Chair of the meeting shall permit such other persons who are not
Members of the Company to attend and speak in accordance with the Assurance

Framework.

In addition to the other provisions of these articles the Chair of a general meeting may permit
others to attend a meeting and speak.

ADJOURNMENT
The chair of the meeting may adjourn a general meeting if:
31.1.1. the meeting consents to an adjournment; or
31.1.2. it appears to the chair of the meeting that an adjournment is necessary
to protect the safety of any person attending the meeting or ensure that

the business of the m@g@ésgqhducted in an orderly manner.

The chair of the meeting must adjourn a general meeting if directed to do so by at least



31.3.

31.4.

31.5.

32.

33.

33.1.

33.2.

34.

34.1.

34.2.

Appendix 1
50% of the Members present at the meeting.
When adjourning a general meeting, the chair of the meeting must:

31.3.1. either specify the time and place to which it is adjourned or state that it
is to continue at a time and place to be fixed by the Directors; and

31.3.2. have regard to any directions as to the time and place of any
adjournment which have been given by the meeting.

If the continuation of an adjourned meeting is to take place more than 14 days after
it was adjourned, the Company must give at least 7 clear days' notice of it (that is,
excluding the day of the adjourned meeting and the day on which the notice is
given):

31.4.1. tothe same persons to whom notice of the Company's general meetings is
required to be given; and

31.4.2. containing the same information which such notice is required to contain.
No business may be transacted at an adjourned general meeting which could not
properly have been transacted at the meeting if the adjournment had not taken
place.

Voting at general meetings

VOTING: GENERAL

Without prejudice to any other provision of these Articles, a resolution put to the vote of
a general meeting must be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is duly demanded
in accordance with the Articles.

ERRORS AND DISPUTES

No objection may be raised to the qualification of any person voting at a general
meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is

tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting is valid.

Any such objection must be referred to the chair of the meeting whose decision is
final.

POLL VOTES
A poll on a resolution may be demanded:
34.1.1.  in advance of the general meeting where it is to be put to the vote; or
34.1.2.  at a general meeting, either before a show of hands on that resolution
or immediately after the result of a show of hands on that resolution is
declared.
A poll may be demanded by:
34.2.1. the chair of the meeting;

34.2.2.  the Directors; Page 38



34.3.

34.4.

35.

35.1.

35.2.

35.3.

36.

36.1.

36.2.

36.3.

36.4.

Appendix 1
34.2.3. two or more persons having the right to vote on the resolution; or
34.2.4. a person or persons representing not less than one tenth of the total
voting rights of all the Members having the right to vote on the
resolution.
A demand for a poll may be withdrawn if:
34.3.1.  the poll has not yet been taken; and
34.3.2.  the chair of the meeting consents to the withdrawal.
Polls must be taken immediately and in such manner as the chair of the meeting directs.
CONTENT OF PROXY NOTICES
Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a "proxy notice") which:

35.1.1.  states the name and address of the Member appointing the proxy;

35.1.2. identifies the person appointed to be that Member's proxy and the
general meeting in relation to which that person is appointed;

35.1.3.  is signed by or on behalf of the Member appointing the proxy, or is
authenticated in such manner as the Directors may determine; and

35.1.4. is delivered to the Company in accordance with the Articles and any
instructions contained in the notice of the genera | meeting to which they
relate.

The Company may require proxy notices to be delivered in a particular form, and may
specify different forms for different purposes.

Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated as:

35.3.1.  allowing the person appointed under it as a proxy discretion as to how
to vote on any ancillary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting;
and

35.3.2. appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the
general meeting to which it relates as well as the meeting itself.

DELIVERY OF PROXY NOTICES

A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a show of hands or on a poll)
at a general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment
of it, even though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the Company by or on behalf
of that person, and if s/he does so the proxy (notice) shall be revoked.

An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the Company a
notice in writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the
proxy notice was given.

A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it is delivered before the
start of the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates.

If a proxy notice is not executed IBAEHE FBson appointing the proxy, it must be
accompanied by written evidence of the authority of the person who executed it to



37.

37.1.

37.2.

38.

38.1.

38.2.

39.

39.1.

Appendix 1
execute it on the appointer's behalf.
AMENDMENTS TO RESOLUTIONS

An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by
ordinary resolution if:

37.1.1.  notice of the proposed amendment is given to the Company in writing by
a person entitled to vote at the general meeting at which it is to be
proposed not less than 48 hours before the meeting is to take place {or
such later time as the chairman of the meeting may determine); and

37.1.2. the amendment does not go beyond what is necessary to correct a
grammatical or other non-substantive error in the resolution.

If the chair of the meeting, acting in good faith, wrongly decides that an
amendment to a resolution is out of order, the chair's error does not invalidate the
vote on that resolution.

Administrative arrangement
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO BE USED

Any notice, document or other information shall be deemed served on or delivered
to the intended recipient:

38.1.1. if properly addressed and sent by prepaid United Kingdom first class post to
an address in the United Kingdom, 48 hours after it was posted (or five
Business Days after posting either to an address outside the United Kingdom
or from outside the United Kingdom to an address within the United
Kingdom, if (in each case) sent by reputable international overnight courier
addressed to the intended recipient, provided that delivery in at least five
Business Days was guaranteed at the time of sending and the sending party
receives a confirmation of delivery from the courier service provider);

38.1.2. if properly addressed and delivered by hand, when it was given or left at
the appropriate address;

38.1.3. if properly addressed and sent or supplied by electronic means, one hour
after the document or information was sent or supplied; and

38.1.4. if sentor supplied by means of a website, when the material is first made
available on the website or (if later) when the recipient receives (or is
deemed to have received) notice of the fact that the material is available
on the website.

For the purposes of this article, no account shall be taken of any part of a day that is
not a Business Day.

In proving that any notice, document or other information was properly addressed,
it shall suffice to show that the notice, document or other information was addressed
to an address permitted for the purpose by the Act.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Subject to article 39.2, but without prejudice to any indemnity to which a relevant
officer is otherwise entitled: Page 40



39.2.

39.3.

39.4.

40.

40.1

40.2

40.3

Appendix 1

39.1.1. each relevant officer shall be indemnified out of the Company's assets
against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him as
a relevant officer in the actual or purported execution and/or discharge of
his duties, or in relation to them including any liability incurred by him
in defending any civil or criminal proceedings, in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which s/he is acquitted or the proceedings are otherwise
disposed of without any finding or admission of any material breach of duty
on his part or in connection with any application in which the court grants
him, in his capacity as a relevant officer, relief from liability for negligence,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the Company's (or
any associated company's) affairs; and

39.1.2. the Company may provide any relevant officer with funds to meet
expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him in connection with any
proceedings or application referred to in article 39.1.1 and otherwise may
take any action to enable any such relevant officer to avoid incurring
such expenditure.

This article does not authorise any indemnity to the extent that such indemnity would be
prohibited or rendered void by any provision of the Act or by any other provision of law
and any such indemnity is limited accordingly.

The Directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the
Company, for the benefit of any relevant officer in respect of any relevant loss.

In this article:

39.4.1. companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are
subsidiaries of the same body corporate; and

39.4.2. arelevantloss means any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred
by a relevant officer in connection with that relevant officer's duties or powers
in relation to the Company, any associated company or any pension fund or
employees' share scheme of the Company or associated company; and

39.4.3. arelevant officer means any Director or other officer or former Director or
other officer of the Company, but excluding in each case any person
engaged by the Company (or associated company) as auditor (whether or
not s/he is also a Director or other officer), to the extent s/he acts in his
capacity as auditor.

Changes to Articles or Assurance Framework

No change to these articles or to the Assurance Framework shall take effect unless
agreed in advance by the Accountable Body and until the Accountability Board has been
given written notice of the proposed changes, those changes have been considered at
a meeting of the Accountability Board and the decision maker has considered any
comments or views expressed by the Accountability Board or any members thereof.

The Accountable Body shall not withhold its approval under article 40.1 unless in its
opinion the change is likely to prejudice the ability of the Company or the Accountable
Body to comply with the terms of any agreement to which the Accountable Body is party
relating to the administration of funds or the ability to be allocated Government Funds.

In addition to the preceding clauses, no change to the articles which would affect the
number of directors or members wfi@a‘gebé,ippointed or nominated by any Class of
Members may be approved without the approval of a majority of all Classes of Members



Appendix 1

40.4 In addition to the preceding clauses, no change to the number of directors to be
appointed by any Local Authority may be approved without being approved without the
approval all local authority members.

Page 42



DATED

2020

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
and
EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

and

ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL
and

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL
and

THURROCK COUNCIL
and
MEDWAY COUNCIL

and

[SOUTH EAST LEP LIMITED]

Appendix 2

(7)

FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

In relation to South East Local Enterprise Partnership

Page 43



Appendix 2

THIS AGREEMENT is made on 2019
BETWEEN

(1) SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL of Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue,
Southend-on-Sea, SS2 6ER (“Southend”);

(2) EAST SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent, Uckfield,
Lewes, East Sussex, BN7 1UE (“East Sussex”);

(3) ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, Market Road, Chelmsford, Essex, CM1
1QR (“Essex”);

(4) KENT COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, Maidstone, Kent, ME14 1XQ (“Kent”); and

(5) THURROCK COUNCIL of Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 7SL
(“Thurrock”);

(6) MEDWAY COUNCIL of Gun Wharf, Dock Road, Chatham, Kent, ME4 4TR
(“Medway”)

together referred to as “the Councils” and individually as a “Council”.

(7) [SOUTH EAST LEP LIMITED] of [
] (“Company”)

BACKGROUND

(A) The Councils are local authorities for the purposes of the Local Government Act
1972 and best value authorities for the purposes of the Local Government Act 1999.

(B) The unincorporated SELEP partnership was established in | ] with the
aim of stimulating growth in the economy across [ ] area. In part it aim to
do this by playing a central role in determining local economic priorities and
undertaking activities to drive economic growth and the creation of local jobs. It is a
primary partnership of the Councils.

(C) The Company was incorporated on | ]in response to the requirement
of Central Government for all Local Enterprise Partnerships to have legal personality.

(D) Essexis the Accountable Body for the purposes of Funding allocated to the Company
by central government and other responsibilities as set out in the Assurance
Framework.

(E) The purpose of this Agreement is to create an overarching framework setting out the
duties and obligations, roles and responsibilities of the Councils, the Accountability
Board, Accountable Body and the Company in relation to the activities undertaken to
enable the delivery of the LEP achieve the Company's objects (as defined in its
articles of association) and ithe Aims and Objectives.

Page 44



Appendix 2

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1 Definitions

1.1 In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings:
Accountable Body means Essex

Accountability Board means the joint committee of the Councils constituted in accordance
with Schedule 2

Agreement means this Framework Agreement and any schedules;

Aims and Objectives means those aims and objectives set out in the Assurance
Framework

Assurance Framework means the local assurance framework of the Company as adopted
by the Company with the agreement of the Accountable Body and the Accountability Board
from time to time in accordance with the requirements of central government in order to pay
funding to local enterprise partnerships

Commencement Date means [xxxx] 2020

Councils means Southend, East Sussex, Essex, Kent, Medway, Thurrock.

Council Contribution for a particular Financial Year means a contribution which a Council
has agreed to make to the Support Funding

EIR means the Environmental Information Regulations 2004;
FOIA means the Freedom of Information Act 2000;

Financial Year means during the continuance of the Agreement any period commencing
on 1 April and ending on the following 31 March

Funding means all and any devolved government revenue and capital funding which
central government pays to the Accountable Body for the purpose of SELEP;

Funding Agreement means an agreement between the Accountable Body a Council or
such other Party to receive funding as may be necessary under which the Accountable Body
pays Project Funding to that Council or such other party for onward transmission to a
Recipient

Parties means the parties to this Agreement.

Project Funding means that part of the Funding which is to be used for the purposes of
schemes allocated by the Company and Accountability Board

Recipient means a person or entity which has received Project Funding from a Council

Secretariat means those persons employed by the Accountable Body for the purposes of
providing administrative, technical or professional support to the Company and the

Page 45



Appendix 2

Accountability Board in accordance with this Agreement

Support Funding means that part of the Funding which is not Project Funding aggregated
with the Council Contributions.

SELEP Area means the combined administrative area of the Councils

Support Contracts means contracts entered into by the Accountable Body to the extent
that they relate to the provision of advice or support or the provision of services to the
Company and the Accountability Board.

Terms of Reference means the terms of reference of the Accountability Board as set out
in Schedule 1.

1.1 Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and should not
be incorporated into this Agreement and shall not be deemed to be any indication of
the meaning of the clauses to which they relate.

1.2 References to any statute or statutory provision include references to:

1.2.1  all Acts of Parliament and all other legislation having legal effect in the United
Kingdom;

1.2.2 any subsequent statutes directly or indirectly amending, consolidating,
extending, replacing or re-enacting that statute and also include any orders,
regulations, instruments or other subordinate legislation made under that
statue;

2. Duration

2.1 This Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and shall continue in
effect until terminated in accordance with Clause 25 of this Agreement.

3 Principles and Key Objectives

3.1  The Parties will work together to deliver the Aims and Objectives acting in their
respective capacities as Accountable Body, Accountability Board and the Company.

3.2 The Parties agree that the following principles underpin their collaborative working
and the terms of this Agreement as follows:

3.2.1 mutual co-operation and collaboration;
3.2.2 accountability;
3.2.3 transparency;
3.2.4 mutual benefits

3.3 In order to achieve these objectives and the Aims and Objectives, the Parties agree
that they will work together with mutual trust, good faith and in an open, co-operative
and collaborative manner. The Parties will work together in a spirit of mutual trust in

order to ensure the successful management of the Aims and Objectives and will
respond in a timely manner (or within the timescales agreed between the Parties

Page 46



3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

Appendix 2

where appropriate) to all reasonable requests from each other.

It is the overriding responsibility of the Parties to ensure that Funding is allocated in
such a way which

3.4.1 ensures that the Company and the Accountable Body comply with the terms
and conditions on which Funding is paid to the Accountable Body

3.4.2 ensures that public money is spent in the best way to develop and enhance
the economy of the SELEP Area

3.4.3 isin accordance with the Assurance Framework.

Accountability Board

The Accountability Board is constituted in accordance with Schedule 2 to this
Agreement

The Parties agree that each will comply with its obligations set out in Schedule 1 to this
Agreement.

In making decisions the Accountability Board will primarily have regard to the need to
ensure that decisions it makes are supported by the people and organisations who
participate in achieving the aims and objectives of the Company, the need to maintain
the confidence of such persons in their ability to influence the award of funding insofar
as it is proper to do so. Accordingly, the Accountability Board will give great weight to
any recommendation made to it by or on behalf of the Company. The Accountability
Board will also have regard to the following:

4.3.1 The fact that Funding is paid to the Accountable Body by central government
so that it can be spent in accordance with the Assurance Framework

4.3.2 The fact that the Assurance Framework includes checks and safeguards
designed to ensure that recommendations made to the Accountability Board
have been made having regard to Aims and Objectives articulated by the
Company and without the participation of any person or organisation which
has a conflict of interest.

4.3.3 The need to ensure that Funding is only paid when it is received from Central
Government by the Accountable Body and the Accountable Body is satisfied
that the conditions of Funding attached by central government have been
complied with and that the Recipient has agreed to comply with any conditions
of Funding required by central government or the Accountable Body.

Finance

The Accountable Body will hold all Funding on behalf of the Company and Accountability
Board and will

5.1.1  Maintain accounting records of transactions undertaken by or on behalf of
the Company and Accountability Board in accordance with proper accounting
practice

5.1.2  Provide such information as the Accountability Board, Secretariat or the
Company shall reasonably require about the money held by the Accountable
Body

5.1.3  Arrange for the external audit of the Funding.

Page 47



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Appendix 2

5.1.4  Ensure that the Chief Executive Officer of SELEP is accountable to the
Company in the discharge of his duties in accordance with the Assurance
Framework.

The Accountable Body’s section 151 officer will be responsible for ensuring that the
Accountable Body complies with its duties under this agreement

The Accountable Body will not spend any Project Funding unless:
5.3.1  The spend is in accordance with a decision taken by the Accountability Board;

5.3.2 The spend is required in accordance with the conditions upon which the Funding
was paid to the Accountable Body; or

5.3.3 The spend is to defray a liability incurred by the Accountable Body wholly as a
result of and accordance with its role as the Accountable Body

The Accountable Body will only spend Support Funding on:
5.4.1  The costs incurred in connection with employing the Secretariat

5.4.2 Making an internal recharge in accordance with proper accounting practices to
reflect the cost of providing services to the Company, the Accountability Board
or to the Secretariat.

5.4.3 The costs incurred in connection with the Company and Accountability Board
Support Contracts.

Before the start of each Financial Year the Secretariat in consultation with the Company
will bring a report to the Accountability Board with the proposals (a Proposed Budget)
setting out

5.5.1 the proposed level of Council Contributions (subject to agreement by the
relevant Council, such agreement not to be unreasonably withheld and it shall
be reasonable if the proposed Council Contribution is no more than the previous
year’s contribution increased in line with the retail prices index (excluding
mortgages) over the previous 12 months using the most recent figures
published at the time of calculation),

5.5.2 the total Support Funding available
5.5.3 how the Support Funding is to be allocated with respect to that Financial Year.

The Accountability Board shall approve the proposals with such amendments as they
reasonably require, but in making amendments they must ensure that there will be
sufficient Support Funding available in that year to defray the cost of implementing the
Proposed Budget.

The Proposed Budget as approved by the Accountability Board shall be the Budget for
that Financial Year.

The Budget may be amended by the Secretariat from time to time after consulting the
Accountable Body with approval of the Accountability Board, but subject always to
continuing obligation to ensure that there will be sufficient Support Funding available in
that Financial Year to defray the cost of implementing the Budget

The Accountable Body shall manage the Support Funding with an officer in the
Secretariat being the budget holder in accordance with the Accountable Body’s
constitution and financial regulations and shall use all reasonable endeavours to only
spend the Support Funding in accordance with the Budget as amended from time to time.

If the Accountable Body incurs expenditure contrary to the Budget it shall report this to
the Company and the Accountability Board promptly.

Each Council shall pay its Council Contribution to the Accountable Body no later than 1

Page 48



Appendix 2

July in each Financial Year

6 The Secretariat

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Accountable Body will employ the Secretariat who will be employed on the
Accountable Body’s terms and conditions of employment and be subject to the
employment policies of the Accountable Body.

The Accountable Body will ensure that line management is provided to the Secretariat in
consultation with the Chair, where necessary, in order to ensure that the Secretariat is
effectively performing its role.

The role of the Secretariat is

6.3.1 to support allocation of Funding

6.3.2 to liaise with members of the Company and Accountability Board, applicants
6.3.3 to procure and manage the Company and Accountability Board contracts
6.3.4 to administer the Company and Accountability Board

6.3.5 to respond to requests for information regarding the Company and its business
from the Accountability Board, and the Company;

6.3.6 to manage the expenditure and recovery of Project Funding
6.3.7 to manage the Company website and ensure it is kept updated

6.3.8 to report to the Company, to the Accountability Board and to the Accountable
Body about issues affecting SELEP and to provide such information as those
bodies shall reasonably require.

6.3.9 to liaise with central government and anyone providing Funding.

6.3.10 to draft the Assurance Framework and to review it annually to ensure that it meets
the requirements of the National Local Growth Assurance Framework

6.3.11 to ensure that all operations and decision making of the Company and the
Accountability Board meet the requirements of the Assurance Framework

7 Project Funding

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The process for allocation of Project Funding shall be in accordance with the Assurance
Framework..

Subject to clause 5.3, the Accountable Body will not spend any Project Funding unless
it has been allocated to the proposed spend by the Accountability Board on the
recommendation of the Company and there is a contract (a Funding Agreement) relating
to that Funding which is in such form as may be approved by the Company and the
Accountable Body in place between

1.1.1. the Accountable Body
1.1.2. the Company; and
1.1.3. the Council in whose administrative area the project will be delivered.

The Accountable Body will release Project Funding in accordance with the terms of
Funding Agreements subject to the Accountable Body being reasonably satisfied that

7.3.1 the terms of such agreements have been complied with, and

7.3.2 the Accountable Body having received sufficient Project Funds to meet the
release of the Funding.

A Council which is Party to a Funding Agreement will ensure that it is only paid out on

Page 49



Appendix 2

terms which require the Recipient to use the funding for the approved purposes and
achieve those outputs within a defined time and which otherwise comply with the
Assurance Framework and the terms upon which the relevant Project Funding is
received.

7.5 A Council which is a party to a Funding Agreement must take action against the
Recipient to enforce the terms of the agreement with the Recipient of the funding
where there has been a breach of the agreement between the Council and the
Recipient and either

o The Accountable Body considers that the Council needs to take action in order
to comply with the terms of any Project Funding;

J The Accountable Body considers that it is necessary to do so in order to
maintain public confidence in the Company and/or the Accountability Board or
to minimize or avoid fraud; or

o the Company makes a written request.

8 Governance and decision making

8.1 The Assurance Framework sets out governance and how decisions will be made
and may only be changed:

8.1.1 By the Company with the agreement of the Accountable Body.

8.1.2 By the Accountability Board where agreement in accordance with 8.1.1 has
not been possible and the change is the minimum required in order to comply
with the requirements of the National Local Growth Assurance Framework,
as may be amended from time to time, and the terms upon which any
Funding is paid or is proposed to be paid or which the Company and/or the
Accountability Board is required to make.

8.2 The Company agrees that it will not change its articles of association other than with
the prior agreement of the Accountability Board (not to be unreasonably withheld or
delayed).

8.3 The Company will
8.3.1 Approve an Economic Plan which sets out the Company's Strategic Direction
and aims and objectives from time to time.
8.3.2 Appoint an investment panel to prioritise the allocation of Project Funding
8.3.3 Provide an Interface with central government
8.3.4 Oversee pan LEP work
8.3.5 Develop an annual delivery plan

8.3.6 Develop strategic economic plans and policies.

8.3.7 Identify a prioritised list of schemes within the available Project Funding
including under / over programming to enable prudent management.

9 The Accountable Body will take reasonable steps to
9.1 Ensure decisions and activities of the Company and the Accountability Board conform

with legal requirements with regard to equalities, social value, environment, State Aid,
public procurement;

Page 50



Appendix 2

9.2 Ensure that the funds are used appropriately, and in a manner that is consistent with
the contents of the offer letter from central government, where appropriate;

9.3 Ensure that the Assurance Framework is adhered to;
10 Freedom of Information, Environmental Information and Transparency

10.1 Each Party acknowledges that the other Party is subject to the requirements of the
FOIA and the EIR and each Party shall, where reasonable, assist and co-operate with
the other (at their own expense) to enable each Party to comply with these information
disclosure obligations.

10.2 Where a Party receives a request for information under either the FOIA or the EIR in
relation to information which it is holding on behalf of another Party it shall:

10.2.1 transfer the request for information to the other Party as soon as practicable
after receipt and in any event within 2 (two) Business Days of receiving a
request for information;

10.2.2 provide the other Party with a copy of all information in its possession in the
form that the other Party reasonably requires within ten (10) Business Days
(or such longer period as the other Party may specify) of the other Party
requesting that information unless the cost of compliance exceeds the limit set
down pursuant to FOIA (and provides reasonable proof of this to the other
party); and

10.2.3 provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the other Party
to enable the other Party to respond to a request for information within the time
for compliance set out in the FOIA or the EIR.

10.3 Where a Party receives a request for information under the FOIA or the EIR which
relates to this Agreement, it shall inform the other Parties of the request for information
as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event at least four (4) Business Days
before disclosure and shall use all reasonable endeavours to consult with the other
parties prior to disclosure and shall consider all representations made by the other
Party in relation to the decision whether or not to disclose the information requested.

10.4 Subject to Clause 12 (Confidentiality), each Party shall be responsible for determining
in their absolute discretion whether any information for the purposes of FOIA or the
EIR,:

10.4.1 is exempt from disclosure under the FOIA or the EIR; and
10.4.2 is to be disclosed in response to a request for information.

10.5 Each Party acknowledges that the other parties may be obliged under the FOIA or the
EIR to disclose information:

10.5.1 without consulting with the other Party where it has not been practicable to achieve
such consultation; or

10.5.2 following consultation with the other Party and having taken its views into account.
10.6 The parties acknowledge that, except for any information which is exempt from

disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA or the EIR, the content of
this Agreement is not Confidential Information.

Page 51



Appendix 2

10.7 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the parties hereby consent to
the publication of this Agreement in its entirety including from time to time agreed
changes to this Agreement subject to the redaction of information that is exempt from
disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA or the EIR.

1 Data Protection

11.1 The Parties shall comply with their obligations under the Data Protection Act 2018 in
the performance of their obligations under this Agreement.

11.2 The provisions of this Clause 11 shall apply during the continuance of this Agreement
and indefinitely after its expiry or termination.

12 Confidentiality

12.1 The parties will not use or disclose any confidential information provided by any other
Party pursuant to this Agreement otherwise than for the performance of their
obligations under this Agreement, save as may be otherwise agreed or required by
law.

12.2 For the avoidance of doubt, confidential information shall not include:

12.2.1 any information obtained from a third Party who is free to divulge such
information:;

12.2.2 any information which is already in the public domain otherwise than as a
breach of this Agreement; or

12.2.3 any information which was rightfully in the possession of a Party prior to the
disclosure by any other Party and lawfully acquired from sources other than
any other Party.

12.3 Subject to Clause 12.2 the Parties shall not make any press announcement or

publicise the Agreement or any part of the Agreement in any way, except with the
agreement of the other Parties

13 Equality

13.1 The Parties shall perform their respective obligations under this Agreement in
accordance with:

13.1.1 all applicable equality laws (whether in relation to race, sex, gender
reassignment, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy,
maternity or otherwise);

13.1.2 any applicable equality and diversity policy of the Parties from time to time;
and

13.1.3 take all necessary steps, and inform each other of the steps taken, to prevent
unlawful discrimination designated as such by any court or tribunal, or the
Equality and Human Rights Commission (or any successor organisation).

14 Social Value

Page 52



Appendix 2

14.1 In performing their respective obligations in pursuance of this Agreement the Parties
shall comply with the requirements of Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012.

15 Environmental

15.1 In performing their respective obligations in pursuance of this Agreement the Parties
shall at all times co-operate with each other to improve environmental performance
where it is not detrimental to the interests of any Party to do so.

16 NOT USED
[Not used]
17 Disputes

17.1 Any dispute between the Accountable Body, the Company and the Accountability
Board shall

17.1.1 first be escalated to the Chair of the Company, the Deputy Chair (as Chairman
of the Accountability Board) and the and the Section 151 Officer of the
Accountable Body within ten working days of the dispute arising. The Chair of
the Company and the Accountable Body shall procure that Section 151 Officer
agree to discuss and, in good faith, attempt to resolve any such dispute and
try and reach agreement on the action required to resolve the dispute.

17.1.2 In the event that the Chair and the said Section 151 Officer are unable to
resolve the dispute, then the matter shall be referred to central government (or
grant awarding body if not central government) by any party to the dispute for
consideration.

17.2 Prior to action under [TO BE INSERTED] of the Assurance Framework, if any Party
has any issues, concerns or complaints about any matter relating to this Agreement
that Party shall notify the other Party/Parties and the Parties shall then seek to
resolve the issue by a process of consultation. If the issue cannot be resolved within
a reasonable period of time, the matter shall be escalated to the Secretary of State
for Business Environment and Industrial Strategy to resolve such dispute ([ ]
Assurance Framework, paragraph [ ]).

17.3 If any Party receives any formal inquiry, complaint, claim or threat of action from a
third Party they shall notify the Accountable Body and the Secretariat and co-operate
with each other to respond, or take such action, as is appropriate and/or necessary in
accordance with the complaints Policy in the Assurance Framework.

18 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

18.1 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not apply to this Agreement but
this does not affect any rights which are available apart from this Act.

19 General
19.1 Each of the Parties represents and warrants to the others that it has full capacity and
authority, and all necessary consents, licences and permissions to enter into and

perform its obligations under this Agreement, and that this Agreement is executed by
its duly authorised representative.

Page 53



Appendix 2

19.2 This Agreement cannot be varied except in writing signed by a duly authorised
representative of each of the Parties.

19.3 The Agreement contains the whole agreement between the Parties. The Parties
confirm that they have not entered into the Agreement on the basis of any
representation that is not expressly incorporated into the Agreement. Nothing in this
clause shall exclude liability for fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation.

19.4 The Company shall permit any intellectual property created by or on behalf of the
Company to be used by the Accountable Body and the Secretariat for the
management and running of the Accountability Board, but for the avoidance of doubt,
this clause does not operate to transfer the ownership of any intellectual property;

19.5 Any waiver or relaxation either partly, or wholly of any of the terms and conditions of
this Agreement shall be valid only if it is communicated to every other Party in writing
and expressly stated to be a waiver. A waiver of any right or remedy arising from a
breach of contract shall not constitute a waiver of any right or remedy arising from any
other breach of this Agreement.

19.6 This Agreement shall not constitute or imply any partnership, joint venture, agency,
fiduciary relationship or other relationship between the Parties other than the
contractual relationship expressly provided for in this Agreement. No Party shall have,
nor represent that it has, any authority to make any commitments on the other Parties’
behalf.

19.7 Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Agreement, all remedies available to
any Party for breach of this Agreement (whether under this Agreement, statute or
common law) are cumulative and may be exercised concurrently or separately, and
the exercise of one remedy shall not be deemed an election of such remedy to the
exclusion of any other remedy.

19.8 If any provision of this Agreement is prohibited by law or judged by a court to be
unlawful, void or unenforceable, the relevant provision shall, to the extent required, be
severed from this Agreement and rendered ineffective as far as possible without
modifying the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and shall not in any way affect
any other circumstances of or the validity or enforcement of this Agreement.

20 Notices

20.1 Any notice to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be served by
personal delivery, first class recorded or e-mail to the address of the relevant Party
set out below, or such other address as that Party may from time to time notify to the
other Parties in accordance with this clause.

21  English Law
21.1 This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its
subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be

governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.

21.2 The Parties herby agree and declare irrevocably that the courts of England and Wales
shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim (including non-

Page 54



Appendix 2

contracted disputes or claims) arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or
its subject matter or jurisdiction.

22. Insurance

22.1 The costs of public liability insurance and employee insurance for the Secretariat will
be covered by the Accountable Body’s insurance arrangements where that liability
arises due to the actions of the Secretariat. Where a Council incurs liability, that
Council will need to deal with that liability itself.

22.2 All costs including claims administration and legal costs and a fair proportion of the
premium paid by the Accountable Body will be paid for by the Accountable Body from
the Support Funding.

22.3 Allinsurance claims made against or on behalf of the Secretariat or the Accountability
Board will be managed on their behalf by the Accountable Body.

22.4 All Councils will cooperate with insurance claims investigations and notify the
Accountable Body of any potential claims relevant to this Agreement in its subject
matter as soon as is reasonably practicable and take all reasonable action to prevent
and minimise any loss.

22.5 ltis the responsibility of the individual Councils separately to ensure that appropriate
insurance in relation to insurance for that Council’s buildings and contents and other
assets are in place. Consequently the insurance cost for buildings and assets shall
not be charged to the Accountability Board.

22.6 The Accountable Body shall consider any reasonable request made by the Councils
for the purpose of facilitating the procurement, administration and maintenance of any
insurance relating to the Company and/or the Accountability Board.

23 Variation

23.1 Any proposed variation to this Agreement will be discussed at the Accountability
Board and at a board meeting of the Company. Each Party will then be responsible
for agreeing those changes that are passed at such board meeting.

24. Withdrawal from this Agreement

24.1 A Council may serve notice in writing to the Accountable Body at least nine months
before the date on which it is to take effect, that they will be withdrawing from this
Agreement. Such withdrawal may only take effect on 1 April in any year.

24.2 When the withdrawal of a Council takes effect

(a) it shall no longer be entitled to contribute to the decisions taken by the
Accountability Board or the Company.

(b) It shall no longer be required to pay a Council Contribution

(c) It shall not be responsible for debts or liabilities which are incurred by the
Accountability Board after the withdrawal takes effect

24.3 A Council which withdraws from this Agreement shall continue to be liable under any

Funding Agreements to which it is Party and may be required to enforce the terms of
any Project Agreement under the terms of this Agreement as if it were still a party.

Page 55



Appendix 2

24 .4 If any Party incurs any cost as a result of a Council withdrawing from this agreement
then that Council shall bear that cost in full, and pay the same within [4] days of
demand.

24.5 The provisions of this clause 24 shall survive a Council’'s withdrawal from this
agreement.

25. Dissolution of the Company

25.1 If the Company wound up or passes a resolution for its winding up or shall otherwise
cease to exist then this clause 25 shall apply from the date of the resolution to
terminate or the dissolution of the Company (whichever is the sooner) (‘the Cessation
Date’).

25.2 From and after the Cessation Date:

25.2.1 The Accountability Board shall not approve any further allocation of
funding.
25.2.2 All Councils shall continue to be liable under Funding Agreements to

which they are a Party and may be required to enforce the terms of any
Project Agreement under the terms of this Agreement as if this
Agreement were still fully in effect.

25.2.3 Each Council shall pay to the Accountable Body within 30 days of
demand an equal proportion of all costs incurred by the Accountable
Body relating to the costs of closing down the Secretariat and other parts
of SELEP relating thereto insofar as they cannot be met by any Funding.

25.4 The Parties shall work together with the relevant Secretary of State to decide how any
remaining public funds will be managed.

25.5 This agreement shall terminate three months after all liabilities under clause 25.2.3
have been discharged or on such other date as may be agreed by the parties.

25.6 This clause applies subject to any contrary obligation on the Accountable Body

imposed by any agreement between central government and the Accountable Body
relating to the award of Funding.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have signed this Agreement as a Deed on the day and
year first before written.

Page 56



Appendix 2

Schedule 1

Terms of Reference of the Accountability Board

1 The Accountability Board shall exercise the functions with respect to:

1.1 the implementation of the Assurance Framework and all processes by which bids are
assessed, risks considered, approvals made and performance managed

1.2 appraisals and approvals of grants and loans, in accordance with recommendations
made by the Company;

1.3 monitoring project assessment and delivery;
1.4 ensuring accountability from each of East Sussex, Essex, South Essex and Kent and
Medway, relating to expenditure and programme delivery in accordance with

recommendations made by the Company;

1.3 considering and, if thought fit, approving variations to schemes which have received
Project Funding;

1.4 quarterly performance reporting on an exceptions basis to the board of the Company;

1.5 reporting on progress to central government;

1.6 any other accountability or assurance function required by central government or
recommended by the Accountable Body's auditors or the S.151 Officer of the
Accountable Body;

1.7 approving an Annual Report to be made available to the Councils;

2. The Accountability Board will not have responsibility for

(a) staffing decisions.

(b) decisions about operational implementation and decisions will be taken as
appropriate by the Secretariat or their representatives.

3.  The Accountability Board may perform such other functions as the Councils may from
time to time delegate to the Accountability Board with the written agreement of the
Accountability Board and the Company.

4.  Each Council agrees that it will not exercise its functions in relation to the function of
the Accountability Board except;

4.1 via the Accountability Board;

4.2 via powers delegated to an officer by the Accountability Board; or

Page 57



Appendix 2

4.3 after consultation with the other Councils and the Company

Schedule 2

Constitution of the Accountability Board
1. Definitions and Interpretation
1.1 In this Schedule:
the Act means the Local Government Act 1972;
Annual Report means the report(s) which sets out the Accountability Board's activities,
Qihance and performance for the preceding year, as required by paragraph 1.7 of Schedule
Clerk means the person appointed in accordance with paragraph 12;
Committee Member means a member of the Accountability Board;
Co-opted Members means a Committee Member who is not a Council Member;

Council Member means a Committee Member who is a councillor of a local authority;

Executive Member means an elected member of a Council that is a Cabinet Member or a
member of the Executive.

Further Education Sector means educational institutions or facilities providing education
and training beyond compulsory education, but not falling within the definition of Higher
Education Sector

Higher Education Sector means the education institutions which provide education and
training at degree level and above;
Deputy Chair has the meaning given in the Company's articles of association.

2. Joint Committee

2.1 The Councils hereby exercise their powers under sections 101 and 102 of the Act,
section 9EA of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities
(Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 and any
other enabling legislation to form a joint committee to be known as the Accountability
Board to manage the distribution of Funding

2.2 The Councils hereby delegate to the Accountability Board each Council’s functions as
set out in the Terms of Reference.

3. Membership of the Accountability Board
3.1 The Accountability Board shall consist of nine members:
(a) Six local authority members comprising one executive member nominated by
each Council (if a Council ceases to operate executive arrangements then it shall
appoint its leader or deputy or the Chair or Vice-Chairman of a relevant

Committee)
(b) Three non-voting Co-opted Members, appointed as follows;

Page 58



Appendix 2

(i) One member appointed by the Accountability Board on the nomination of
the Higher Education Sector in the SELEP Area;

(i) One member appointed by the Accountability Board on the nomination of
the Further Education Sector in the SELEP Area; and

(iii) the Deputy Chair of the board of the Company (ex officio).

3.2 A person who is disqualified under Part V of the Act from being an elected member of
a relevant authority shall be disqualified from membership of the Accountability Board.

3.3 Each Council may change its nominated Committee Member at any time provided
that written notice of any such change is given to the Secretariat, taking effect upon
receipt. Such written notice may be given by electronic mail. Such change may be
temporary or permanent.

3.4 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement officers and elected members of the
Councils may attend meetings of the Accountability Board (or any sub-committee) to
support their Committee Member in attendance at that meeting.

4. Term of office

4.1 A Council Member will hold office until one of the following occurs;
(a) they are removed or replaced by the Council which appointed them; or
(b) they cease to be an elected member of the Council which appointed them

4.2. Where a vacancy occurs under paragraph 4.1 it shall be filled as soon as possible by
the relevant Council.

4.3 Co-opted Members shall be appointed for a term of two years and shall be eligible for
re-appointment for a maximum of two further two-year terms (i.e. a maximum of six
years including their first term).

4.4 A Co-opted Member shall cease to hold office if

(a) they resign by giving written notice to the Secretariat (in the case of the Deputy
Chair that notice shall also take effect as a resignation as Deputy Chair of the
Company);

b) in the case of the Deputy Chair, they cease to hold that office;

c) they are removed from office by the Accountability Board

d) they are replaced by the sector which appointed them.

e) in the case of the education representatives they cease to be employed by or hold
office in an institution in the relevant sector in the SELEP Area.

(
(
(
(

4.5 Where a vacancy occurs under paragraph 4.4 it shall be filled as soon as possible in
accordance with this schedule and the Assurance Framework .

5. Voting

5.1 Any question arising at a meeting of the Accountability Board shall be decided by a
simple majority of the Council Members present and voting,

5.2 All voting shall be by a show of hands. Any Council Member may require the way

Page 59



5.3

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3.

Appendix 2

they voted to be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.
Co-opted Members are not entitled to vote.
Substitute Members

A Council may appoint another Executive Member from the same Council to be a
substitute member. No later than 30 minutes before the start of the meeting a
substitution notice may be given to the Secretariat by:

(a) the Council Member concerned; or

(b) the Council

that the Substitute will be attending a meeting of the Accountability Board in place of
the Council Member. Where a substitution notice is in effect the substitute will be in
all respects a member of the Accountability Board in place of the Council Member.

Chair and Vice Chair of the Accountability Board
The Deputy Chair shall be the Chair of the Accountability Board.

At its first meeting in the municipal year the Accountability Board shall appoint a Co-
opted Member as Vice Chair.

If the Deputy Chair is not present within 15 minutes of the time at which the meeting
was scheduled to begin the Vice Chair shall chair the meeting. If neither the Deputy
Chair nor the Vice Chair are present within 15 minutes of the time at which the meeting
was scheduled to begin, or are otherwise both unwilling to chair the meeting, then
another Council Member present, chosen from amongst those present, shall chair the
meeting. The person chairing the meeting shall be the "Chair" for the purposes of
this Schedule for the duration of the meeting.

Assurance

The Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer of the Accountable Body, or their
representative, will attend meetings of the Accountability Board meetings in an
advisory capacity.

Unless otherwise agreed all reports to the Accountability Board must also be sent to
the Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer of the Accountable Body at least five
clear working days before they are due to be published.

The Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer, or their representatives, from the
other Councils will be invited to observe the Accountability Board meetings.
Meetings of the Accountability Board

The Accountable Body will maintain the official record of the Company and
Accountability Board proceedings and hold copies of all relevant documents relating
to funding allocated to the Accountable Body for the purposes of allocation by the

Company;

The Accountability Board shall meet at least four times in each year save and except
that;

The Chair of the Accountability Board may cancel any meeting if there is insufficient

Page 60



Appendix 2

business to be transacted but must give detailed reasons for doing so and as much
notice as is reasonably possible.

9.4 A meeting of the Accountability Board must be convened to take place within one
month of receipt of a written requisition from
(a) the Chair of the Accountability Board
(b) at least three Council Members.
(c) the Monitoring Officer or Section 151 officer of the Accountable Body

9.5 The dates for the meetings in any year shall be agreed at a meeting of the
Accountability Board, other than those convened pursuant to paragraph 9.4.

9.6 Meetings of the Accountability Board shall normally take place at High House,
Production Park, Purfleet, RM19 1RJ or at such reasonable alternative venue as
notified to the Councils by the Secretariat from time to time.

9.7 The agenda and reports for each meeting shall be issued by the Secretariat at least
five clear days in advance of the meeting unless by exception by agreement of the
Chair before the meeting and sent to each Committee Member and to the proper
officer of each Council.

9.8 No item of business may be considered at a meeting of the Accountability Board
unless it is on the agenda for the meeting or unless the Chair has agreed to accept
the item on the grounds of special urgency which shall be set out in the minutes for
the meeting.

9.9 Any key decisions must be included on the Forward Plan published 28 days in
advance of the meeting.

9.9 Meetings of the Accountability Board will be open to the public and press except where
the Accountability Board resolves that the press and public be excluded (which may
only be during consideration of items containing confidential or exempt information
within the meaning of Schedule 12A of the Act).

9.10 The agenda for each meeting shall include an opportunity for the public to ask
questions or make statements on a matter within the remit of the Accountability Board.

9.11 The Secretariat and any Council may make a request to the Chair of the Accountability
Board that a particular person or organisation is to be invited to attend a meeting of
the Accountability Board for the purpose of making a presentation, or participating in
discussion, on any item relevant to the Accountability Board's functions.

10. Quorum

10.1 The Quorum for meetings of the Accountability Board is two thirds of the Committee
Members, including at least four Council Members.

11.  Minutes

11.1 The minutes of the meeting shall be circulated to all Committee Members and shall
be approved or amended at the next available meeting and, once approved, signed
as an accurate record of the meeting by the Chair of the Accountability Board or by
the person presiding at the meeting.

11.2 Minutes of the Accountability Board shall be published as required by law except to

Page 61



Appendix 2

the extent that they include any exempt information.
12. Clerk

12.1 The Clerk shall be nominated by the Accountable Body from time to time. The Clerk
in conjunction with the Secretariat is responsible for ;

(a) Organising and publishing dates of forthcoming meetings;

(b) Production, publication and distribution of agendas, reports and minutes of
meetings;

(c) Ensuring representation at meeting;

12.2 Advising on the operation of the Accountability Board; and

12.3 Providing guidance to, and the recording of Committee Members' declarations of
interest in accordance with the code of conduct and the Assurance Framework.

13. Sub-Committees

13.1 The Accountability Board may from time to time appoint such sub-committees as it
considers appropriate to exercise such functions as may be delegated to it by the
Accountability Board and to advise the Accountability Board in the discharge of its
functions, save and except that the Accountability Board may not delegate to any sub-
committee the approval of the budget or Annual Business Plan or the fixing of the
annual contributions payable by the Councils.

13.2 The Accountability Board will determine the membership and terms of reference of
any sub-committee.

14  Scrutiny Arrangements

14.1 The decisions made by the Accountability Board may be subject to the individual
scrutiny arrangements of each Council.

14.2 Committee Members and their officer advisers shall co-operate with the relevant
Scrutiny Committee of any of the Councils and shall, where requested, comply with
any statutory duty to attend any meeting of any relevant Scrutiny Committee.

15. Callin

15.1 Call in should only be used in exceptional circumstances Day to day management
decisions or routine operational decisions should not be subject to Call in.

15.2 Other than in the case of a decision which the Accountability Board resolves is a
decision that shall be exempt from Call-in as it needs to be implemented urgently, no
decision of the Accountability Board may be implemented until the later of

(a) 5pm on the third day after the decision has been published on the Company
website and sent to the Councils (‘the Call-in Period’);
(b) the conclusion of any call-in received during the Call-in Period

15.3 A decision is called in by an elected member or members of a Council in the same
way they would call in a decision of each Council’s Cabinet except that elected
members of a Council may only call-in a decision which affects that Council or its
administrative area.

Page 62



Appendix 2

15.4 Once a decision or other action taken has been called in it may not be implemented
until the scrutiny arrangements of the relevant Council whose membership has called
in the decision or action have been completed. Where a relevant Scrutiny Committee
(or full Council) makes recommendations to the Accountability Board, the
Accountability Board shall arrange for the decision or action to be reconsidered in the
light

15.5 When a Council receives notification that a decision has been called-in it will
immediately notify the Clerk and the Secretariat by telephone or email.

15.6 If the Accountability Board is required to reconsider a decision at the request of a
Council’s Scrutiny Committee or full Council then it shall do so at a meeting and it may
be necessary to convene a special meeting to deal with this.

15.7 Where any Member or officer is required to attend a Scrutiny Committee, the Chair of
that Scrutiny Committee will inform the Secretariat who will ensure that the monitoring
officer of that authority and that of the Accountable Body is informed

15.8 The operation this clause shall be kept under review.

16. Conduct and expenses of members

16.1 All Council Members shall observe at all times the provisions of the Code of Conduct
adopted by their respective Councils.

16.2 Each Council shall be responsible for meeting any expenses to which any Committee

Member or officer appointed by them, as its representative, is entitled as a result of
their attendance at meetings of the Accountability Board.

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



>
[
(©)
=
Ll
=
<
oc
115
Ll
(®)
=
<
oc
=)
)
7))
<
EE
=
=
r
o
=
(@)
O
—
—
<

¢ xipuaddy

S R I A A i . i

P11 4373 40 diysiaquisw ﬁt (sdiysiaurind pajypiodioduiun)/spieog pajelapad
2yl aJe spieog | -

pajeispad JO SIsqUISIA “

ﬁlllv
|

1e1E}9.199S d313S

Apog 91geiunoddy

i
|
|
-.Illlllllllll

e -

diysuone|au
[ewlojU|] E=m===

diysuoine|al |eS97 grm— INIFNFIEOY XHOMINVHAS

21N32NJ3}S Mo — Em._mm_ﬁ_ 2JUBUISANOD) 4313S



(sdiysiaulind pajpiodiosuiun)/spieog payeiapa

7
oc

(@) I

= !

Ll

z |

7 Apog 9|qeiunosdy 1B11B19.1938 d3i13S " -

O I

= I [

e I ) I L

7)) . I ! “ [ %
< i " g ! o
= ﬁ N | >
= ( pieog :
> sanLIoyaNy [e207 431 4addn xis JlgeRenS/ diysioumed

W : D paiesodioduiun

S

- diysuore|as

< [ewWiOU| E====

IN3FINIFIFHOV FILLIININOD LNIOT

diysuoiie|ol |e397 gr—

4

34N19N.41S P|O — WeiSeiq 22Ueulanos d313s

¢ xipuaddy



Agenda Item 11

12 February 2020 ITEM: 11
Cabinet

Procurement of Transport & Highway Contracts
Wards and communities affected: | Key Decision:

Al Key

Report of: Councillor Ben Maney, Portfolio Holder for Highway and Transport

Accountable Assistant Director: Anna Eastgate, Assistant Director of Lower
Thames Crossing and Transport Infrastructure; and Julie Nelder, Assistant Director
of Highways, Fleet and Logistics

Accountable Director: Andrew Millard, Director of Place and Julie Rogers, Director
of Environment, Highways and Counter Fraud

This report is Public

Executive Summary

This report aims to gain delegated authority to procure and award a Works contract,
a Professional Services contract and a Structures Consultancy contract necessary to
deliver the Transport and Highways capital works programmes for the next five
years, commencing 1 April 2021.

1. Recommendations:
That Cabinet:

1.1 Delegate authority to the Director of Place and the Director of
Environment and Highways, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for
Highways and Transportation to decide the appropriate procurement
route for the delivery of the Transport & Highways services and
schemes for the next five years commencing 1 April 2021.

1.2 Approve the process to commence procurement of Transport &
Highways services and schemes for a five-year period commencing 1st
April 2021, which will be compliant with relevant EU Public Procurement
Regulations, the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and the Council’s
Contract Procedure Rules.

1.3 Delegate authority to the Director of Environment and Highways, in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Place and Environment and
Highways, to award any contracts necessary for the delivery of
transportation and highways services for a five year period

Page 67



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

commencing 1 April 2021.
Introduction and Background

In June 2015 Cabinet gave delegated authority to the Director of Planning and
Transportation, in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder for Highways and
Transportation, to decide the appropriate procurement process and to award
contracts necessary for the delivery of Transport and Highways services for
the then next five years. That procurement route was through the Official
Journal of the European Union (OJEU)

This allowed the procurement of contracts as follows: a £40 million term
maintenance and highway improvements contract for works, a £2 million
engineering professional services and a £1.35 million structures consultancy
contract.

These contracts allowed transportation and highways teams to gain
efficiencies through reduced administration and procurement costs. On
previous occasions, a mini competition procurement process was necessary
for each new project, many of which were of low value but still necessitated
the undertaking of a procurement process to comply with the Council’s
Contract Procedure Rules.

This meant that the Transportation and Highway teams had an opportunity to
concentrate on service delivery and were able to identify further service
needs, which are processed through an internal capital bid process. Projects
such as the full reconstruction of Stonehouse Lane and ‘Kerb it’ are funded
this way.

In the first two years of the term contract, the works procured amounted to
£17 million. This means that the estimated average spending used to procure
£40 million contract (1 April 2017 — 31 March 2023) increased form £6.67
million to £8.5 million in the past two years and a further increase to £10.75
million is projected for 2019-20. If the spending through the term maintenance
and highway improvements contract remains at the latter value, the total
expenditure by year six would rise to around £60 million, 50% over the value
of tendered contract.

Any further expenditure over 50% of the original contact sum is not permitted
under Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Regulation 72) and there is therefore
a requirement to undertake a new procurement process.

Following Cabinet approval and a decision on the most appropriate
procurement route, the procurement timetable below is proposed for the
Works contract. The Professional Services and Structures Consultancy
procurement timetables are of a shorter period and will be procured within the
timescales for the Works contract.

Page 68



2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Works Contract — Procurement Timetable

KEY EVENT DATE

Issue of ITT 1st July 2020
Deadline for clarification requests re ITT 31st July 2020
Closing date for tender submissions 30t September 2020
Notification of result of evaluation 30" November 2020
Standstill period 10 days
Expected date of award of contract 19t December 2020
New contract start date 1st April 2021

The proposed value of the new Works contract will be in the region of £30m.
The Professional Services contract £2m and the Structures Consultancy
£1.4m.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

The current Term Maintenance contract is due to expire on 31 March 2023.
Before that time the value of the contract may well exceed its original contract
value by a figure of 50%. That level of increased spend is the maximum
permitted under the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Regulation 72). Any
additional spend can lead to a procurement challenge which would likely be
successful.

There is therefore a requirement for the procurement of a new Works contract
to avoid the risk of any challenge. It is considered that to procure a
Professional Services contract and a Structures Consultancy contract at the
same time is the best way forward. Any new procurement routes will have to
comply with EU Public Procurement Regulations, the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 and the Councils Contract Procedure Rules.

The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 thresholds for Works and Services are
as follows:

e For works contracts £4,733,252
e For services contracts £189,330

Any new Transport and Highways Professional Services and Structures
Consultancy contracts will incorporate significant core and additional work for
delivery over the next five years. This includes:

Core annual capital expenditure

e £971,000 Integrated Transport Capital Programme;
e £1,938,000 Highway Maintenance Works Capital Programme.

Page 69



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

5.1

Additional capital funding approved

e £5.6 million from Developer Funded schemes.
e Overall over £4 million from capital investment in highway assets.

Funding subject to final approval
e £50 million for A13 East Facing Slips

Thurrock is continuing to seek further funding from sources such as the South
East Local Enterprise Partnership, Highways England and the internal capital
bid process.

The Council’s Social Value Framework will be set out in the tender documents
and bidders will be asked to propose added value initiatives that will enhance
their bid and which will be subsequently incorporated into the contractual
requirements. Typically, with this type of service provision apprenticeships
and the use of local suppliers would feature in the evaluation criteria.

In order to deliver various Council projects within the timescales, it is
recommended that the Director of Place and Director of Environment and
Highways be given delegated authority, in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder, to determine and develop the appropriate procurement route for the
transportation and highway capital works programme, followed by a tender
process and delegated award.

Any procurement process will be undertaken in accordance with the European
Union Procurement Rules, the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and the
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.

Reasons for Recommendation

The current Term Maintenance contract is likely, at its current spending levels,
to exceed its contract value by around 50%. Any additional spend over 50% is
not permitted under procurement regulations. There is therefore a need to
undertake a new Works procurement process to avoid the risk of any
procurement challenge. It is considered that to procure a Professional
Services contract and a Structures Consultancy contract at the same time is
the most efficient way forward.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)
Consultation has taken place with colleagues from the Procurement and

Transportation Teams and in the writing of this report.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

Page 70



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

This report and recommendations comply with Thurrock Council’s policies,
priorities and community impact. In particular it complies with the Thurrock
Constitution and Procurement governance.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Rosie Hurst

Interim Senior Management Accountant

This report recommends procurement of a Works contract, a Professional
Services contract and a Structures Consultancy contract. These procurements
should maximise cost efficiencies of delivering transportation and highway
schemes within the borough.

Legal

Implications verified by: Courage Emovon

Acting Strategic Lead / Deputy Head of Legal
Services / Deputy Monitoring Officer

This report makes recommendation for delegated authority and seeks
approval from Cabinet to tender for contracts as noted in the report and
subsequently award contracts as necessary for the delivery of transport and
highways services for a five years period. The value of the proposed
procurement is estimated to be above the EU threshold for Works contract.
This means that there is a legal requirement to competitively tender the
contracts. Subject to Cabinet approval, an appropriate procurement route for
the delivery of transport and highways services will be determined and any
procurement process will need to comply with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 and the Councils Contract Procedure Rules.

The Public Service Social Value Act 2012 imposes a duty upon Local
Authorities to take into consideration the promotion of economic, social and
environmental well-being when procuring services.

Social value must therefore be considered when the Council procures public
services contracts and Legal Services will be on hand to advise on any legal
implications arising from the tender.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Becky Lee

Page 71



Team Manager - Community Development and
Equalities

This report and recommendations deals with the procurement of a Works
contract, a Professional Services contract and a Structures Consultancy
contract. Social value benefits must be considered when the Council procures
public services contracts in line with the Council’s Social Values Framework.
Given the projected spend on these procurement it is seen that robust social
value benefits can be achieved.

7.4  Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder, and Impact on Looked After Children)

Not applicable.

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected
by copyright):

e Cabinet 10 June 2015 Item 18 Transportation and Highways Supply Chain
Efficiencies

e Budget Council 27 February 2019 General Fund Budget Proposals
Appendix 5

e Planning, Transport and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee
9 July 2019 Integrated Transport Block Capital Programme 2019-20
Appendix 1 and 5

9. Appendices to the report
None

Report Author:

Peter Wright

Strategic Lead — Highways Infrastructure

Environment and Highways

Page 72



Agenda Item 12

12 February 2020 ITEM: 12
Decision: 110523

Cabinet

A13 East Facing Access Scheme Update

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Councillor Mark Coxshall, Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Strategic Planning

Accountable Assistant Director: Leigh Nicholson, Interim Assistant Director of
Planning, Transport and Public Protection.

Accountable Director: Andrew Millard — Director of Place

This report is public

In 2018 the Council submitted a funding bid for £48.5m through the Major Road
Network (MRN) Funding Submission for an east facing access on the A13. Following
a Ministerial Announcement by the Secretary of State for Transport in October 2018,
Department for Transport (DfT) invited Thurrock Council to make an Outline
Business Case and Detailed Design for the scheme.

The Outline Business Case and Detailed Design cannot be taken forward until a
robust process of Options Assessment has been undertaken. This report seeks to
update Members on the general progress relating to the A13 East Facing Access
(EFA) scheme and to provide greater detail on the Options Assessment Report
(OAR) process.

The report also sets out the next steps in relation to proposed timescales for
progressing scheme options to Outline Business Case, updated scheme costs,
detailed design and Full Business Case submission to DfT.

1. Recommendations

1.1 Cabinet note and endorse the work undertaken to develop the A13 East
Facing Access scheme to date.

1.2 Cabinet note and endorse the Options Assessment process identifying
the sifting process and prioritisation of schemes for submission to the
Department for Transport.

1.3 Cabinet note the funding implications associated with the A13 East
Facing Access scheme options, as set out in Section 7.

Page 73



1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Agree that the Director of Place in consultation with the Cabinet Member
for Regeneration and Strategic Planning submit the outline business case
to the Department for Transport and continue to develop the full business
case for the scheme.

Introduction and Background

The implementation of an A13 East Facing Access road project (often referred
to as ‘East Facing Slip Roads’) is a long-held ambition for Thurrock Council.
Access improvements would enhance capacity at J30 of the M25 (a nationally
significant part of the strategic road network) and would support free-flowing
traffic on the A13 and unlock congestion and gridlock issues across Thurrock,
South Essex and the wider Thames Estuary area.

The Thurrock Local Plan Issues and Options Stage 2 Consultation Document
(December 2018) set out the Councils ambition to deliver 32,000 new homes
and 24,500 new jobs. In many ways, the level of growth is dependent on the
capacity of the A13.

The project is fundamentally focused on simplifying the A126/A13 access
arrangements leading to significant benefits in terms of relieving congestion
and associated potential environmental improvements by reducing traffic
flows and travel distances on the adjacent road network, including the A1306
and B186.

As shown in Figure 1, the area of scope for the A13 EFA scheme includes the
A13 between M25 J30 and North Stifford Interchange, the A1306 Arterial
Way, the A126 and the B186.

Figure 1: Area of impact

w— Styategic Road Network (SRN)
w— Major Road Network (MRN)
- Aand BRoads

{ Sources: © OpenStreetMap contributors |

Page 74



2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Option Assessment Report (OAR) sets out the key transport problems,
transport needs, objectives and high-level options for the East Facing Access
scheme. The aim of the OAR is to identify and consider all reasonable
scheme options, to set out why certain options have not been selected and
which options have been prioritised for inclusion in the Outline Business
Case.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options
Current and future issues

As set out above, there has been a longstanding desire to improve the
connection between the Lakeside basin and the strategic road network. Many
of the traffic-related issues in the basin and surrounding built-up area are
directly related to the lack of direct access to the A13 to travel east.

The local road network does not experience the traditional ‘commuter’ peaks
in the morning and evening rush hours. Due to the prevalence of the retail
employment in the area, the evening peak extends from early afternoon
through to early evening through the week and weekends meaning that the
poor traffic conditions are experienced by shoppers, workers and residents for
a considerable portion of the week.

Excess traffic on the local roads has been seen to lead to:

e Congestion and slow journey speeds through much of the day;

¢ Collision concentrations can be seen at the Stifford Interchange due to the
high volumes of conflicting traffic, moving in a constantly stop-start manner
due to queuing;

e The A1306 in particular is the location for Air Quality Management Areas
(AQMA), where the amount of private and commercial traffic has pollution
impacts.

Through the analysis of national traffic forecasts, it is estimated that vehicle
trips at peak times are expected to increase between 17-26% across the
study area between 2018 and 2036. Without key infrastructure investment or
significant changes in travel demand and behaviour, this growth will
exacerbate the existing issues and make it unviable for business to expand or
move to the area.

Objectives
The overarching objective of the A13 East Facing Access scheme is to
improve strategic connectivity to the east which will reduce congestion across

the study area. This will have an impact on journeys along the A13, traffic
visiting and leaving Lakeside as well as local traffic.

Page 75



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Reducing congestion will increase the capacity available in the local network,
which will be able to accommodate future population, housing and economic
growth planned in Thurrock.

The scheme will support sustainable growth and improve local accessibility,
not only by road but also by other sustainable modes; the scheme will help to
reduce severance on the B186 and A1306 and where possible create
opportunities for dedicated infrastructure for walking and cycling.

The scheme will also reduce the likelihood of accidents, improve air quality
and have minimal impacts on the local environment in order to ensure there
are overall improvements to physical and mental wellbeing.

Option assessment process

In order to align with the DfT’s Transport Appraisal Process, the following
three-stage process has been adopted to support the selection of scheme
options:

A - Appraising a range of strategic level solutions (rather than specific
interventions) including all transport modes, managing demand as well as an
option to do nothing.

The result of Stage A was the identification of online and offline highway
approaches to be the focus for the remainder of the appraisal process.

B - Undertaking a long-listing exercise identifying many feasible online and
offline highways options which fall under the preferred strategic approach, and
then assessing those options against a range of social, economic and
environmental criteria to lead to a shortlist.

The outcome of Stage B was the progression of options 6B, 1A, 4B, 4A and
2A to Stage C for further appraisal.

C - Appraising the shortlisted options (6B, 1A, 4B, 4A and 2A) to understand
in greater depth the likely impacts and deliverability of the scheme options.

The result of Stage C was the identification of a set of preferred options to
take forward for detailed assessment in the Outline Business Case (OBC).

The first two stages have been completed using a combination of desktop
constraint and opportunity analysis, engineering judgment and stakeholder
(Thurrock Council officers) involvement.

The framework used to appraise the options assessment was Mott
MacDonald’s in-house Investment Sifting and Evaluation Toolkit (INSET).
INSET functions by undertaking a scoring assessment of multiple criteria,
categorised by broader themes. The themes considered are:

Page 76



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

. Transport Benefits . Wider Economic Benefits

. Environment . Social Impacts

. Alignment with Objectives . Deliverability

The full criteria applied under these broad themes at each stage can be seen
in Appendix A.

Stage A
In Stage A, the strategic level solutions identified for appraisal were:

e Do nothing

New/improved bus services

Increased rail frequencies

Demand management

Park & Ride

Online highway improvements — improving the existing highway
infrastructure.

e Offline highway improvements — new roads or substantial infrastructure
e Traffic management

e Active travel

The scoring of the strategic solutions determined that online and offline
highway solutions were the most appropriate to take forward to Stage B.
Active travel initiatives also scored highly, but such interventions on their own
will not support the wider strategic connectivity objectives of the A13 EFA
scheme. Consequently, active travel improvements are advised to be
incorporated into both online and offline highways proposals.

Stage B

For the Stage B appraisal, a total of 21 potential online and offline highways
schemes were drawn up. Sketches and descriptions can be found in
Appendix B. All options were presented to officers from Thurrock Council to
gather local knowledge and consolidate understanding as to which options
are likely to be most plausible and feasible. These views were then
incorporated into the scoring for the Stage B appraisal.

The Stage B appraisal assessed the transport benefits, wider economic
benefits, environment, social impacts, alignment with objectives and
deliverability themes in greater detail. The scores assigned to the 21 potential
online and offline highway schemes in Stage B also incorporate several
constraints. These included:

. Environmental . Ancient . AQMAs
designations Woodland

. Flood zones . Wildlife sites . Buildings

. Travellers site . Listed buildings | Infrastructure

Page 77



3.17

3.18

3.19

. Rail line

. Overbridges . Level changes

Following completion of Stage B, the highest scoring options were 6B and

1A. Options 4B, 4A and 2A scored slightly lower than the top performing
options but were still recognised as valid schemes to progress to the short-list.
(Option scoring is attached in Appendix C)

Stage C

The five short-listed options were reappraised at Stage C, including
undertaking preliminary traffic modelling to understand the relative impacts.
The preferred options (1A and 6B) were progressed to the Outline Business
Case (OBC) stage.

Confirmation of the options and next steps
It is suggested that the options to be taken forward to OBC are Options 6B
and 1A. These options have been shown to score the highest in all themes

and against most criteria throughout the Stage A and B assessment.

Figure 2: Option 6B

" | a06392/0pt68/001

Page 78




Figure 3: Option 1A

3.20 The above options scored particularly highly against the potential to deliver
improved connectivity on both the local and strategic networks, and thereby
reduce congestion, severance and accidents.

Rank Scheme | Transport | Wider Environment | Social Alignment | Deliverability
Benefits Economic Impacts | with
Benefits (QOL) objective
1 6B Very Very Neutral- | Very | Very Neutral-
good good poor good | good good
2 1A Very Good Poor Very Good Neutral-
good good good

3.21 Nevertheless, both options will potentially have environmental and
deliverability issues which will need to be mitigated during the design
development stages. Option 1A would involve removal of an area of
designated ancient woodland which would require significant mitigation.
Option 1A also involves rail crossings and the loss of part of the existing
football ground. Option 6B avoids the ancient woodland and public open
space but has more significant impact on the existing football ground as well
as an existing residential area and coach park. It also has the potential to
frustrate the proposed housing development at Arena Essex.

3.22

The cost estimate for the preferred schemes has increased from the initial
costs identified in the 2018 MRN submission. This is a result of undertaking a
more robust costing approach to the scheme and the need to apply a higher
level of risk funding to the proposed schemes.

Page 79




3.23 The OBC will be submitted to DfT in February 2020. The Council can expect
to receive confirmation from DfT within 4-6 weeks, following Minister approval.
DfT will advise regarding the timeline and submission for the Full Business
Case so that procurement of detailed design, project management and
construction contracts can be progressed.

It is anticipated that the scheme will commence on site towards in mid-2023.
4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1  A13 East Facing Access presents a ‘game changing’ opportunity in terms of
enhanced connectivity and the network relief that will be applied across the
local and strategic network. This scheme will improve capacity at J30 of the
M25 (a nationally significant part of the strategic road network). It will also
deliver free-flowing traffic on the A13 and unlock congestion and gridlock
issues across Thurrock, South Essex and the Thames Estuary.

4.2  Delivering this additional capacity at J30, by removing both east bound and
west bound traffic from this junction, will help to unlock the Council’s
requirement to deliver new homes and jobs in Thurrock. East Facing Access
will also support the emerging South Essex 2050 Vision and Joint Strategic
Plan (JSP) which identifies the A13 Corridor as a Strategic Area of
Opportunity for the wider South Essex area where there is a need to deliver
over 100,000 new homes in the period up to 2038 to meet future housing
needs.

4.3  Failure to deliver an access improvement scheme on the A13 could stifle
development potential within Thurrock and across the wider South Essex
area.

4.4  Options 6B and 1A are to be taken forward to Outline Business Case
submission to DfT in February 2020. These options have scored particularly
highly against scheme objectives and potential to deliver improved
connectivity on both the local and strategic networks. The scheme costs for
Options 1A and 6B have increased from the initial MRN submission, and
these costs will need to borne by a combination of DfT funding and local
sources, including developer contributions and Council funds.

5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)
5.1  Scheme options have been discussed and analysed within several workshop
sessions in order to identify all reasonable possibilities. These options have

undergone a ‘sifting’ process in order to identify the most suitable schemes.

5.2  High level discussion, with DfT and Highways England have progressed in
order to gain a level of support for the scheme options.

5.3  Following submission of the OBC the Council will commence a more robust
and focused programme of community and stakeholder engagement. This will

Page 80



5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

7.1

include community events and opportunities for the scheme objectives and
details to be discussed and understood further.

The consultants for this scheme have a wide level of experience in community
engagement and they will work closely with the Council’s Community
Engagement team to ensure that every opportunity for input and discussion is
afforded.

PTR Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered a report on EFAS on
21.01.2020. Members of the Committee voiced their support for the scheme
and its objectives. The key areas of discussion focussed upon the
deliverability of the scheme, scheme finances, and scrutiny over the options
assessment work.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

A13 East Facing Access will have an impact upon all communities within
Thurrock. Implementing a scheme which improves connectivity and
subsequently removes congestion and gridlock from the road network and
improves traffic flow on local roads will support economic growth and promote
Thurrock’s Local Plan aspirations.

Improved network functionality and resilience will make Thurrock a more
attractive place for business and developers to locate and enhance
communities, making Thurrock a place where people of all ages can work,
play, live and stay in a clean environment that everyone has reason to take
pride in.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Jonathan Wilson
Assistant Director, Finance

The scheme cost (both scheme options) is likely to be within the range of
£70m-£85m

These costs are subject to additional scrutiny and may increase / decrease as
scheme design and other factors are progressed.

DfT funding allocations will be attributed to 90% of the total scheme cost. The
remaining 10% is to be allocated from contributions from Thurrock Council
and other sources (such as developer contributions). This will be subject to
consideration of the overall final projected cost to the Council.

Page 81



7.2

7.3

Thurrock Council has already committed £3.5m to this scheme through the
internal capital bid process. Developer contributions, equating to c£E2.9m have
been sought and are currently at different levels of negotiation and discussion.

It should be noted that both scheme options include a risk contingency of
approximately £19m. Further discussion with the DfT will be undertaken to
understand how additional costs will be allocated between funding partners.

Should the indicative costs exceed the provisional estimate for the scheme
(inclusive of the contingency), then this will be reported back to Members.
These costs will be better understood once the detailed design work has been
undertaken.

Legal

Implications verified by: Tim Hallam

Acting Head of Law, Assistant Director of Law
and Governance and Monitoring Officer

Legal Implications are contained within the body of the report, setting out the
MRN bidding process, the Ministerial Announcement by the Secretary of State
for Transport in October 2018 and DfT invitation to progress an Outline
Business Case and Detailed Design.

An Options Assessment Report has been submitted to DfT and the Outline
Business Case will be submitted to the department in February 2020 as
requested, allowing detailed design and Full Business Case submission to be
progressed.

There will be opportunity to apprise the Committee of the consenting route
and likely timescales for business case submission and scheme construction.
These elements can be covered in more detail as required.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie Smith

Strategic Lead — Community Development and
Equalities

An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken as the preferred A13 East
Facing Access scheme is progressed.

The assessment will focus on key groups and locations across the borough to
identify if the scheme has any adverse impact upon them and the mitigation
measures that should be considered and applied, taking account of legislative
considerations such as the Equality Act.

Page 82



7.4  Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder, and Impact on Looked After Children)

None

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):
¢ MRN Funding submission
9. Appendices to the report

e Appendix A — Assessment criteria
e Appendix B — Longlisted Schemes
e Appendix C — Scheme Option Scoring

Report Author:

Mat Kiely
Transportation Services Strategic Lead
Transport Development

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Assessment Criteria

Page 85



Page 86



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements
Option Assessment Report

6

6.1
G

Initial option assessment (Steps 5 - 6)

Step 5 — Generating options

In order to identify an appropriate intervention that can achieve the objectives set out in
Chapter 5, a multi-layered optioneering process is required.

Optioneering within Stage 1 of the Transport Appraisal Process for a transport
intervention can be undertaken in a three-step process of Multi-Criteria Assessment
(MCA) framework:

A. Appraising a range of strategic level solutions (rather than specific interventions)
including all transport modes, managing demand as well as the option to do
nothing. The result of this stage is to identify which strategic approaches should
be focused on in the remainder of the appraisal

B. Undertaking a long-listing exercise identifying as many feasible options which fall
under the preferred strategic approach, and then assessing those options against
the criteria to lead to a shortlist.

C. Further assessment of the shortlisted options to identify a set of preferred options
to take forward of further assessment in the Outline Business Case (OBC).

The content of the previous chapters of this report highlight that the fundamental
transport issues are caused by available capacity are outweighed by excess demand in
the local area. Strategic solutions should therefore be seeking to introduce additional
capacity, reduce the demand on the network or a combination of the two.

At Stage A (the strategic level), potential solutions can be drawn from all transport
modes and methods of managing demand. The list of solutions has been identified as:

e Do nothing

e New/improved bus services - provide more bus services on the A13, A1089, A282
and on smaller roads in and around the Chafford Hundred/Grays area.

e Increased rail frequencies - increase services from Chafford Hundred, Grays, Tilbury
Town and Purfleet railway stations

e Demand management - implement parking charges at intu Lakeside shopping
centre, or install road charges on or between the A13, A282 and A1089

e Park & Ride — build a remote Park & Ride site and provide onward transport

e Online highway improvements — improving the existing highway infrastructure.

e Offline highway improvements — new roads or substantial infrastructure to provide
east facing access to the A13

e Traffic management - implement effective road closures in the Grays/Chafford
Hundred area which do not worsen the level of traffic congestion elsewhere in the
area. Also apply Traffic Regulation Orders to restrict the types of vehicles able to
route through the area.

e Active travel — providing dedicated infrastructure for pedestrians and cyclists,
improving the local connectivity and safety

The outcome of Stage A will provide one or more selected strategic solutions which
have been assessed as providing the best opportunity for meeting the scheme
objectives and resolving the identified transport problems.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 87

47



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements
Option Assessment Report

6.2
6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

At Stage B, a second round of optioneering will identify a long-list of options drawn from
the preferred strategic solutions.

Multi-criteria assessment methodology

The MCA framework used in evaluating the potential solutions and options is Mott
MacDonald’s in-house Investment Sifting and Evaluation Toolkit (INSET). INSET is a
scalable and flexible tool that can be adapted for any stage of the scheme business
case development process to help decision-makers manage information on investment
options and evaluate them across multiple criteria. It provides a clear and transparent
audit trail to demonstrate how selected schemes have been prioritised or selected for
further scheme development and enables a wider conversation around the merits of
individual schemes or investment decisions. For other studies, INSET has been used in
stakeholder engagement sessions, transport committee meetings and in peer review
settings to illustrate how robust decisions have been arrived upon.

INSET functions through undertaking a scoring assessment of multiple criteria which
could include social, economic or environmental indicators of scheme performance.
Assessment criteria are commonly defined as measurable elements that can be linked
to an evidence base. Based on the detail of the data provided, a scoring framework is
developed through which each of the criteria can be appraised. This can range from a
simple “Yes/No" query (e.g. does the scheme pass through a flood risk area?) to a more
quantified response based on scoring bands (e.g. how much employment land could be
unlocked by this intervention?).

Themes

For the assessment of the A13 East Facing Access study, the following themes have
been set:

e Transport benefits

e Wider economic benefits

e Environmental impact

e Social impacts

e Alignment with objectives

e Deliverability

Underpinning the assessment of these themes are structured main and sub criteria. The
number of criteria changes depending on the stage of the assessment as the level of

detail and appraisal increases. Table 10 provides the incremental evolution of the
criteria used for assessment at the three stage of optioneering.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 88



610Z JaquanoN 0Z | L00-8-100-08-26€90v | 8| 100 | Z6ES0Y

Sa[easawl |
Aunqeydaooe sapjoyadels
Axaidwo) Ayixajdwoo Jo |anaT] Axejdwo) Ayixadwos Jo jana] Axajdwo)
Aungerdadoe aland
Ayxajdwod Buusasuibug
1502 awayos Aunqepioyy 1502 awayos Aungepioyy 1500 swWaYyds Annqepioyy
‘Butag|iem |eyusw pue |edisAyd ‘Buiaqjiem [eyuaw pue [eoishud ‘Buiaq|iem [ejuaw pue |esisAud
WMo uiseq uiseq
uiseq spisaxer] ul 16 dlqeuesng opisaye ul Lﬁso‘_m d|qeuleisng mgaooao apisayeT ul £§>O._m d|qeuleisng m&>_~ow—no
SOARORKI0 L IESURONY m JuaLUBIY yim JuaLuBiy

ymoub o1wouods g uopeindod ymodB o1wouos 3 uonejndod ymoJb o1wouos g uoneindod

S8AR3[qo Aoljod Japim yim 314 SaAR22[qo oljod Japim Yim )14 saAoa[qo Aoljod Japim UM 314
5I0OM}aU PEOJ [BO0] UO IR} JO SWN[OA Padnpay ERITEIETETS

sjoedw [e100S edw [eloog sjpedw! [e100s 1oedw [e100S
3I0M}aU 8y} Uo sjuapiode Ainful jeuosiad aonpay Aajes
J91ep\ Jarem
asioN asioN
ABojoo3 ABojoo3
Joedw| [R)USIUOIAUT joedWw! [BJUSWIUOCIAUT JUBLUUOJIAUS 3y} Uo Joedu| Joedw [BJUSIUOIAUT
abejuay [eImnd abejuay [eamnd
adeospue] adeospue]
Ayjenb iy Ayenb ay
Ayoeded podsuesy paseasou| uymoub Joy ayebnipy fyoeded podsues) paseasou| ywmouB oy arebiy

pue| 0} sseooe panosdw|

juswdojanap a|qeuy

pue| 0} ssaooe panosduw|

juswdo|anap a|qeus

ymoJb 1oy
ajebniw pue JaAIap 0} [eRUSI0d

ymmoJb oy ayebiiw
PUE JaAI|ap 0} [eRUS}0d

Kejap sJomjau peol oibsjess paonpay

Kejop 3I0MjaU peod [220] paonpay

Ja1181 uopsabuo)

uonsabuoo analjas 0} Ay

Jol181 uonsabuo)

uonsabuod analjas 0} gy

Ja1191 uonsabuo)

suonoun( ¢V je Aejap ui uoonpay

GZIN Pue 92|\ usamjaq dujes; Ul uolonpay

AyAposuuod o16ajens

Aynpoauuod oibajesis anosdw|

Anposuuod oibajens

Ayanosuuoo oibajesns anosdw|

Ayanosuuo oifejens

soounyL
1S8/\\ ybnouy} senos Jayjo uo sawp Aauinol aonpay

palpuni pioyeyd pue ¥o0unyL
1S9\ YBnouyl 90€Lv/9818 2y} uo sawy Aauinof aonpay

Ainnoauuod (207

Ayngosuuod [ea0o] anosdwy

AAnosuuod [eoo7]

AjARoaUL0D [B20] aA0IdW|

Annosuuod (2207

elI9JIo qng

B89 ulep

eU2)UD QNS

elIsy9 ue|

BLIJID qNS

e8I Uty

suondo 3si|-poys - o abejs

suondo 3si|-6uo- g abeis

suopnjos d163ajens - y abeis

Riiqeidnijeg

TG EE] (o)
Y3im juswiubijy

(2417 jo Aijenp) ©
sjoedu) jeroog A

JUSBLLUO

sjyauag
21WLIOU093 J9PIM

sjijauag
yodsuer)

abe}s 1 ISNI Aq e119)110 JuUaW)SSasSY 0} dlqel

yoday Juawssassy uondo
sjuewanoidw| ssa20y Buroed 1se3 €LV | pleuogoe How



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements
Option Assessment Report

6.2.5

6.2.6

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.3.7

6.3.8

Option scoring

INSET allows for a variety of scoring mechanisms which can be tailored to suite specific
criteria. For example, environmental impacts may be scored on a 5-point or 7-point
scale from large negative being the lowest score and large positive the highest score.
Alternatively, an option’s fit to local policy may range from 0-5 where 5 is a strong fit.
Some criteria may simply have a yes or no answer. INSET not only allows for various
methods to be used within the same framework, it can also ‘normalise’ all scores to
allow the different mechanisms to be treated in the same way.

Furthermore, INSET allows criteria to be weighted depending on importance to the
overall assessment.

Step 6 - Initial sifting
INSET Stage A

At this stage, transport benefits have been treated as the most important factor.
Therefore, the category has been given a weighting of two, whereas all other categories
are one. Additionally, within the deliverability category, the complexity score has been
deemed twice as important as the estimated costing of the scheme. The deliverability
category weighting has remained at one.

Table 11 summarises a comparison of how the strategic solutions scored against the six
assessment themes. Whilst a Do Nothing scenario has been included within the
assessment, it is used as a baseline against which to compare the other solutions. As
such, it's performance will not be commented as it will clearly fail to resolve the known
transport problems.

Within the table, very good describes criteria which the scheme does not have any
negative qualities against. Good describes the criteria schemes mostly provide benefit
to, with reasonably good highlighting that there are some negativities. Neutral describes
the criteria that the scheme does not impact. Very poor indicates that there are no
positives the scheme provides when compared with the criteria and poor describes
criteria where the negatives outweigh the positives.

Offline and online highway are shown to be most effective at providing transport
benefits whilst it is felt that bus priority lanes, traffic management and demand
management will have the least impact due to the failure to result in mode shift and an
improvement in the operation of the network.

For the Wider Economic Benefits theme, the assessment concludes that offline highway
will have the highest impact through its ability to mitigate for planned or future growth.
Aspirations to deliver growth may come forward quicker with offline improvements that
allow access to land.

Active travel, bus priority lanes, park & ride, new/improved bus services and increase
rail services all have positive environmental benefits, whilst offline and online highway
schemes have negative environmental impacts. All other schemes are neutral.

All schemes are expected to have a positive impact on quality of life, apart from
demand management which will be costly to the user and unfairly disadvantage those
on lower incomes.

Active travel is the scheme that is most in line with the objectives, due to the fact it is
sustainable and has positive benefits to health. Traffic management and demand
management do not align to any of the objectives in a significant way.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 90

50



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements 51
Option Assessment Report

6.3.9 All schemes have been scored highly for deliverability except for rail services which
would require new signalling systems to allow more services, and park & ride largely
due to the complexity and cost..

6.3.10 An offline highway scheme comes out with the highest overall benefits. It is expected to
provide benefits in all categories apart from the environment. This will be considered at
the following stage. Active travel, bus priority lanes and online highway also rate highly.

6.3.11 However, bus priority has very low transport benefits, whilst the lanes may improve
journey time for passengers, there is not likely to be a significant enough increase in
patronage to have an impact on the congestion. Additionally, the introduction of bus
priority lanes likely means a reduction in traffic lanes, which would lead to increased
congestion in some areas which would not solve the problem assessed in this report.
Furthermore, any improvements to the bus service are unlikely to result in the
necessary modal shift to reduce congestion.

6.3.12 Whilst an active travel scheme has positive implications, it would have no large impact
on existing congestion or providing additional capacity for future development. Instead,
active travel should be considered with a scheme which will also improve capacity.

Table 11: INSET Stage A — Comparison of strategic solution scores

Wider Economic Social Impacts Alignment with
Benefit Deli bilit
“ Transporl il Benefus m (Quality of Life) Obijectives e

Very Good Very Good Good Very Good
Reusonobly Good Neutral : Good 7 Good | Very Good i Very Good
, |[ Very Good 1 Good Poor i Good Reasonably Good Very Good
Neutral Neutral ‘7 Good - Good Reasonably Good \/ery Good
Neutral Neutral Neutral Good Neutral ”wm‘/ery Good
~ Reasonably Good Neutral Good (e Good Good Neutral
Reasonably Good Neutral ‘ | Good : : Good i Reasonably Good Reasonably Good
m}% ised rail “wanﬁ'}; Reasonably Good Neutral ‘ Good Good Reasonably Good Neutral
o Neutral Neutral Neutral Neutral {r Very Poor Very Good
Neutral Neutral Neutral Poor Neutral sVefy Good

6.3.13 The conclusions of the initial sifting of the strategic solutions are provided in Table 12
along with a decision on whether they should pass to the next stage of the assessment
or not.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 91



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements 52
Option Assessment Report

Option Description

Table 12: INSET Stage A - Strategic solution summary

Pass /

Fail

Summary of assessment

A Do nothing Fail o The existing problems with congestion and delay will remain, no additional
capacity will be created
o The air quality in the area will continue to be affected
o Drivers will still have to sit in congestion
o No immediate costs
B New/ Fail o Could lead to slight increase in patronage
improved bus o Minimal impact on capacity and reduction in emissions
services o Provides sustainable alternative for local residents
o Can be costly and complex to implement
C Increased rail |Fail o Could lead to slight increase in patronage
frequencies o Minimal impact on capacity and reduction in emissions
o Provides sustainable alternative for commuters to/from the area
o Would be costly and complex to implement new signalling systems
D Demand Fail o Congestion and delay could be shifted elsewhere if road charges were
management implemented -, "
o The relative impact on overall congestion and omissions would be minimal
o Cause of economic disparity
o Reasonably low cost
E Park & Ride |Fail o Would likely lead to a small increase in capacity
o The correct location could improve accessibility of new development
o Potentially small reduction in emissions
o Can be costly and complex
F Online Pass | © Would provide some reduction in congestion and increase capacity slightly
highway o Minimal positive environmental impacts
o _Can be delivered more easily than offline highway improvements
G Offline Pass | © Could significantly reduce localised congestion and improve capacity
highway o Minimal positive environmental impacts
o Could be implemented with sustainable measures
o Costly and complex to implement
H Traffic Fail o Could have a negative impact on congestion and capacity overall
management o Could locally improve air quality and noise pollution, but have a negative
impact elsewhere
o Potentially improving the local area for residents
o Low cost
| Bus Priority |Pass | © Reduce journey time for passengers
Lanes o Limited potential to result in mode shift
o Potentially reduce traffic lanes, therefore increasing congestion in some areas
o Provides sustainable alternative for local residents
o Can be costly to acquire the land
J Walking/cyclin [Pass | © Improve local connectivity
g o Minimal impacts on congestion and air quality
infrastructure o Sustainable alternative, health benefits
o Can be implemented alongside another scheme, therefore reasonable low
cost

INSET Stage B

6.3.14 A long-list of 21 offline and online highway interventions have been identified for the
second appraisal stage, for which sketches and descriptions can be seen in Table 13.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 92




APPENDIX B

Longlisted Schemes

Page 93



Page 94



610Z JoquanoN 0z | L00-8-100-08-26€90 | 8 | L0O | Z6E90Y

JonJjsuod

0} }INoWyIp 29 pINom OEr SZIN 0} yoeoudde ayy uo 1Y ay) ojuo Buibiey
uswinae |ies Buysixa je pua o} sdijs buioe) jsea MaN

paysijowap aq 0} paau pinom sdiis Buoey punogysam Bunsixg
aBpuqiano mau e Aq pajoauuod £1Y JO YINOS puB YUou Sjnogepunol
|leqquinp Mau pue Ogf GZIA Oy/Wol saue| AJljiXne Jo UolonAsuo)

abpuqiano pue dis-go punogisea Bunsixa jo uonijowaq

juswinge |ies Bunsixe Je pua o) sdijs Buroey sea meN

Aep [euspyY Yoouny L IS9M JO

yuou 9z L uiof o} ‘aul| [1es Jano Jade) ajdwis se pajonsisuod dijs-4o gMm
aul| |leJ Jano

JNOQEPUNOS WIBYUOU Y} Wolj pajonisuod dis-uo g3 Jade) sjdwis meN
9Z1V UOo €1V JO Yinos pue yuou synogepunol |[oqquinp

painbiyuooal ‘abpuaiano pue dis-}o g3 paubijeas jo uononnsuo)

-abpuqgiano pue dijs-yo punogjses Bunsixa jo uonijowsq

Aep [euspy Yoouny L JS9AN JO Yuou

‘9Z1V 0} due swub|id uo JNOGEPUNO. UISYINOS WOJS PBOI YUl MON
€1V 0} suonounl mau wouy sdijs-jyo pue uo Jadey sjdwis buioey jse3

1534
10 YINOS pUE Ypou ‘sueT swubjid UO PajONIISUOD SINOGePUNos MaN
auy et

18M0 ‘aueT swubjid 0} Jnogepunol [|2qquinp UJSYLIOU WOoJj peos JulT
9Z1V UOo €1V JO YInos pue yuou sjnogepunol ||oqqunp
painBiyuodal ‘ebpuqgsano pue dijs-jo g3 paubijeas jo uooNAsu0)
aull-yo uayeuapun ‘diis-yo g3 bunsixe Jo uonijowaq

Kem |euapy soounyy

eJ SS0J0 0} dijs g\ JO uonenuluoD
aue

swubjid uo uonounl mau je pua o) €Y woly dijs-Jo g JO uonoNISuU0D
Jade) ajdwis se uonounl mau woly g1y 03 dijs g3 Jo uoonsu0D

€LV Jo ypou ‘aue swubjid

uo uonouNl MauU 0} dUB| PaJEIPaP B SB Yul| M3U JO UOKENURUCD

"aul| |1ed 8y} ssouo 0) Jybiay uieb oy doo| pajensie ue

ui Buisy ‘Jnogepunod [|2qquiNp UJBYHOU WoJ) PaJONIISUOD Uil §3 MaN
obpuqueno Bunsixe o) Buipea) dijs-jjo g3 paubijeas Jo uononysuo)

1S3/ 4O yHou 09z 1V ulof pue aul

uondussa@

L

ol

06

abew|

g6
uondo

pue|pOOM Judloue pajeubisap ‘pPoop uleqgyoug jo ped 1oayy  ©
au||-yo uayepapun ‘dis-yo g3 Bunsixa jo uonljowaq o
aul| [1eJ 8y} Jano abpuq mau e Buuinbai ‘dijs-yo g Jo uononssuo) o
Jade} ejdwis e se pajon)suod gLy o) dis-uo g3 o
auj| [1ed 8y} ssoJo o} Jybiay uieb oy dooj
pejeAsjd ue ul Buisy ‘}nogepunol [|2qquinp WaYHOoU WoJj PajonJsuod Yulj g3 MaN ©
abpuqlano Bupsixa oy Buipes) dis-yo g3 paubijeas jo uononysuo) o
PUB|POOM Jualoue pajeubisap ‘POOAA WEGOLG (B 108y ©
aull-140 auop aq ued ‘dijs-yo g3 Bunsixa jo uonlowsg o
aul| |1es Jano dijs-J4o gAA JO uononIsuo) o
paJinbal Buiuapim ou ‘Aem-omy apew abpugieng o
QAIND BY) UIYNIM pajonssuod dijs-uo Jade) sjdwis g3 o
abpuqgiano Bunsixe o} Buipes| diis-yo g3 paubijeas jo uononsuo) o
juawdo|anap [eljuapisal Joj d|qe|leA. €LY JO UINOS 3y} 0} BaJe 80nNpay ©
pue|poom jusioue pajeubisap ‘pooA weagyoug Jo Jed payy o
€1V J0 aInsojo asnbas pjnom uonijowap
abpuq Jano Bupsixa ‘aul-yo paje|dwod dijs-jJo gM pue dis-yo g3 Bunixe jo uoniiowsq ©
aul| |les Jano
sBuissoso mau BulploAe ‘g1 JO UINos ay) 0) pajonisuod dijs-yo pue uo g Jejwis o
dijs-140 8y} 40 BAIND BY} UIYYIM pajonuisuod dijs-uo Jade) sjdwis g3 ©
€1V 40 YInos ‘9z uo Jnogepunol paubiesy ©
€1V SsoIoe abpuqIano meN o
obJanip Bunsixe ay) jo Jsea ay) 0} Buiuels dis-yo g3 paubieas jo uoyonysuo)y o
921V uo
JNOQEPUNOJ []9qqWNP PaInbluooal 0} payul| B)IS BUBIY X8SST UIYIIM JNOQEPUNOl MBN  ©
LY
2y} pue aul| ABM|IBS SSOID 0} PAJBASID ‘YIN0S By} 0) €LY UNM [9][esed peod jull MeN  ©
painbuuooal Aep\ [BUSHY MO0LNYL IS O) jul] o
€1V JO YInos pue yuou aue swubjid uo paiinbas suogounf mMeN o
€1V pue aueT swubjid usamjaq sdijs Buioe) }ses Jo uononisuo) o
uonoun( pasiel Mau Je 9zZLY sulol peol jur] o
aul| Aem|iel SS0I0 0} pajeA|d ‘UINos 3y} 0} €LY YIM [9]jeJed peos yull MeN  ©
painBiyuodas MYLM O} JuIl o
€1V Jo yinos pue yuou aueT swubjid uo pasinbai suogounl meN o
€1V pue aueT swub|id usamiaq sdijs Guioe) }sea jo uoonsuo)y o
uondissa@g

V6

oI

Page 95

g9

yoday Juawssassy uondo
syuswanoidw ssaady Buioed ise3 €LY | pleuogoeiy HoW

v9
uopdo




610 s2quanoN 0Z | 100-8-100-08-26€90¥ | 8 | 100 | Z6ES0Y

peoy yjaqez||3 pue sueT swub|d je sjuswanoisdwy uonounp

Z10LV pue apisaye uaamjag MV.LM Jjo Buijieng

(Aemybiy

J0U) MV LM 0} syued Jeo Buiddoys apisaye] wouy Ajoeded aseasou)
1sea ay) 0} aul| |leJ ay}

Buissouo ‘ysam Jayuny pajeoo| dijs-4o (gM) PUNOGISAM JO UOHONIISUOD
ainjonuselju) ajpko/snq pajesipap Buionposul

Alenuajod ‘eale [efuapIsal Ul SUOHOLISaI JYed) JO UORONPOLU|

€1V ojuo sdys Jade) ajdwis Buioey jse3

€1V JO Yyuou pue yjnos o} aue swubjid uo pajonsuod suonounf MaN
MV.LM e sjuawanosdwy uonounp

€1V 8y} 0) peoy Jauua Buoje pue

peoy Jauua4 9gLg o) anuad Guiddoys apisaye woly Ajoedes aseasou|

ainjnuseljul 819ko/snq pajesipap Bunpolul

Ajlenuajod ‘eale |enuapisal u| SUOHOU)SaI DYl JO UOHONPOIIU|

€1V ojuo sdis Jade) ajdwis Guioe) yseq

€1V JO yuou pue yjnos o} sue] swubjid uo pajonJsuod suonoun maN
MV.LM 1€ sjuawanoidwy uopounp

€1V 8Uy) 0} peoy Jauua4 Buoje pue

peoy Jauuad 9g|g o} anuad buiddoys apisaye wouy Ayoeded asealou|

sajnos Bunsixa moj|0) pjnom oljel) punoqissp

diis-uo Jade)

o|dwis Buioey g3 ue pue g1y Jo ypou aue swubjid uo uonounf meN
Kem swubjid pue apisaye usamiaq MV.LM Jo Bullieng

(Aemybiy

J0u) MV LM 0} syued Jeo Buiddoys apisaye] wouj Ajoeded aseasou)

€1V ojuo sdijs Jade) ajdwis Buioe) jseg

€1V JO yuou pue yinos o} aue] swubjid uo pajonsuod suonounf maN
MV.LM 1€ sjuswanoidwy uopounp

€1V 8y) 0) peoy Jauua4 Buoje pue

peoy Jauua4 9g|g o} anuad Buiddoys apisaye wouy Ayoedes asealou|

€1V ojuo sdyjs Jade) a|dws Buioe) yse3

€1V JO yuou pue yjnos o} aue swubjid uo pajonssuod suonounf MeN
Aep swubjid pue apisayeT uaamiaq MV.LM Jo Bulieng

(Aemybiy

J0u) MV LM 0} syued Jeo Buiddoys apisaye wouj Ajoeded aseasou)

uopdiiosag

o 0O o0 oo

o0 00O

Eld

ar

or

av

uondo

OEr GZ 18 £1Y ulof pjnom oyjes g3
GZIN 0) o1eJ) g3 1oeJ)e 0) ABAA [BUBMY Yo0ouNy] JSBAA uo Ajoeded asealsou)

sd)|s Bunsixa Jo Jsea gV 0} }0auuod pinom sdijs gM pue g3 maN

‘paJinbal aq pjnom

uoyesedas Jo [ans| yunoy e Buneaso speos dis pajeasie os ‘Ajoeded je si ogr GZN
GZIN 0) o1el) g3 10eJ)e 0) ABAA [BUBUY Yo0uNY] JSBAA Uo Ajoeded aseasou)

aoeds uado 2)jqnd B SS010 0S|E P|NOM JNQ 'POOAA WEQHNOLG UO J08)48 SSaT

aull-}jo paja|dwod aq pjnod siom ay) Jo Auolely

1sea ay) o} au| |ies ay) Buissouo'diis-)jo (GM) PUNOQISBM JO UONONIISUOD

€1V uo ypim apinoid o) abpuq aue wubjid Jo uononssuosal pue uopijowsp salnbay
Jade) aue| Aejjixne se g1y uiof pjnom dyjs-uo g3

Kemjiey Jano peol dijs pajeAs|a o) pea| ||2qquinp Waypou wouj }Ixa MaN

paJinbas Bujuapim ou ‘Aem-om) apew abpuq g1y Bunsixg

INogepunol [|aqquinp waypou Bupixa woyj JIxa Mau e Jo UoHINIISU0D

aoeds uado 21jqnd B $S010 OS|E P|NOM JNQ ‘POOAA WEQNOLEG UO 03} SSa7
aull-yo paje|dwod aq pjnod yjom ayj jo Auoley

1sea ay) 0} aul| |ies ay) Buissoso‘diis-}o (GA) PUNOQISam JO UONONISUOD
Jadey) ajdwis ‘g1 Yy Jano abpuq sainbai dijs uo g3

Kemies Jano peos dijs pajens|e o) pes| ||oqquinp UIBYHOU WoJj }IXa MaN
paJinbas 6ujuapim ou ‘Aem-om) apew abpuq ¢y Bunsixg

Jnogepunol ||aqquinp waypou Bupixa wolj J1xa mau e Jo UoHINIISU0)

pajoayje aq pinom ‘puB|pooMm juaioue pajeubisap ‘poopA uleqyoug Jo Yed

€lv jo

ainsojo aJsinbas pjnom abpuq Jano ‘abpuq pue dis-yo Bupixa ayj Jo uoijowsp pasinbay
1sea ay) 0} aul| |ies ay) Buissoio'diis-}o (GAA) PUNOGISaM JO UOHONIISUOD

€1V uapm o} abpuq Aemjies Bunsixa Jo uoloNASUOD3I pue uoljowap salinbay
jnogepunol 9z |y paubijeas pue abpugiano maN

Jade) aue| lejixne se ¢y Bujuiof ‘dis-jo g3 jo anund uypm dis Ajua g3 maN

jujod abianip Bunsixa Jo ysea Buipeys dijs-jjo g3 paubijeay

Pajoayje aq pinom ‘pue|pooMm juaioue pajeubisap ‘poopn uleqyoug Jo Ued

€1V Jo ainsopp

aJinbai pjnom abpuq Jano ‘abpuq pue dis-jjo Bunsixa ayj Jo uopijowap palinbay
1sea ay) o} auj| |1es ay) Buissoud ‘dis-)o (gM) PUNOQISam JO UONONISUOD
abpuqiano mau Aq sdijs g3 o} payull ‘inogepunol gz paubiieay

diis Anue g3 |euonippe pue djs-jo (g3) punogjsea paubjjeas jo uonoNIsuo)

uondiiosag

o
o

g9 99 .6 .064d@ao

0O 0 00O0OOO0

o

000000

o

0 00O

ge

ve

ac

al

abew|

sawayas pajs|buo g} a|qeL

yoday juawssassy uondo

sawanoidw) ssacoy Buioe i1se3 gLy | pleuogoew How

uondo

Page 96



APPENDIX C

Scheme Option Scoring

Page 97



Page 98



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements
Option Assessment Report

6.3.24

6.3.25

6.3.26

6.3.27

Table 15: INSET Stage B Scores

Yider Economic O Social Impacts Alignment with
Environment

Transpoit Benefits Benefits ‘ (Qualitg of Life) Dbjectives

—

Option 6B was appraised as being the best performing option at INSET Stage B. The
scheme scored ‘very good' in its ability to deliver transport benefits. The introduction of
east-facing slip roads provides a strategic connection directly to the A126 without the
need to route through the A1306 or B186 to get to and from the Lakeside Basin. As well
as leading to shorter journey times for longer distance trips, this will reduce traffic and
congestion on the local road network and at the Stifford interchange potentially making
local journeys quicker.

By providing new slip roads onto the A13 from the B186 rather than the A126, this
option avoids the Brickbarn Wood ancient woodland. Less traffic on the local roads will
generally lead to an improvement in air quality. However, there is a potential impact on
the receptors within the AQMA near the A13 that reduces the score. Reduced traffic on
the local roads suggests that Option 6B is likely to have a positive impact on social
indicators such as safety, severance and journey quality.

Despite constraints associated with land use and ownership, specifically the sports
ground, coach park and travellers’ site to the north of the A1306, and land within the
Essex Arena site, it is not considered that these are insurmountable in delivering the
scheme. If this option can be designed to provide improved access to the potential
development at Essex Arena it will mitigate for the existing planning constraints
associated with the site. The option will require several new structures, although these
are not thought to be particularly complex in nature.

Figure 36 shows the proposed schematic for option 6B.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 99

Deliverability

57



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements 58
Option Assessment Report

Figure 36: Option 6B
i —

.........

Option 1A

6.3.28 Option 1A scored the second highest in Stage B INSET appraisal. As this option
provides direct access from the A13 to the A126 without interacting with any existing
roads, it is anticipated that it will result in the highest level of benefit in improving local
and strategic road connectivity. It is also expected to remove the most traffic from local
roads and therefore reduce congestion. These transport benefits enable additional road
capacity to be released which allows Thurrock to mitigate for future growth.

6.3.29 The redistribution of traffic away from local roads will provide social and environmental
benefits such as reducing severance and accidents, whilst also improving air quality
through AQMAs. However, Option 1A cuts through a proportion of Brickbarn Wood and
therefore scores poorly against the environmental themes.

6.3.30 In terms of deliverability, the option is technically quite complex to implement, due to the
necessary closure of the A13 and the need to build a large new bridge over the rail line.

6.3.31 Figure 37 shows the proposed schematic for option 1A.

Figure 37: Option 1A

- . 2 Davy Down %é
B Yy it Riverside

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 100



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements 59
Option Assessment Report

6.3.32

6.3.33

6.3.34

6.3.35

6.3.36

6.3.37

Option 4B

Option 4B provides east-facing slip roads in the same manner as Option 6B. However,
instead of providing a new direct route to the A126, the option seeks to improve the
B186 with selected widening and junction improvements.

Through avoiding the need to travel through the Stifford interchange and the A1306, the
option is predicted to have some impact on strategic and local connectivity as well as
congestion alleviation. At the same time, improved local connectivity may also improve
by increased capacity on the B186 which can then be used to accommodate future
growth.

This option avoids the ancient woodland but impacts the air quality score due to location
of the AQMA near the A13. Option 4B is also expected to lessen the number of
accidents and improve severance, minimising the social implications.

Whilst the scheme aligns with policy and scheme objectives, the option is not expected
to enable a substantial amount of population and economic growth.

The deliverability aspect of the scoring was very positive due to the lower costs and
relative ease of implementing the scheme in comparison to 1A.

Figure 38 shows the proposed schematic for option 4B.

Figure 38: Option 4

Option 4A

6.3.38 Option 4A provides east-facing slip roads in the same manner as Option 6B. However,

instead of providing a new direct route to the A126, the option seeks to dual the
carriageway and improve junctions along the A1306.

6.3.39 The option is expected to have some impact on improving local and strategic

connectivity as well as alleviating congestion. Although the A13 east-facing slips are in
place, traffic may still route via B186 Fenner Road to access INTU lakeside. Greater
network capacity may also be established between the Lakeside shopping centre car
parks and the West Thurrock Arterial Way. The scheme improves access to land
enabling development whilst mitigating for forecast growth in the area.

6.3.40 The scheme bypasses the ancient woodland but is still has a very poor environmental

score due to the impacts on AQMAs near the A13. Air quality overall, however, across
the study area is not worsened by this option.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 101



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements
Option Assessment Report

6.3.41 No extensive positive social implications are expected with option 4A, as the scheme is
unlikely to reduce accidents or severance on the local network.

6.3.42 Option 4a scored very highly for deliverability due to relatively low cost and that it is
technically not challenging to implement.

6.3.43 Figure 39 shows the proposed schematic for option 4A.

Figure 39: Option 4A

|

T

et

o I
[+
takeside f§ Ie= /
Shopping A1 &
Centre LIS LS t

Option 2A

-
N "
L

\

6.3.44 Option 2A provides an eastbound direct access to the A126 without interactions to other
existing roads. This will subsequently have a beneficial impact on local and strategic
connectivity along with congestion relief.

6.3.45 Whilst no additional land will be unlocked for development, less congestion resulting
from the redistribution of traffic away from the local road network would enhance
network capacity, enabling Thurrock to mitigate for future growth.

6.3.46 Environmentally, Option 2A will impact on the Brickbarn Wood but to a lesser extent
than Option 1A. However, the option is going to greatly impede on Davy Down
Riverside Park; open space heavily valued by the public. The AQMA covering the A13
will be impacted by Option 2A although there will be improvements in other areas.

6.3.47 The social implications of the scheme are positive with reductions in collisions and the
level of severance expected.

6.3.48 Option 2A aligns with wider policy objectives and works to encourage population and
economic growth. There are, however, concerns whether the option will encourage
sustainable growth and contribute to improvements in physical and mental wellbeing.

6.3.49 Overall, Option 2A scores fairly well for deliverability as the scheme ranks medium for
cost and is not hugely complicated to construct. Whilst most of the construction work
could be completed off-line, two new structures do need to be built over the rail line
which adds to the technical complexity of the project.

6.3.50 Figure 40 shows the proposed schematic for Option 2A.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 102

60



Mott MacDonald | A13 East Facing Access Improvements
Option Assessment Report

Figure 40: Option 2A

Bil;
R

Davy Down
Riverside

H 47
|

8rickborn

weod: | Park \
Al3 ‘\

L.

)

way_ .~ /

e |
; &

LR

Disregarded options

6.3.51 Prior to assigning scores for options 6B, 1A, 4B, 4A and 2A in INSET Stage C, it is
important to detail why the remaining options assessed in INSET Stage B were not

progressed. Table 16 shoes the highway options disregarded before INSET Stage C.

406392 | 001 | B | 406392-BC-001-B-001 | 20 November 2019

Page 103

61



Page 104



Agenda Iltem 13

12 February 2020 ITEM: 13
Cabinet

Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

Wards and communities affected: All Key Decision: Key

Report of: Councillor Shane Hebb, Portfolio Holder for Finance and Transformation

Accountable Assistant Director: Jonathan Wilson, AD Finance, Corporate Finance

Accountable Directors: Sean Clark — Corporate Director of Finance, Governance and
Property

This report is public

Executive Summary

This report summarises the fees and charges papers as reviewed by the
respective Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Any new charges will take effect
from the 1 April 2020, subject to Cabinet approval, unless otherwise stated.

In preparing the proposed fees and charges, directorates have worked within the
charging framework and commercial principles set out in section three of the
report. In particular, that fees and charges are aligned to the commercial strategy
and aims to ensure that all discretionary services cost recover.

Service director delegated authority is sought to permit Fees and Charges to be
varied within financial year in response to commercial requirements, in
consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance, Governance & Property and
the relevant portfolio holder.

The appendices to this report cover:

- Appendix 1 - Schedule of individual proposed Fees and Charges for 2020/21;

- Appendix 2 - Schedule of individual Fees and Charges that are no longer
applicable;

- Appendix 3 - Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committees;

- Appendix 4 — Fees and Charges proposed 2020/21 targets.

1 Recommendations:

1.1 That Cabinet agree the proposed fees and charges, including those no
longer applicable as per Appendices 1 and 2;

1.2 That Cabinet approve delegated authority to allow Fees & Charges to be
varied within a financial year in response to commercial requirements, in
consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance, Governance and
Property and the relevant portfolio holder; and

Page 105



1.3

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

That Cabinet note the feedback from all Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meetings.

Background

The paper describes the fees and charges council wide approach 2020/21
building upon the previously agreed Commercial principles with regard to
charging.

The revised target for income generation through fees and charges for
2019/20 is £7.305m which the Authority is set to achieve £7.753m. It should
be noted that there has been related increases in expenditure to achieve this
level.

Fees & 2019/20
2018/19 | Charges Month 7 | Variance to
Outturn 19/20 target | forecast | target
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fees and charges income (7,963) (7,305) (7,753) (448)

A review of all income generation through fees and charges has taken place
with each directorate. The approach has been to quantify the targets and set
achievable levels which take into account any increases to individual charges,
current and previous year performance, demand fluctuations and future plans
for individual services. A number of one-off income streams have been
identified as a result and these have been removed from the proposed targets
for 2020/21.

The 2020/21 targets have been considered by Commercial Board and
received further challenge from Corporate Finance to ensure they are fully
aligned with the overall budget setting process.

The rebased 2020/21 target has been set at £7.411m, this is an increase of
£0.106m on the 2019/20 target. This is lower than the expected level of
income to be achieved in 2019/20 and corresponding reductions in
expenditure will mitigate this. It should be noted that these adjustments are set
in the context of an overall balanced budget for the Authority.

Individual service level income targets for 2020/21 for each Directorate are
detailed in Appendix 5.

Thurrock Charging Policy
The strategic ambition for Thurrock is to adopt a policy on fees and charges

that is aligned to the wider commercial strategy and aims to ensure that all
discretionary services cost recover.

Page 106



3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Furthermore, for future years, while reviewing charges, services will also
consider the level of demand for the service, the market dynamics and how
the charging policy helps to meet other service objectives.

When considering the pricing strategy for 2020/21 some key questions were
considered.

e Where can we apply a tiered/premium pricing structure?

e How sensitive are customers to price? (are there areas where a price
freeze is relevant)

¢ What new charges might we want to introduce for this financial year?

e How do our charges compare with neighbouring boroughs?

How do our charges compare to neighbouring boroughs and private sector

competitors? (particularly in those instances where customers have choice)

How can we influence channel shift?

Can we set charges to recover costs?

What do our competitors charges?

Statutory services may have discretionary elements that we can influence

Do we take deposits, charge cancellation fees, charge an admin fee for

duplicate services?

Cleaner, Greener, Safer - Summary of Changes
The key following changes have occurred for 2020/21 fees and charges:

Outdoor Sports and open spaces - have increased fees and charges by a
range of between 1.94% - 9.76% to reflect moving towards a cost neutral
approach.

Allotments - fees and charges have increased in line with forecast inflation
2020/21 (subject to rounding).

Burials and Memorials - Following a thorough benchmarking exercise last
year it has been decided that this year all burial fees will be increased in line
with forecast inflation (subject to rounding) and the cost of living.

Environmental Enforcement — fees and charges are set by legislation, with
Council charging the maximum permitted, in line with policy.

Registrars — on the 16" February 2019 the new regulations come into force for
the Local Registration Service (LRS) the regulations make the following
changes to certificate fees, which have been agreed with the National Panel for
Registration, the revised fees mirror those that will be provided by the General
Registration Office (GRO) and remove the disparity between the two services
as they have been set at a National Average Level:

1) The three-tier Certificate fees will be removed and replaced by one single
(standard) fee of £11 regardless of when the application is made. The £11 fee
will also apply to a Short Birth Certificate.

2) The introduction of a statutory priority certificate for of £35 for a 24hour
service

Page 107



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

5.1

5.2

Theatre — each year the theatre reviews charges based on monitoring in year
changes to demand, customer feedback and changes made by neighboring
theatres. For 2020/21 most fees and charges will increase in line with forecast
inflation however there are a number of exceptions including:

e Performance surcharges, costs for extra staff, some hire charges, the
gallery deposit scheme and costs of ticket printing remain unchanged;

e Hire charges for using the museum as an additional dressing room will
increase to offset additional cleaning costs we now incur, with the
addition of the cleaning costs now included in the price this is a 28.3%
increase which is needed to cover our costs of the cleaning;

e Technical hire packages have been introduced to simplify hire of
technical equipment and improve take up;

e New services (and charges) will be introduced including a cost to hire
the theatre spaces for dance festivals; the foyer for private functions
and for offering staff services and technical support to events arranged
by third parties.

Public Protection - licensing fees and charges are set through the licensing
committee and TBC for 2020/21. Other Public Protection fees and charges
remain unchanged for 2020/21 with the exception of those relating to the
Control of Dogs, which have been restructured in line with the charges levied
by a new contractor, and are above inflation.

Heritage Service — the service charges for educational visits to Coalhouse Fort
and to the Museum, talks, informal education, topic loan boxes and research
tickets. It is proposed that charges are not changed for 2020/21.

All other charges remain unchanged or increase in line with forecast inflation
(subject to rounding).

Planning, Transportation and Regeneration — Summary of Changes
The key following changes have occurred for 2020/21 fees and charges:

Permits — fees and charges are unchanged for the 15t and 2" permits and
increased in line with forecast inflatioin for the 3 permit for 2020/21, with
amendments being made in relation to charity permits and a new temporary
resident’s permit to aid new residents/car owners.

Highways infrastructure — specific fees and charges have been revised to
better scale with larger application requirements, using value thresholds to
switch to a percentage value of actual costs; as well as having the minimum
charge fee increased in line with actual costs where applicable.

Page 108



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.1

6.2

7.1

Transport Development — the main transport and development fees and
charges are unchanged for 2020/21, with the exception of:

e Travel plans — monitoring charges initially set were set in line with other
Local Authorities. These have now been reduced in line with costs
incurred.

o Bikeability - training is currently funded by a grant, however this is
expected to be partially removed in 2021/22, with award announced
summer 2020. Charges will enable continuation of Bikeability training
across the borough.

e Scooter Training - Fee of £30 per session will remain for 2019/20
academic year. This planned to increase to £40 per session in 2020/21
academic year to ensure cost recovery.

Transport — Vehicular MOT Testing — charges are now shown in the report
and remain unchanged for 2020/21.

Land Charges — charges are unchanged except for the introduction of an
assisted personal search fee to ensure cost recovery.

Corporate Property & Assets — have changed the majority of their charges
for 20/21 from Price-On-Application (POA); to more accurately reflect to the
client the actual costs incurred for the services delivered.

Town Centre Management — new promotional activity fees have been
introduced to help support projects and event run by the Town Centre
Management team to help revitalise our high streets, with differing charges for
commercial and charitable operators.

All other charges remain unchanged or increase in line with forecast inflation
for 2020/21.

Health & Wellbeing Summary of Changes
The key following changes have occurred for 2020/21 fees and charges:

With regard to Placement charges, the declared rates have been adjusted to
reflect inflationary increases, this in line with the agreed nationally set process.

All other charges are subject to public consultation and remain unchanged at
this time.

Housing — Summary of Changes
The key following changes have occurred for 2020/21 fees and charges:

Enforcement Notices — These will increase in line with forecast inflation.

Page 109



7.2

7.3
7.4
7.5

8.1
8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5
8.6

8.7

8.8

9.1

9.2

10

Penalty Charges — Housing Planning Act 2016. These charges were
introduced in 2018/19 and are scaled up to the maximum sum allowed .

Travellers Sites - These will increase in line with forecast inflation.
Selective Licensing - (proposal for 2021- no fee yet allocated).

Non-Statutory Housing Reports — These have been removed as these will
be captured as a Traded Service for 2020/21.

Childrens — Summary of Charges
The key following changes have occurred for 2020/21 fees and charges:

Certain nursery place charges have in some cases increased above inflation
to take account of the actual costs of service delivery, which are dependent on
the ages involved and corresponding staffing ratios. These will be in line with
central government grant funding.

New nursery place charges for 0-2 years and babies have been
introduced.

Nursery after school charges have been removed as this is no longer
economically viable to provide, due to market competition.

Grangewaters charges have increased in line with forecast inflation.

Thurrock Adult Community College have been integrated into the Council’s
fees and charges process. Small increases in community hire which is still
significantly below market rates.

Music Services has had a slight increase, Instrument load hire has increased
slightly to enable the instrument maintenance programme to be enhanced.

All other charges remain unchanged or increase in line with forecast inflation.
Reasons for Recommendation

The setting of appropriate fees and charges will enable the Council to
generate essential income for the funding of Council services. The approval of
reviewed fees and charges will also ensure that the Council is competitive with
other service providers and neighbouring councils. The ability to vary charges
within financial year will enable services to more flexible adapt to changing
economic conditions.

The granting of delegated authority to vary these charges within financial year
will allow the Council to better respond to the needs of the communities, legal
requirements and regulatory changes. And ensure that charges applied to
residents, visitors and businesses correctly reflect current regulatory and
legislative requirements.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

Page 110



10.1

10.2

11

12

12.1

12.2

Consultations will be progressed where there is specific need. However, with
regard all other items, the proposals in this report do not affect any specific parts
of the borough. Fees and charges are known to customers before they make use
of the services they are buying.

Due to the General Election, presentation of the fees and charges schedule to
the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny meetings had not taken place at the time
of writing this report. They are timetabled to do so and feedback from those
forums will be sought.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

The changes in these fees and charges may impact the community; however it
must be taken into consideration that these price rises include inflation and no
profit will be made on the running of these discretionary services.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Joanne Freeman
Finance Manager

The impact on income budgets has been set out earlier in the report and has
informed the MTFS and annual budget setting process. Additional income is
expected to be generated, however, this is dependent on demand for the
services. Where an income source has decreased the corresponding
expenditure budgets have also been adjusted to minimise the net impact on the
overall budget. The income position will continue to be monitored throughout the
year.

Legal

Implications verified by: Tim Hallam

Acting Assistant Director of Law &
Governance, Head of Legal & Monitoring
Officer

Fees and charges generally fall into three categories — Statutory, Regulatory
and Discretionary. Statutory charges are set in statue and cannot be altered
by law since the charges have been determined by Central government and all
authorities will be applying the same charge.

Regulatory charges relate to services where, if the Council provides the
service, it is obliged to set a fee which the Council can determine itself in
accordance with a regulatory framework. Charges have to be reasonable and
must be applied across the borough.

Page 111



12.3

12.4

13

Discretionary charges relate to services which the Council can provide if they
choose to do so. This is a local policy decision. The Local Government Act
2003 gives the Council power to charge for discretionary services, with some
limited exceptions. This may include charges for new and innovative services
utilising the Council’s general power of competence under section 1 of the
Localism Act 2011. The income from charges, taking one financial year with
another, must not exceed the cost of provision. A clear and justifiable
framework of principles should be followed in terms of deciding when to
charge and how much, and the process for reviewing charges.

A service may wish to consider whether they may utilise this power to provide
a service that may benefit residents, businesses and other service users, meet
the Council priorities and generate income.

Decisions on setting charges and fees are subject to the Council’s decision
making structures. Most charging decisions are the responsibility of Cabinet,
where there are key decisions. Some fees are set by full Council.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Becky Lee

Team Manager — Community Development &
Equalities

The Council has a statutory responsibility under the Equality Act 2010 to promote
and have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and advance
equality of opportunity between individuals who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. Decision on setting fees and
charges are subject to the Council’s decision making structures. Proposals
developed by services have given due consideration to equality considerations
as these have been developed.

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, Crime
and Disorder, and Impact on Looked After Children

None applicable

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location on
the Council’'s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected by

copyright):

e Cleaner, Greener and Safer Overview & Scrutiny Committee — 6 February
2020 — ITEM 6 — Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

e Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee — 4 February 2020 — ITEM 10 —
Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

e Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee — 14 January 2020 — ITEM 4 —
Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

Page 112



¢ Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee — 23 January 2020 —
ITEM 6 — Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

e Planning, Transport and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee — 21
January 2020 — ITEM 10 — Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21

14  Appendices to the report

e Appendix 1 — Schedule of Proposed Fees and Charges for 2020/21
e Appendix 2 — Schedule of Fees and Charges no longer applicable
e Appendix 3 — Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committees

e Appendix 4 — Fees and Charges 2020/21 proposed targets

Report Author:

Kelly McMillan
Business Development Project Manager
Business Development & Innovation

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny

Statutory/

VAT Status

Charge excl. VAT

VAT Amount

Charge incl. VAT

VAT

Charge excl. VAT

VAT Amount

Charge incl. VAT

Change from last  Change from last

New, Removed,

Name of fee or Charge Directorate . Owner Discretionary Status year year
Committee Charge 19/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 20/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 (incl. VAT) (% incl. VAT) Unchanged

HMOs 5 year License (Fees for single tenancies and shared houses) - 4 to 5 people - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] r £ - £ = (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - = REMOVED

HMOs 5 year License (Fees for single tenancies and shared houses) - 4 to 5 people - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

:lwcizi:ezdmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 4 to 5 people - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED
v

HMO's 12 month temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 4 to 5 people - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ - £ - (o} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
r

:l\/lcicsjii.:dmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 6 to 10 people - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ ) R REMOVED
v

:{\:ﬁg;i:ezdmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 6 to 10 people - Non Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED
v

:Lwc'_oe;i:ezdmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 11 to 15 people - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ } £ ) o REMOVED £ ; £ £ R ; REMOVED
'

:lwcizi::dmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 11 to 15 people - Non Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED
v

:{\xﬁjesiiezdmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 16 to 20 people - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ : o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ B REMOVED
v

:l\/lci;i:::dmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 16 to 20 people - Non Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ ) R REMOVED
v

:Zz;i:ezdmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 21 to 29 people - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED
v

:xzzi:ezdmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 21 to 29 people - Non Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ } £ ) o REMOVED £ ; £ £ R : REMOVED
¢

:lwci;i::dmonth temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 30 or more - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED
v

HMO's 12 month temporary License (Fee for single tenancies and shared houses) - 30 or more - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ - £ - [0} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
r

Ziglfze\ziejt:l; HMO's License (5 year-no changes or management regulation breaches) - 4 to 5 units - Landlord Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ 560.00 o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED

I:ce;i\néiate MO's License (5 year-no changes or management regulation breaches) - 4 to 5 units - Non Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ B o REMOVED £ R £ £ ; R REMOVED

Other l\m Income - License Variation - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] r £ - £ = (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - = REMOVED

Other ‘@ Income - License Variation - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

Other N@ Income - Permitted number changes - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - [0} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

Other Mjisc4lncome - Permitted number changes - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

License Holder Chénge_ Fee rgduced by 50% if application for new.llcense within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ : o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED

to propdrty condition/ inspection - 4 to 5 people - Landlord Accredited

License er Cf_ﬁimge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application for.new license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ ~ o REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 4 to 5 people - Non Accredited

License Holder C}ja}nge. Fee re.duced by 50% if application for new I!cense within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ : £ : o REMOVED £ : £ £ } : REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 6 to 10 people - Landlord Accredited

License Holder Cha_nge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application for new license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ ~ o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 6 to 10 people - Non Accredited

License Holder C}ja}nge. Fee re‘duced by 50% if application for new Ilcgnse within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ B o REMOVED £ R £ £ ) R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 11 to 15 people - Landlord Accredited

License Holder Cr_@nge_ Fee re_duced by 50% if application for new license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ : o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ B REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 11 to 15 people - Non Accredited

License Holder Chaimge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application for new Ilc_ense within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 16 to 20 people - Landlord Accredited

License Holder Cha}nge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application for new license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ : £ ) o REMOVED £ : £ £ R ; REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 16 to 20 people - Non Accredited

License Holder Cha_nge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application for new Ilc_ense within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 21 to 29 people - Landlord Accredited

License Holder C}jz?nge. Fee re.duced by 50% if application for ngw license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ B o REMOVED £ R £ £ } R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 21 to 29 people - Non Accredited

License Holder Cha‘nge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application for new license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o v £ R £ B o REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ B REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 30 or more - Landlord Accredited

License Holder Cf_uimge. Fee rgduced by 50% if application fgr new license within 12 month of issue and subject Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o . £ R £ _ o REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED

to property condition/ inspection - 30 or more - Non Accredited

Failure to notify changes in ownership or management (non-license holder) - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

Failure to notify changes in ownership or management (non-license holder) - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D [0} r £ - £ - [0} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

Non Statutory Housing Reports - HMO reports for support providers - 1 Bed accomodation Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D [0} £ 185.00 |£ - £ 185.00 (o] REMOVED £ - removed £ - - REMOVED

Non Statutory Housing Reports - HMO reports for support providers - 2 Bed accomodation Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] £ 220.00 £ - £ 220.00 (0] REMOVED £ - removed £ - = REMOVED

Non Statutory Housing Reports - HMO reports for support providers - 3 Bed accomodation Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] £ 250.00 |£ - £ 250.00 (0] REMOVED £ - removed £ - - REMOVED

Non Statutory Housing Reports - HMO reports for support providers - 4 Bed accomodation Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ 325.00 | £ - £ 325.00 [0} REMOVED £ - removed £ - - REMOVED

Non Statutory Housing Reports - HMO reports for support providers - 5 Bed accomodation Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o £ 380.00 | £ - £ 380.00 (o} REMOVED £ - removed £ - - REMOVED

Non Statutory Housing Reports - HMO reports for support providers - 6 Bed accomodation Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] £ 495.00 | £ - £ 495.00 (0] REMOVED £ - removed £ - = REMOVED

10% discount HMOs 5 year License -4 to 5 units - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] r (0] REMOVED £ £ - - REMOVED

10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 4 to 5 units - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - [0} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

10% Discount HMOs 5 year License - 6 to 10 units - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 6 to 10 units - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED

10% discount 5 year License - 11 to 15 people - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED




Overview and Scrutiny

Statutory/

VAT Status

Charge excl. VAT

VAT Amount

Charge incl. VAT

VAT

Charge excl. VAT

VAT Amount

Charge incl. VAT

Change from last  Change from last

New, Removed,

Name of fee or Charge Directorate . Owner Discretionary Status year year

Committee Charge 19/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 20/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 (incl. VAT) (% incl. VAT) Unchanged
10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 11 to 15 people - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] r £ - £ = (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - = REMOVED
10 % discount HMOs 5 year License - 16 to 20 people - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - [0} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 16 to 20 people - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 21 to 29 people - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 21 to 29 people - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (o] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 30 or more people - Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
10% discount HMOs 5 year License - 30 or more people - Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - [0} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% capped discount HMOs 5 year License -4 to 5 units - for more than 2 properites Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 4 to 5 units - for more than 2 properites Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% Discount HMOs 5 year License - 6 to 10 units - for more than 2 properites Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 6 to 10 units - for more than 2 properites Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount 5 year License - 11 to 15 people - for more than 2 properites Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 11 to 15 people - for more than 2 properites Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15 % discount HMOs 5 year License - 16 to 20 people - for more than 2 properites Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 16 to 20 people - for more than 2 properites Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 21 to 29 people - for more than 2 properites Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 21 to 29 people - for more than 2 properites Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 30 or more people - for more than 2 properites Landlord Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (0] r £ - £ = (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - = REMOVED
15% discount HMOs 5 year License - 30 or more people - for more than 2 properites Non Accredited Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o} REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Mobile Homes annual licence fee (0] r £ - i - (0] REMOVED £ - 2 £ - - REMOVED
Mobile H-(Des annual licence fee (0] r £ - £ = (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - = REMOVED
Mobile Mes annual licence fee (0] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - 2 £ - - REMOVED
Mobile mes annual licence fee Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D o r £ - £ - (o] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Mobile Homes annual licence fee Adults, housing and Health Housing Dulal Ahmed D (o] r £ - £ - (0] REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Thursday Friday evening + Sat hall or room Adults, housing and Health Children's Michele Lucus/Jaki Bradley D remove remove REMOVED £ - removed £ - - REMOVED
Cultureal Services - Libraries - Visa Services Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D r r REMOVED £ - r £ - - REMOVED
Cultural Services - CD Rom print outs - Colour Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D S £ 0.25 £ 0.05 |£ 0.30 S REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Cultural Services - Microfilm Prints - Per page from old machine (new machine is same as printouts) Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D S £ 0.25 £ 0.05 |£ 0.30 S REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
S‘r‘]';::azljesrq‘”r;es - Premises Hire - Other organisations and non public meetings of political parties - Per hour - Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 35.00 |£ - |E 35.00 REMOVED £ - |E £ - - REMOVED
Cultural Services - Premises Hire - QommerC|aI lorga(nlsatlons and public meetings held by political parties - Per Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 3500 | £ R £ 35.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ; R REMOVED
hour - 24 to 70 sq.m. Sole use outside of opening times.
Cultural Services - Premises Hire - _Commercnal_ orgjamsatlons and public meetings held by political parties - Per Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 25.00 | £ R £ 25.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED
hour - Over 70 sq.m. Sole use outside of opening times.
Cultural Services - Premises Hire - Cgmmerual (_nrgar.nsatlons and public meetings held by political parties - Per Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 2000 | £ R £ 20.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED
hour - Under 24 sg.m. Sole use outside of opening times.
Cultural Services - Premlsles Hire -.Oth?r organisations and non public meetings of political parties - Per hour - 24 Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 2000 | £ : £ 20.00 REMOVED £ : £ £ ) ; REMOVED
to 70 sq.m. Sole use outside opening times.
Cultural Services - Premlses_lee - Ot_her grganlsatlons and non public meetings of political parties - Per hour - Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 2000 | £ R £ 20.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ R REMOVED
Over 70 sg.m. Sole use outside opening times.
Cultural Services - Premises lee - Oth?r or‘ganlsatlons and non public meetings of political parties - Per hour - Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 2500 | £ R £ 25.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ; R REMOVED
Under 24 sq.m. Sole use outside opening times.
Cultural Services - Premises Hire - Fommergal qrganlsatlons and public meetings held by political parties - Per Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 2000 | £ R £ 20.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ B REMOVED
hour - 24 to 70 sq.m. Sole use during opening times.
Cultural Services - Premises Hire - (?ommerqal organlsatlons and public meetings held by political parties - Per Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 15.00 | £ R £ 15.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ R R REMOVED
hour - Under 24 sg.m. Sole use during opening times.
Cultural Services - Preml{ses Hire - Other organisations and non public meetings of political parties - Per hour - 24 Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 15.00 | £ : £ 15.00 REMOVED £ : £ £ ; : REMOVED
to 70 sq.m. Sole use during opening times.
Cultural Services - Premises !—hre - Other o_rganlsatlons and non public meetings of political parties - Per hour - Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 500 | £ R £ 5.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ~ B REMOVED
Under 24 sq.m. Sole use during opening times.
CuItAuraI Ser\{lces.— Premises Hire - Other Organisations and community groups - part use e.g. hire of table space Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D £ 10.00 | £ R £ 10.00 REMOVED £ R £ £ ) R REMOVED
during opening times

25% Commission or 25% Commission or
Cultural Services - Premises Hire - Community Groups - meeting room during opening times Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D E minimum hire £ - minimum hire E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
charge charge

Cultural Services - Exhibitions - Exhibition Space - Exhibition of works or crafts by individual artists and craftsmen Adults, housing and Health Health & Wellbeing Natalie Warren D z £ 0.50 £ - £ 0.50 z REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Learning and Universal Outcomes - After School Club - Holiday Club - Per day Children's Children's Andrea Winston D E REMOVED £ - £ - E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Learning and Universal Outcomes - Nursery Places- After school club per week Children's Children's Michelle Lucas D E REMOVED £ - £ - E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Learning and Universal Outcomes - Nursery Places - After school club per day Children's Children's Michelle Lucas D E REMOVED £ - £ - E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Learning and Universal Outcomes - Nursery Places -Holiday club per day Children's Children's Michelle Lucas D E REMOVED £ - £ - E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Learning and Universal Outcomes - Nursery Places -Holiday club per week Children's Children's Michelle Lucas D E REMOVED £ - £ - E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED
Learning and Universal Outcomes - Nursery Places -non- core hours premium hourly rate Children's Children's Michelle Lucas D E REMOVED £ - £ - E REMOVED £ - £ £ - - REMOVED




Name of fee or Charge Directorate Overview and Scrutiny Owner Dlsstcartel;tl:rr\Va/ry VAT Status  Charge excl. VAT VAT Amount Charge incl. VAT St‘; ‘t‘:s Charge excl. VAT VAT Amount Charge incl. VAT Cha"g:efa’:’m k3 Cha"g:ef;:"“ last 8 New; Removed)

Committee Charge 19/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 20/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 (incl. VAT) (% incl. VAT) Unchanged

Burial Grounds - Part 3 Monuments, Gravestones, Tablets & Monumental Inscriptions - For the right to erect or

place on a grave in respect of which exclusive right of burial has been granted, a monument, gravestone or Environment and Highways Cleaner, Greener, Safer Vincent Taylor D E r £ - £ - REMOVED £ - £ - - REMOVED

tablets

Highways - Licences - Anything done in connection with site inspections to monitor compliance with duties

imposed by Section 172(3) and by Section 173(1) of the 1980 Act on a person who has erected a hoarding or Environment and Highways Planning, Transport, Regen Peter Wright S z Actuak(é(;jit; +£150 £ - ActuaLﬁon::; FEED z REMOVED £ - REMOVED £ - - REMOVED

fence.

Street Naming and Numbering - New Properties - 1-5 Properties 4 weeks administration Environment and Highways Planning, Transport, Regen Peter Wright D [0} £ 159.00 (£ - £ 159.00 [0} REMOVED £ - REMOVED £ - - REMOVED

Street Naming and Numbering - New Properties - 6-25 Properties 6 weeks administration Environment and Highways Planning, Transport, Regen Peter Wright D (o] £ 260.00 |£ - £ 260.00 o REMOVED £ - REMOVED £ - - REMOVED

Street Naming and Numbering - New Properties - 26-75 Properties 8 weeks administration Environment and Highways Planning, Transport, Regen Peter Wright D o £ 370.00 | £ - £ 370.00 [e] REMOVED £ - REMOVED £ - - REMOVED

Street Naming and Numbering - New Properties - 76-100 Properties 10-12 weeks administration Environment and Highways Planning, Transport, Regen Peter Wright D (o] £ 475.00 | £ - £ 475.00 (0] REMOVED £ - REMOVED £ - - REMOVED

Street Naming and Numbering - New Properties - Over & Above 100 Properties - for every additional property Environment and Highways Planning, Transport, Regen Peter Wright D o £ 31.00 (£ - £ 31.00 [e] REMOVED £ - REMOVED £ - - REMOVED

/TT obed




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Provided below is the Feedback from the respective Overview and Scrutiny
Committees held In January 2020.

e |t was highlighted at the Housing Overview and Scrutiny meeting that the
wording around the Inflation increase was incorrect and was later amended.

Please note extracts from the minutes in relation to the Fees and Charges items from Overview and
Scrutiny Committees were not available at the time of writing this report.

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



T¢T abed

Appendix 4 Version 1

Allocation of 2020/21 fees and charges targets across individual directorates

Revised Movement
2019/20 Fees & Proposed | from
2018-19 Month 7 Charges 2020/21 2019/20
Directorate Qutturn forecast 19/20 target | target target Narrative
Increases Extra Care café to reflect plans to
Adults, Housing and Health (341,279) (305,877) (369,253) (375,328) (6,075) | redesign the service
Reduction in Day nursery fees and
Grangewaters income (corresponding
Children's Services (975,772) | (1,009,704) | (1,088,040) | (1,030,150) 57,890 | expenditure also reduced)
Reduction in fees related to Highways
maintenance works (corresponding expenditure
Environment and Highways (2,172,220) | (2,327,151) | (2,322,935) | (2,273,360) 49,576 | also reduced)
Finance, Governance and Reduction in income related to the Civic Offices
Property (85,176) (59,592) (133,895) (52,558) 81,337 | and functions of the Corporate Landlord
Inclusion of fees related to Private Sector
Housing and a 3% increase to Traveller site rent
Housing General Fund (508,194) (618,633) (414,500) (597,209) | (182,709) | and service charges
Rebasing of charges across Planning, Building
Place (3,624,762) | (3,193,865) | (2,706,800) | (2,837,065) | (130,265) | Control and Local land charges
Strategy, Communications & Reduction in fees related to Private citizenships
Customer Services (255,395) (238,618) (270,024) (245,777) 24,247 | provided by the Registrars service
Total (7,962,799) | (7,753,440) | (7,305,447)* | (7,411,447) | (105,999)

* The original 2019/20 allocation of £7.729m has been reduced to £7.305m reflecting a reclassification of legal and enforcement income as 'income from

Traded Services'




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 14

12 February 2020 ITEM: 14
Cabinet

Draft 2020/21 Budget Proposals and Medium Term
Financial Strategy Update

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Councillor Shane Hebb, Portfolio Holder for Finance and Transformation

Accountable Assistant Director: Jonathan Wilson, AD Finance

Accountable Director: Sean Clark, Corporate Director of Finance, Governance and
Property

This report is public

Executive Summary

Cabinet agreed a draft budget at their meeting on 15 January 2020 and referred their
proposals to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their consideration
and comment. This report sets out the committee’s comments for Cabinet to
consider when recommending their final budget proposals to Full Council.

Service Review proposals have been developed and are summarised in the body of
this report.

The council embarks on multiple approaches to achieving financial self-sufficiency;
to not have to rely on general fund grants from national government. The investment
strategy is a part of that objective.

The Council Spending Review “Service Review Boards” have continued to develop
cross cutting expenditure savings along with an enhanced focus on income
generation and their proposals have now been allocated to services and are set out
in the body of the report so as to inform Cabinet of overall changes to Directorate
budgets. These are draft and will be updated in future reports as allocations are
refined.

Council general fund balance (reserves) has been maintained at £11m for a number
of years; and it is proposed to hold them at this level.

This report has been considered by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny at its meeting
on 23 January 2020 and the committee’s comments are included in section 12 of the
report.

Page 123



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4
1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Recommendations:

That Cabinet consider the comments from Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny committee as set out in section 12 of the report;

That the Cabinet propose a 2% council tax increase towards the cost of
Adult Social Care;

That the Cabinet propose a 1.49% council tax increase to meet the
increasing costs and demands of all other services and to move the
council towards greater financial sustainability for the medium to longer
term;

Note the budget report set out through this report and appendices;

That the Cabinet recommend to Full Council the capital proposals set
out in this report and appendices;

That Cabinet consider and allocate the budgeted surplus for 2019/20 as
set out in section 3;

That Cabinet endorse the Thurrock 2020/21 Schools funding formula to
be implemented as stated in section 9. This being consistent with
Cabinets decision made in December 2018; and

That Cabinet endorse the Early Years Funding formula for 2020/21, as
shown in Appendix 6, and allow the Schools Forum to consider that the
rates to be implemented can be made permanent, following review of the
January 2020 census data.

Introduction and Background

All Members are aware of financial pressures that all councils continue to
experience alongside the challenge to become financially self-sustainable
from national government general fund grant allocation.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) presented to Cabinet on 15
January 2020 showed a balanced budget for the next 3 years. These were
based on a number of assumptions that, when delivered, continue to put
Thurrock Council in a stronger position than most other councils for the
challenges ahead when the Revenue Support Grant discontinues and
proposed reforms to the Business Rates Retention system are implemented.

These assumptions continue to be supported through the ongoing review of
staffing requirements, procurement improvements, and increased efficiencies
delivered, for example, by challenging delivery methods and utilising digital
solutions. This is further underpinned by income generation through council
tax, fees and charges and investments.

A key change to the MTFS presented to Full Council on 26 February 2019 is
the decision to recommend a general council tax increase of 1.49 per cent.

Page 124



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

The previous MTFS assumed a 1.99 per cent increase and the proposed level
reduces income by £1.722m in that and subsequent years.

The Council Spending Review “Service Review Board” has undertaken a
number of cross cutting reviews challenging current delivery models,
structures and assumptions with a view to improve outcomes and identify
efficiencies. The board has a savings target of £0.900m in 2020/21 which is
to be delivered following the implementation of the following review outcomes:

Insourcing services to be taken into back into Council - £0.300m;
Increased income from fees and charges - £0.250m; and

Social care services savings arising from data analytics predictive analysis -
£0.350m.

Together these form an overall package that not only balance the budget but
allows the council to invest in enhancing existing services and providing new
services where a priority.

Before considering future years it is important to recognise any impacts from
the current year. Cabinet have received two update reports in recent months
with the most recent report on 15 January 2020 setting out net pressures of
£1.317m net of funding from the surplus. Main areas of concern are within
Children’s and Adult Social Care and General Fund Housing Services.

To recognise the above, relevant growth has been included within the MTFS
to meet the ongoing expected pressures.

Allocation of the 2019/20 Surplus

The 2019/20 forecast position has been reviewed and reported to Cabinet on
15 January 2020. The report has identified demand led pressures in
Children’s and Adults Social Care and in Homelessness. These are common
pressures at many local authorities nationally and Central Government has
proposed increased funding in these areas in 2020/21. In addition there has
been a pressure arising through the loss of investment income linked to the
pause of the Belmont Rd scheme. It is expected this will be deferred into the
subsequent year should the position be resolved quickly.

Consequently the surplus has been allocated to address these pressures
initially as set out below:

£m
Children’s Social Care 0.600
Homelessness 0.330

Page 125



TRL Income deferral 1.287
Total 2.217

Further items proposed are set out below and will be funded from the balance of the
surplus. These are:

£m

Additional Police Officers (as proposed in December 2018) 0.670

Funding to support Mental Health outcomes (as proposed at the
. 0.500
July 19 Cabinet)

Extension of Kerb It Programmes 0.660
Feasibility Assessment — Leisure Village 0.250
Expand out of hours ASB team for parks and team centres

(pilot) 0.320
Tree planting for avenues and areas of pollution 0.230
Air Quality — Cycle Lanes & Switch Off Zones 0.150
Youth Offending Team 0.250
Total 3.030

4 Draft 2020/21 Budget and Future Forecasts

4.1 The MTFS attached at Appendix 1 continues to set out a balanced budget for
three of the five years set out based on the assumptions set out in the body of
this report and appendices, of which the council remains in surplus of circa
£5m. It should be noted that, this time last year, the surplus position over the
same time-period was £15m

4.2 The summarised budget position for the medium term now stands at:

Page 126



Narrative 2020/21 2021/22 ' 2022723 2023/24 2024/25
£000 £000 | £000 £000 £000
1 1
Net (Additional) Reduction in resources (6,283) : (1,789) (2,337) (2,605) : (2,918)
Inflation and other increases 3,702 1 3,472 3,615 3,766 1 3,862
Treasury and Capital Financing (2,178) : (336) (1,224) 365 : 0
Allocation of Social Care Funding 4,042 : 0 0 0 : 0
Corporate Growth 3,346 2,314 2,314 2,314 2,314
Services Design Principals and Strategic Boards (900) : (1,000) (1,000) 0 : 0
1 1
Position before carry forward 1,729 | 2,661 1,368 3,840 | 3,258
1 1
CIf Position (5,803) : (4,074) , (1,413) (45) : 0
1 ! ) 1
Working Total (4,074) | (1,413) | (45) | 3,795 | 3,258

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.2

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

5.3.3

The budget surplus in each year should only be used for one off expenditure
and/or as a contribution to reserves. By not committing this surplus to
ongoing expenditure the surplus carries forward to the subsequent year.

The scale of these surpluses provide the Council with further stability against
any budget fluctuations whilst also offering the opportunity to major
investment in the borough.

The draft Local Government Finance Settlement confirmed expected grant
levels as set out in this and previous versions of the MTFS.

Council Tax and Future Funding

Cabinet will be aware that Thurrock Council has the lowest council tax in
Essex and one of the lowest of all Unitary authorities throughout the country.
Whilst there is no desire or need to change this position, officers’ advice is
clear that council tax increases are required and this is echoed in the Director
of Finance’s s25 Statement in recent years.

The assumptions at the start of the municipal year within the MTFS were a
1.99% council tax increase in 2020/21 (0% in 2018/19) and 1.99% thereafter.

Whilst surplus balances would suggest to most that increases are not
required, Members have to consider the following:

Advice from CIPFA is clear that investments should not solely be used to
replace existing funding streams but for additionality;

Any investment is temporary in nature whereas council tax is a sustainable
resource for the longer term;

The Comprehensive Spending Review has been deferred until 2020/21 and
will assume that the council has increased council tax by allowable levels
(1.99% for this year) and so the amount the council can retain from its

Page 127



534

5.3.5

5.3.6

54

6.2

business rates will be reduced accordingly — the government will not replace
any income foregone by local decision making. Government figures now set
out an assumed council tax income in 2020/21 of £0.331m higher than that
will be achieved with the proposed council tax precept of 1.49%;

The Adult Social Care precept is welcome to provide much needed funding
that enables further demand-avoidance initiatives. It should be noted that the
amount raised is relatively lower than the majority of other top tier authorities
due to the lower council tax base enjoyed by the council,

Following the above, it is still unclear how local government will be funded
going forward. One aspect that is clear though is the direction of travel across
the UK remains for councils to rely on locally raised taxation and other forms
of income generation; and

As other grants, such as public health, become part of mainstream funding
councils will see a switch of statutory services currently being funded centrally
needing to be funded locally.

Having considered the advice as set out above, the Cabinet has chosen to
recommend a 1.49% general council tax increase supplemented by a 2%
Adult Social Care precept and the figures have been amended accordingly.

Capital Proposals for 2020/21

The Capital Programme plays an understated role in not just supporting and
maintaining the borough’s and the council’s infrastructure but also includes
strategic and place making schemes supporting both the place making and
commercial agendas.

The following sources of funding are available to the General Fund:

Capital Receipts — these are the receipts realised from the disposal of capital
assets such as land and buildings. The Property Board, at the request of
Cabinet, has commenced a strategic review of the asset base and will report
back to Cabinet with an updated strategy, including a disposal programme, in
due course. Asset management in the future will be based on the simple
ethos of— Release — Reuse - Retain;

Grants and Contributions- these could be ad hoc grants awarded from
government or other funding agencies or contributions from developers and
others;

Prudential Borrowing — the Council is able to increase its borrowing to finance
schemes as long as they are considered affordable and are deemed to meet
the public good; and

Revenue — the Council can charge capital costs directly to the General Fund
but the pressure on resources means that this is not recommended.

Page 128



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

On the basis that capital receipts are currently limited and, with a low level of
reserves in place, any receipts may be set aside for debt repayment or a
contingency towards revenue pressures (ability to use capital receipts for
MRP purposes), the main areas of funding are grants and contributions — but
these tend to be for specific purposes — and prudential borrowing — the main
source for the attached proposals and current programme.

Funding from capital receipts will be assessed in the financial year as a review
of the Council’s assets is underway as part of the ‘3Rs’ Programme — Retain,
Reuse, Release. This challenges the rationale for holding the asset resulting
in the classification of assets as either:

e Released (for example to dispose of immediately or develop for housing);

e Re-used (for example for different services or more intensive or changed
use); and

e Retained (business as usual, little need or opportunity for change
identified).

Several sites have been identified for release and the Corporate Property
Team has been reviewing these to determine their redevelopment potential
and has commenced a release disposal programme. This will potentially
enable further funding of capital projects from the capital receipts generated
and reduce the level of prudential borrowing required.

Members should note that General Fund Capital Receipts can also be used to
finance Housing Revenue Account capital expenditure and has been used to
good effect in securing Right to Buy buy-backs match funded with HRA
resources that has helped maximise the use of Right to Buy receipts.

Annually, all services consider their future capital needs and submit bids for
schemes ranging from projects in their own right to smaller schemes that are
required to maintain operational ability — such as capital repairs to operational
buildings and system upgrades.

In addition, the Council Service Review (CSR) process is identifying a number
of service enhancements that will ultimately reduce costs or increase income.
These will need to be funded as and when identified.

Finally, there are those projects that require seed funding to prepare more
detailed business cases. The council agreed in February 2019 to maintain a
£2m budget provision to ensure funding is available to prepare business
cases for Future and Aspirational Capital Schemes.

It is recommended that this budget be increased to £3m for the coming year to
reflect the wider capital aspirations of the Council and the full amount is
expected to be required.

Page 129



Current Programme

6.11 Before considering the new proposals, it is worth reflecting on the allocations
that have been agreed over recent years. These are summarised in Appendix
5 but, covering the period 2018/19 through to 2020/21, total over £289m with
£229m still to be spent as at 1 January 2020.

6.12 Set out below are the major schemes that are included within the current
programme over that period that are already committed and many underway:

The widening of the A13; Purfleet Regeneration;

Grays’ Town Centre and Stanford-le-Hope Interchange;

Underpass;

Improvements to parks and open New educational facilities;

spaces;

The HRA Transforming Homes HRA New Build Schemes;

programme;

Highways infrastructure; Aveley Community Hub;

Civic Office Development; and Improvements to the Linford Civic
Amenity Site.

6.13 In addition, feasibility work has been carried out in developing the future and
aspirational bids during recent months and an update on these is included at
Appendix 7.

7 Draft Capital Proposals

7.1 There have been a number of schemes that can be seen as projects in their
own right. These have been included at Appendix 7 and will, in the main, be
known to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee in one form or
another.

7.2  Having reviewed all of the other capital requests, they fall within one of four
categories and are summarised in the table below. A schedule of some of the
bids is included at appendix 8 for information. The amounts have been
calculated using the respective bid totals and would be under the
responsibility of a relevant Transformation Board or Directors’ Board for
allocation and monitoring:

Page 130



7.3

7.4

Responsible
Board

Examples

2020/21
£m

2021/22
£m

2022/23
£m

Service
Review

These include new systems that
create efficiencies, upgrades to
facilities to increase income
potential and enhancements to
open spaces to reduce ongoing
maintenance.

3.9

1.3

1.3

Digital

The council has been progressing
steadily towards digital delivery,
both with residents and amongst
officers. This budget will allow for
further progression as well as
ensuring all current systems are
maintained to current versions and
provide for end of life replacement.

3.3

0.7

0.2

Property

This budget will provide for all
operational buildings including the
Civic Offices, libraries, depot and
Collins House. It will allow for
essential capital maintenance and
minor enhancements.

3.1

0.3

Transformation

This budget is to provide the ability
to build business cases for major
projects as per paragraph 2.6.

The recommendation is for an
annual “top up” to bring the budget
back to £3m at the start of each
financial year.

3.0

3.0

3.0

In addition, the capital programme also includes the HRA, Highways and
Education. These are largely funded by government grants and will be
considered by their respective Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the
Cabinet under separate reports.

Highways are expected to receive in the region of £4m per annum from the
Department of Transport whilst Education are expected to receive a further

£4m in 2019/20 from the Department for Education with further allocations for

free schools.

Other Capital Recommendations

In previous years, the recommendations to Council have also included
delegations to Cabinet to agree additions to the capital programme under the

following criteria:

Page 131




8.2

8.3

9.2

9.3

9.4

e If additional third party resources are secured, such as government grants
and s106 agreements, for specific schemes; and

e Where a scheme is identified that can be classed as ‘spend to save’ —
where it will lead to cost reductions or income generation that will, as a
minimum, cover the cost of borrowing.

The delegation proposed is that any approval is deemed to be part of the
capital programme and that the necessary prudential indicators set out in the
Capital Strategy are amended accordingly.

This approach means that estimated amounts for schemes that may or may
not take place are not included in the programme, removing the need for
agreed provisions that may not be required.

Dedicated Schools Grant

In September, the government announced schools and high needs funding for
the 3 year period 2020/21 to 2020/23. Additional investment will allow for cash
increases of £2.6 billion in 2020/21, £2.2 billion in 2021/22 and £2.3 billion in
2022/23. On top of this, £1.5 billion will be provided each year to fund
additional pension’s costs for teachers, bringing the total schools budget to
£52.2 billion in 2022/23.

On 19 December, the Secretary of State for Education announced details of
the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) allocations for 2020/21. The tables below
show the funding to be received by Thurrock:

Dedicated Schools Grant 2020/21 2019/20 Increase

£m £m £m
Schools 127.474 119.434 8.040
Central Services 1.850 2.073 (0.223)

High Needs 25.464 23.253 2.211
Early Years 12.413 12.332 0.081
Total 167.201 157.093 10.109

Thurrock’s funding formula in 2020/21 has implemented the following
principles consistent with the decision made by Cabinet in December 2018:

National Funding Formula values have been applied;

Unallocated funding of £0.9m has allowed an inflationary increase of 1.0168%
to be applied to the Basic Entitlement values;

Retained growth fund has been set at £1.385m; and

Schools Forum have agreed a £0.635m transfer from the Schools Block to the
High Needs Block to support increase demand for Specialist placements and
Education, Health and Care Plans.

Further information for the Dedicated Schools Grant is shown at Appendix 6.

Page 132



10
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11
11.1

11.2

12
121

12.2

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

This report sets out the changes to the current year budget that are proposed
for 2020/21. The impact on services is limited compared to previous years
and allows for significant growth within the council’s frontline services.

Council tax increases will always be recommended by officers, due to their
ability to continue towards financial self-sustainability.

The report also sets out surpluses over the first three years of the MTFS. ltis
recommended that they only be used for one off expenditure as any
commitment to ongoing expenditure will impact on future years as the budgets
become a core requirement.

In previous years, the recommendations to Council have also included
delegations to Cabinet to agree additions to the capital programme under the
following criteria:

e If additional third party resources are been secured, such as government
grants and s106 agreements, for specific schemes;

e Where a scheme is identified that can be classed as ‘spend to save’ —
where it will lead to cost reductions or income generation that will, as a
minimum, cover the cost of borrowing; and

e For Thurrock Regeneration Ltd schemes — these actually also fall under
the ‘spend to save’ criteria set out above but has not been agreed over the
last couple of years.

Reasons for Recommendation

The Council has a statutory requirement to set a balanced budget annually
and to review its adequacy of reserves. This report sets out a balanced
budget for 2020/21 and maintains the £11m level for the General Fund
Balance.

The capital programme forms part of the formal budget setting in February
and is an integral part of the Council’s overall approach to financial planning.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

The budget planning governance structure includes involvement and
consultation with officers, Portfolio Holders and Members. The process
includes the Council Spending Review Panel, made up of cross-party Group
Leaders and Deputies who meet during the budget planning period and ahead
of key decision points. Discussion at CSR in this municipal year has
canvassed opinions on the surplus allocation; of which a number of proposals
mimicked those being drafted by the administration.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered this report at their
meeting on 23 January 2020. Main areas of discussion included:

Page 133



e The proposals for the general Council Tax increase and the additional
increase to fund adult social care;

e Wider sources of funding that underpin the delivery of the 2020/21 budget;
e The impact of cost pressures identified in the current financial year;

e The impact of the wider investment strategy and the associated borrowing;
e The democratic oversight

e The outcomes from the community and equality impact assessment that was
undertaken.

There were specific recommendations for consideration by Cabinet moved
formally by the committee, although, these were not carried through a majority
vote — these included a triple freeze for housing rents, housing service
charges and Council Tax, a proposal to scrap the Civic Offices project and for
Cabinet to agree to net zero carbon emissions by 2030.

13 Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

13.1 There are increases to frontline services where pressures have been
identified in the current year that will help the council to deliver both its
statutory services and priority areas.

13.2 The surpluses will also allow for additionality in services through
enhancement, provision of new services or, indeed, a major capital
investment in the borough.

13.3 Capital budgets provide the finance to meet the Corporate Priorities. If a
capital project was not to proceed, this may impact, positively or negatively,
on the delivery of these priorities and performance with a corresponding
impact on the community.

14 Implications
14.1 Financial

Implications verified by: Sean Clark

Corporate Director of Finance, Governance
and Property

Council officers have a legal responsibility to ensure that the Council can
contain spend within its available resources. Regular budget monitoring
reports will continue to come to Cabinet and be considered by the Directors’
Board and management teams in order to maintain effective controls on
expenditure. Internal austerity measures in place are continually reinforced
across the Council in order to reduce ancillary spend and to ensure that

Page 134



14.2

everyone is aware of the importance and value of every pound of the
taxpayers money that is spent by the Council.

Whilst this draft budget report sets a balanced budget, it does not include a
full council tax increase and so reduces the council’s ability to maximise
council tax streams going forward in its aim to become financially self-
sufficient. Each 1% is circa £0.7m that is then lost to the income stream for
perpetuity at a time where the government has made clear that councils will
need to finance services through local revenues from both council tax and
business rates, along with other forms of income generation

The government in setting its grant support for the coming year has made the
assumption that this funding would be realised and this assumption will also
influence the Comprehensive Spending Review in 2020 that will determine the
amounts of business rates that the Council will be able to retain for the
delivery of local services over the period 2021-2024.

Recent announcements from CIPFA has raised concerns over the amount of
property and other investments that local authorities are carrying out and the
advice is clear that there needs to be more tangible benefits to the local
authority area and its residents as opposed to purely financial gain. The
government, in its announcement of the draft finance settlement,
acknowledged this position and left the possibility of a future discussion with
the Treasury open. Thurrock Council’s investments do fall within the accepted
parameters when considering the allocation of surpluses to enhance and/or
provide new services.

Cabinet should note that even without investment targets included, the budget
remains in balance thus demonstrating that the targets are not simply
replacing a council tax increase.

Legal

Implications verified by: Tim Hallam

Acting Assistant Director Law & Governance,
Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

There are statutory requirements of the Council’s Section 151 Officer in
relation to setting a balanced budget. The Local Government Finance Act
1988 (Section 114) prescribes that the responsible financial officer “must
make a report if he considers that a decision has been made or is about to be
made involving expenditure which is unlawful or which, if pursued to its
conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency to the
authority”. This includes an unbalanced budget.

Page 135



14.3 Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie Smith

Community Development and Equalities
Manager

All local authorities are required to have due regard to their duties under the
Equality Act 2010. A comprehensive Community and Equality Impact
Assessment (CEIA) has been completed for council tax increases.

The capital programme is assessed at key stages to ensure the impact of
each scheme is measured in a propionate and appropriate way to ensure this
duty is met and the needs of different protected characteristics are
considered.

14.4 Other implications (where significant — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder, and Impact on Looked After Children)

Budget surpluses to date have been used to support action against Anti-
Social Behaviour and to secure more police officers within the borough. The

surpluses have also allowed increased activity within Environmental Services
whilst also investing in social care to support the borough’s vulnerable.

15 Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):

e Budget working papers held in Corporate Finance
e Budget Review Panel papers held in Strategy and Communications

16  Appendices to the report
e Appendix 1 — Medium Term Financial Strategy
e Appendix 2 — Indicative Service Budgets 2020/21
e Appendix 3 — Current Capital Programme
e Appendix 4 — Future and Aspirational Projects
¢ Appendix 5 - New Capital Projects

e Appendix 6 — DSG 2020/21

Report Authors:

Sean Clark
Corporate Director Finance, Governance and Property

Page 136



Medium Term Financial Strategy

Appendix 1

. 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Narrative
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
; . :
1 H 1
1. Local Funding : 1 | 1
Council Tax Base / Charge 1.5% (1,770) . 1 (2,099 : (2,162) 1 (2,228) : (2,253)
Council Tax Social Care Precept 2% (1,337) | : 0 ! 0 ) 0 !
(3,107) : (2,099) 1 (2,162) 1 (2,228) 1 (2,253)
1
. : : :
Business Rates Precept (728) 1 : (500) ! (665) ' (665) I (665)
(728) ! (500) (665) 1 (665) | (665)
1
2. Total Government Resources 1 : : :
Revenue Support Grant (109) : 6,831 1 : 0 | 0
Transfer to funding formula under 75% retention 0 1 (6,831) : 1 0 : 0
Additional Social Care Grant (2,705) : 0 : : 0 : 0
New Homes Bonus 114 \ : 527 1 491 1 289 1 0
Other Grants 252 . 283 ' 0 | 0 ' 0
(2,449) : 810 1 491 : 289 1 0
! | - |
LI 1 1
Net (Additional) Reduction in resources (6,283) 1 1 (1,789) 1 (2,337) (2,605) 1 (2,918)
T T T T
1 1 1 1
3. Inflation and other increases : : : :
Pay award at 2.8%, Increments and legislative changes 2,913 \ 1 2,624 ! 2,703 I 2785 12,869
1 1 1
Contractual and Non Contractual Inflation 789 ' 848 ] 912 ] 980 ] 993
3,702 1 3412 3615 3,765 | 3,862
| : - :
4. Treasury | 1 : |
1
Investment income (3,818) | (3,214) I (3,756) 1 (1,700) |
1 1
Interest Costs 538 \ | 2,570 1 2,500 : 2,065 1
MRP 1,102 ) 308 : 32 ! 0 ;
_— —_— —_— —_—
Treasury and Capital Financing (2,178) 1 (336) 1 (1,224) 1 365 1 0
1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1
5. Allocation of Social Care Funding 1 : 1 :
Adults Social Care - Precept 1,336 : 1 : 1
Adults Social Care - Social Care Grant 738 | | : : :
Children Social Care - Social Care Grant 1,968 1 ! 1 !
- 1 | 1 |
4042 0, 0, 0, 0
1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1
6. Corporate & Demographic Growth 3,346 1 2,314 1 2,314 2,314 1 2,314
1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1
7. Services Design Principals and Strategic Boards (900) : (1,000) ! (1,000) 1 0! 0
1 1 L}
1
Position before carry forward 1,730 2,662 1,368 3,839 3,258
1
1 1 1 1
Clf Position (5803) | (4,074) | (1412) | (45) |
1 1 1 1
Working Total (4,074) (1,412) (45) 3,795 3,258

Page 137



Appendix 2
Indicative Service Budgets 2020/21

. Service
n . Council . .
Revised Council . Business . Treasury & . Design Base
Directorate 19/20 Tax charge [t Rates RSG B EIRE ey Inflation Central szl (_:are el Surplus Principles Budget
o Care grant Grants h . Expenditure Growth .
Budget 2% o Precept Financing & Strategic 2020/21
precept 2%
boards
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adults, Housing and Health 39,298 0 0 0 0 (737) 0 617 0 2,074 0 0 41,252
Central Financing & Treasury (141,361) (1,770) (1,336) (728) (109) 0 366 0 (2,178) 0 1,287 (1,730) 0 (147,559)
Children's Services 38,848 0 0 0 0 (1,968) 0 882 0 1,968 0 (350) 39,380
Commercial Services 757 0 0 0 0 0 0 31 0 0 188 0 976
Cymporate Costs 4,272 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 402 (550) 4124
@ironment and Highways 28,253 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,109 0 0 90 0 29,452
mance, Governance and Property 16,436 0 0 0 0 0 0 409 0 0 730 0 17,575
=

idgosing General Fund 1,114 0 0 0 0 0 0 55 0 0 300 0 1,469
WOD and Transformation 4772 0 0 0 0 0 0 156 0 0 0 0 4,928
Place 4,818 0 0 0 0 0 0 310 0 0 223 0 5,351
SIS L 2,793 0 0 0 0 0 0 133 0 0 126 0 3,052
Customer Services

Grand Total 0 (1,770) (1,336) (728) (109) (2,705) 366 3,702 (2,178) 4,042 3,346 (1,730) (900) 0




Current Capital Programme

Children Services 25,141 6,458 - -
Adults, Housing and Health 8,252 5,740 315 -
Environment and Highways 17,373 2,119 458 -
Place 93,640 16,467 13,603 38,000
Finance, Governance and Property 6,421 3,486 1,500 -
HR, OD and Transformation 11,924 - - -

Strategy, Communications and Customer
Services

H&lising HRA

Appendix 3



Future and Aspirational Projects

Directorate

Capital Bid

Project Ambition

Environment and
H{ghways
Q

Thurrock Leisure
Village

A new sporting village would provide the residents of Thurrock
access to much needed leisure facilities fit for the 21st century.
Our current leisure centres are 50+ years old and costing the
council significant maintenance costs. If we do not replace
them now, we will need to spend money in 10 years’ time and
spend an additional £10m in the next few years keeping the
buildings compliant with health and safety laws until they reach
the end of life.

otT ob

Place

Grays South
Regeneration Area -
Development Plots

Development for town centre commercial and residential
around the new pedestrian crossing and public squares to be
created by the Grays South Regeneration Area phases 1 and 2
including possible reconfiguration and generation of alternative
options for the underpass and access to the rail station to
accommodate scheme changes in response to proposals by
New River to redevelop Grays Shopping Centre.

Recent proposals by New River for the redevelopment of the
Grays Shopping Centre would require reconfiguration of the
development site and redesign of access to the underpass and
rail station. Consequently, in addition to the development
feasibility costs there will be additional design costs to ensure
the schemes work together and for the different access
arrangements in to the underpass.

Appendix 4



Adults, Housing and
Health

Integrated Medical
Centre - Tilbury

Future and Aspirational Projects

The Orsett Hospital is planned for closure once services can
be relocated to the four proposed Integrated Medical Centres
earmarked for the Thurrock community at
Tilbury/Grays/Corringham and Purfleet. The proposal for the
Tilbury site if for the Council to build, own and operate the
centre with required space leased to NHS partners over the life
of the asset.

Figance, Governance
#¥d Property
@

A4’

Riverside Youth
Centre -
Refurbishment

The current Youth Centre requires urgent assessment and
there are 3 options under consideration for refurbishment of the
current site. These are listed below and the most appropriate
option will be selected once the feasibility work has been
completed, including a full structural survey of the building.

Option 1 — Refurbishment. In this option all services have been
left in their existing locations to avoid he additional cost of re-
routing the existing services to new locations.

Option 2 - Refurbishment / Remodelling using the buildings
uniquely curved walls as inspiration the services have been
spread around the central hall as the main hub of activity.

Option 3 - Remodelling - This option is focused around the
central hall and curving all facilities and services around this
central core / hub.

Appendix 4



Place

Aveley Freight
Management (Ship
Lane Scheme)

Future and Aspirational Projects

This project will deliver a scheme to physically prevent HGV
access from M25 J31 north into Aveley Village, diverting HGVs
along the prescribed route of A1306. The initial feasibility
study has identified a range of options, but through Public
engagement in January 2019, residents supported the
inclusion of a roundabout structure to be installed on Ship Lane
and to provide a facility with a turn-around point. The location
of scheme is to be determined but due to the scale the land
acquisition will need to be advanced. The detailed design is to
be advanced to identify the most appropriate location.

ZvT abed

Adults, Housing and
Health

Corve Lane Complex

This proposal is to convert the unit so it can be used as a
hostel for all ages that is owned and managed by Thurrock
Council to avoid the use of hotels and out of the borough
accommodation. The building is a large complex spread over
two floors, the proposal would be to utilise the existing layout
as much as possible to create individual bedrooms with shared
kitchen and bathroom facilities and the building would be run
as a hostel by the Council’s temporary accommodation team in
housing for homeless families. The building will need complete
refurbishment back to the core building fabric therefore costs
have been allowed to undertake this. Authorisation is required
for change of use from an education establishment and this
time limit is not currently defined therefore, additional time
allowance has been allowed for this proceed to take place.

Appendix 4



Environment and
Highways

Thurrock Parkway
depot design and
development

Future and Aspirational Projects

The Environment and Highways Directorate currently occupy
land at Oliver Close and St Clements Way in adjacent depots.
Oliver Close is currently leased and has 23 years of the lease
remaining whilst St Clements Way is council owned. The
Directorate have seen additional departments added over
recent years and have tried to centralise all teams within one
location. This growth has put further demands on the two
depots with regards to space and location. It should also be
noted that the Council has a statutory obligation to have an
operating centre that has the ability to house the amount of
vehicles nominated on its operator’s licence. Thurrock Parkway
has been highlighted as an alternative solution for a possible
relocation due to an increase in space and the central location
within the borough for transport access and ability to respond
and carry out its daily duties.

e T abed

Appendix 4



Future and Aspirational Projects

Place

v T abed

Grays South
Regeneration Area
extension

To deliver the Grays underpass, associated public realm and
development plots an indicative red line area has been
established to define the extent of required land assembly.
Currently, the land assembly boundary focusses on the
minimum area required to deliver the underpass. This project
undertakes to complete a feasibility study to explore the merits
of extending the development area northwards to George
Street and westwards to Morrisons to create a larger, more
flexible development plot, improve town centre circulation,
respond to design challenges created by the proposals for the
shopping centre area being promoted by New River and take
advantage of potential funding opportunities available under
the Future High Street Fund or Town Fund.

An initial feasibility study will establish the approach to delivery
including capacity studies, design studies alongside New River
developing proposals for Grays Shopping Centre, and
development appraisals to define development costs and
returns.

Children’s Services

Oaktree Centre
Feasibility /Surveys

The project is to survey and identify the work needed to
consider the redevelopment or remodelling to make the centre
fit for purpose for the provision of the service needs.

Appendix 4



Future and Aspirational Projects

Place

Coalhouse Fort Radar
Tower

Capital funding is required to carry out immediate repairs and
to undertake a further programme of investigative works. The
investigation must be done at the same time as the repairs due
to the need to break open failing concrete/examining steel
surrounded by concrete. The results of the investigations may
produce a need for further capital.

GiT obed

Appendix 4



Essential Works

New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

Pxncipal Bridge
pections and
renedial works

|_\
N
(@))

Environment &
Highways

To instigate a rolling programme, over 5
years, of Principal Inspections (Pls), of
approximately 110 structures, on average
22 per year. Carrying out any subsequent
essential remedial works to rectify any
identified defects, allowing for rail
possession costs, specialist access
equipment and traffic management and
work costs. Structures are required to be
inspected both every 2 years (general
inspections) and every 6 years (detailed
principal inspections). This includes a risk
based approach based on the results of
this data to reduce future costs by
performing Pls on lower risk structures
every 12 years as recommended by the
document 'Well-Maintained Highway
Infrastructure - A Code of Practice’.

3,250,000
(over 5
years)

750,000

850,000

1,650,000

Ship Lane
Traveller's Site
Day Room Re-
Development

Adults, Housing &
Health

The project is for the demolition of all
existing day rooms and associated
extensions at Ship Lane Traveller’s Site,
Aveley, and the re-construction of all 21
plots to include a new kitchen, bathroom
and living space. In view of current site
conditions and the level of works required
to ensure statutory obligations are
complied with it has been deemed more
cost effective to undertake the demolition

1,448,345

800,000

648,345




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

route when compared to traditional
refurbishment schemes.

Arterial Road -
Safety &
Maintenance
Works

Environment &
Highways

To resurface the entire extent between
West Thurrock Way and the Lakeside
Spiral before further deterioration occurs
and deeper, more expensive treatments
are needed. In addition whilst works are
being undertaken the concrete lamp
columns will also be replaced and ongoing
costs will be reduced.

790,000

395,000

395,000

L:chaI Road

hancement
eme

D
~

Environment &
Highways

This project is for the overlay of four
concrete roads and intermittent repairs on
those roads which are subject to significant
feedback from residents and on heavily
used roads in the borough. Eight sites
have been selected based on either the
number of unique comments received or
the overall traffic levels.

750,000

375,000

375,000




Projects with Invest to Save Elements

New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

ative

erprise Units

42HHPP

|_\
N
(0 0]

Place

The Council is working in partnership with
HHPP to develop a ¢.30,000 ft? purpose-
built facility of creative makers’ workspace
with a broad range of unit sizes to support
creative micro and SMEs on the
Production Park as part of the Council’s
Enterprise Unit programme to provide a
platform for small and medium sized
businesses to develop and flourish.

Cabinet has granted in-principle approval
on 11 Mar 2015 (Decision Notice:
01104382) to invest £2.5m in Creative
Enterprise Units at High House Production
Park. It is recommended that the budget
allocation is increased to £5.25m.This will
enable the proposals to continue to be
developed and for funding applications to
be made. Additional funding will be sought
from external sources if the project scope
exceeds the proposed capital budget.

5,250,000
(over 5
years)

375,000

4,898,000

High House
Complex
Restoration

Place

The Council is working in partnership with
HHPP to re-develop High House Complex
to provide a community museum and
further creative workspace on the
Production Park. The proposals are at an
early stage of development, but initial
studies indicate that the building could
provide between 5,000sqft to 6,000sqft of
accommodation with development cost

1,000,000

250,000

750,000




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

estimates ranging from £3.5m to £4.5m.
The proposal is for the Council to invest
around £1m in exchange for a long lease
on circa 5,000 sq ft of creative workspace.
HHPP would then bid for Heritage Lottery
Fund’s Heritage Enterprise Grant with the
Council’s investment in creative workspace
as match to support the capital works. The
viability of this development is subject to
HLF grant funding.

61T abed

Flats Recycling

Environment &
Highways

This is a project to encourage and enable
residents who live in blocks of flats across
the Borough to effectively participate in
recycling their household waste. The
intervention takes the form of targeted
engagement and education for residents
and a review of bin stores. Clearer signage
and specialist recycling bins are installed
as appropriate for each site. This follows
an approach that has been tried and tested
by other Local Authorities. With over 350
blocks of flats, equating to more than
10,000 households, current projections
based on the pilot, are that the project has
potential to improve the recycling rate by
between 3 and 5%. The annual potential
saving, based on current recycling gate
fees will be approximately £80k. One area
of uncertainty is the cumulative impact of
increased engagement of households in
recycling activities, but this project would

981,000

647,000

334,000




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

ensure that all our residents are being
treated equally and consistently with the
same opportunity to recycle.

0GT abed



New Standalone Bids

New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

Kerb-It

Place

Kerb-It will deliver a programme of
hardstanding improvements for grassed
verge protection/conversion on local roads
where parking capacity is identified as an
issue. The priority locations to be taken
forward for consideration and
implementation are South Ockendon,
Stifford Clays (lodge lane), Tilbury and
Aveley

3,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

A.?J01 3 School
agress
i@)rovements

=

Place

The project will deliver a scheme to
provide dedicated access to 4 schools in
Little Thurrock (2 existing and 2 new). A
feasibility study is underway to determine
the suitability of an access onto the A1013
Stanford Road.

2,000,000

200,000

1,800,000

O
H

Purfleet Centre

Place

The Purfleet Centre is a £1bn scheme to
deliver a new town centre, up to 2,850
new homes and all associated
infrastructure. The Council has entered
into a Development Agreement (DA) with
PCRL to deliver the scheme and through
this contract has a number of obligations.
To date the professional fees associated
with supporting the Council in its role as
partner in the DA have been paid from a
ring-fenced budget inherited from the
former Thurrock Thames Gateway
Development Corporation. This budget
has been utilised and further provision is
needed to ensure that the Council can

1,500,000
(over 5
years)

300,000

300,000

900,000




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

fulfil its obligations and secure the best
outcomes from the project.

London Road,
SLH - Bridge
194 Renewal

Environment &
Highways

A range of options are being considered
with the most expensive option being the
potential renewal of an aged (almost 100
year old) bridge on London Road,
Stanford le Hope due to failing critical
(load-bearing) elements. Amendments to
the structure are needed as part of the
Stanford-Le-Hope station redevelopment
however these are severely limited due to
the current condition of the bridge. By
undertaking repairs or renewal in the FY
2020/21 costs can be saved by combining
works with the station redevelopment

Up to
1,060,000

Up to
1,060,000

2ST abed

National Cycle
Network 13
improvements

Place

The scheme is for the implementation of a
strategic cycle network between Grays
and East Tilbury, via Tilbury Town. There
is no additional government funding
associated with this work at this time. The
Infrastructure Development Programme
(CIDP) funds have now been used and
the programme of improvements is
complete.

1,000,000

520,000

480,000

Oracle
Enhancements

HR,OD and
Transformation

Since Oracle Cloud's go live in April 2019
there have been a number of
enhancements that have become
available (such as the Contract
Management module) and opportunities
for further direct integration with other,
currently separate, Corporate systems

742,000

254,000

488,000




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

(such as the Matrix SCM system). It is
expected that further enhancements
and/or integrations will be required over
the coming years. Because of the delayed
progress of the current Oracle Cloud roll-
out there is still unspent Capital budget
reserved for 2019-20 and forecasted for
2020-21 in a previous year's submission.
This bid allows for the carry forward of
some of that budget plus increasing it over
the following 2 years giving an overall
Oracle development pot of circa £1m over
the next 3 years.

€GT abed

Core Licencing

HR, OD and
Transformation

The majority of core licences e.g.
Microsoft, MacAfee, Mimecast were
originally sized for 2100 users. Recent
usage reports identified that there are
currently 2435 active users connected to
the Thurrock Network. Under the licence
terms these users must be licenced
adequately. This will exclude licensing for
line of business applications such as
Objective, Oracle etc. and is only scoped
for the core infrastructure that requires a
licence for every connected users and
device. ICT will work with its licensing
partners to determine and review
alternative license options e.g. cheaper
Microsoft licences are available for users
who do not require the full Microsoft office
suite.

600,000
(over 5
years)

120,000

120,000

360,000




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

Cwalhouse Fort
B8l Match
Fonding Horizon
Brterprise

ol

B

HWRC Site
Extension

Place

Environment &
Highways

Coalhouse Fort is classified as a heritage
at risk asset by Historic England and it has
come into a bad state of repair due to
years of neglect. * The recent feasibility
report identified the barracks block and
several of the casemates as key areas of
the fort that can be renovated to provide a
rentable space with options for either
workspace or residential uses under
consideration. External funding secured
last year has allowed a business plan to
support this model but that grant support
will be required in the first instance to
support viability due to the conservation
deficit created by the scheduled nature of
the site. Thurrock has submitted a
declaration of interest to the Heritage
Horizon Award that takes applications for
grants in excess of £5million. The award
requires a 10% contribution to the
development phase in addition to 10%o0n
the delivery phase. Thurrock Council is
seeking £5,125,000 for the works at the
Fort and will require a contribution of
£515,200.

Extension of HWRC site - As part of the
HWRC redevelopment, a temporary site
was to be provided on the existing site,
while development took place. Early
discussion with bidders during the
procurement stage identified this couldn't

515,200

1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

165,000

330,200




New Capital Projects

Appendix 5

Project

Directorate

Project Ambition

Total
Value

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23
onwards

be provided safely due to the size of the
site. During discussions with planning for
the temporary site provision, it has been
established that subject to planning
consent an area adjacent to the existing
HWRC site could be used as a temporary
site and later incorporated into the future
development to increase capacity to
accommodate future growth in the
borough. This is additional to the original
capital bid for the new HWRC site.

GGT obed



Appendix 6
DSG 2020/21

Dedicated Schools Grant 2020/21

In September, the government announced schools and high needs funding for
the 3 year period 2020/21 to 2020/23. The table below shows the funding to be
received by Thurrock in 2020/21, following the Secretary of State for Education
announcement on December:

Dedicated Schools Grant 2020/21 2019/20 Increase
£m £m £m
Schools 127.474 119.434 8.040
Central Services 1.850 2.073 (0.223)
High Needs 25.464 23.253 2.211
Early Years 12.413 12.332 0.081
Total 167.201 157.093 10.109

Schools Block

The increase in funding of £8.040m is as a result of increases to funding rates
of £5.435m; increase 584 pupils, realising additional funding of £2.968m and a
decrease in the growth fund by £0.363m.

In 2020/21, this funding will continue to be distributed using the Schools
National Funding Formulae (NFF). The key aspects of the formula for 2020/21
are:

e The minimum per pupil funding levels will be set at £3,750 for primary

schools and £5,000 for secondary schools.

e The funding floor will be set at 1.84% per pupil.
It remains the government’s intention to move to a ‘hard’ NFF, where budgets
will be set on the basis of a single, national formula.

In 2020/21 local authorities continue to have discretion over their schools
funding formulae in their area. In determining its local funding formula for
2019/20, Thurrock Council agreed that the NFF would be implemented in full
from 2020/21.

Thurrock’s funding formula in 2020/21 has implemented the following principles
consistent with the decision made by Cabinet in December 2018:
e National Funding Formula values have been applied;
e Unallocated funding of £0.9m has allowed an inflationary increase of
1.0168 to be applied to the Basic Entitlement values;
¢ Retained growth fund has been set at £1.385m
e Schools Forum have agreed a £0.635m transfer from the Schools Block to
the High Needs Block to support increase demand for Specialist
placements and Education, Health and Care Plans.

Central Services Block

In 2020-21, historic commitments funding to be received will be reduced by
20%. For Thurrock this is a £0.256m reduction and will be incurred for the next
5 years until the historic commitments is removed.

Page 156


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/NFF

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Appendix 6
DSG 2020/21

High Needs Block

The High Needs NFF for 2020/21 remains unchanged. However, with over
£780 million of additional funding, the formula will ensure that every local
authority will receive an increase of at least 8%.

Thurrock is to receive an increase of £2.211m or 9.51%. Whilst the increase is
welcome, Thurrock continues to experience high level of demand for Specialist
places and Education, Health and Care Plans.

A very challenging and stretching balanced budget is proposed but within this
key risks of £1.4m have been identified, if demand continues are the same rate
as in 2019/20.

Meetings are planned with Head teachers and the ESFA over the coming
months to discuss options available to reduce demand and costs.

Early Years Block

The Early Years funding allocation has increased by £66 million in 2020/21.
The rate paid to Thurrock will increase by 8p per hour. This is the first increase
that Thurrock has received since 2016/17.

Following discussion with the Schools Forum and Early Year’'s Providers the
proposal is to:
e passport in full the 8p increase in hourly rates to providers;
¢ increase the deprivation quantum from £220,000 to £285,000, and change
the formula to be based on the postcode of the child.
¢ increase the hourly rate paid to 3 and 4 year old providers by an additional
2p per hour, with a cost implication of £45,000;
e The hourly rates to be paid to providers are shown below:

2019/20 2020/21
2 Year Old £5.07 £5.15
3 &4 Year Old £4.18 £4.28

The total cost implication of £110,000 is to be funded from the ring-fenced
Dedicated Schools Grant carried forward allocation of £167,000.

A final decision is to be made by the Schools Forum in March, pending the
outcome of the January 20 census return, to understand if the proposal can be
funded on an ongoing basis.

Conditions of Grant

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) conditions of grant are expected to
change with effect from the end of the financial year 2019/20. The change will
clarify that councils are not expected to use their general reserves to fund
deficits in the DSG but must carry forward overspends. The aim is to stop Local
Authorities from reducing funding for other services to cover deficits, which are
mostly due to high needs pressures. The Department for Education wants DSG
deficits to be covered from DSG income over time. No timescale has been set
for the length of this process.

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

12 February 2020 ITEM: 15
Cabinet
Capital Strategy 2020/21

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Councillor Shane Hebb — Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Transformation

Accountable Assistant Director: Jonathan Wilson, Assistant Director - Finance

Accountable Director: Sean Clark, Corporate Director of Finance, Governance and
Property

This report is public

Executive Summary

The Capital Strategy has been developed to apply from 2019/20 in accordance with
revised guidance contained in The Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services
and the Prudential Code (The Code). This sets out the strategic framework
underpinning capital expenditure and the associated financing at the Council.

This also includes the Treasury Management Strategy which was previously
considered in isolation up to 2018/19. It is also intrinsically linked to the council’s
ambitions of becoming a more commercially focused borough; one where sensible
transactions are completed which create revenue returns which is then allocated to
spending on the services which Thurrock residents use and depend. This income
continues to support and enhance service delivery in the borough.

The Code requires local authorities to determine the Capital Strategy and the
associated Prudential Indicators on an annual basis. The annual strategy also
includes the Treasury Management Strategy that is a requirement of the Ministry for
Housing, Communities and Local Government Investment Guidance.

In accordance with the above Codes, this report:
a) sets out the Capital strategy for 2020/21;
b) confirms the proposed Prudential Indicators; and

c) sets out the Capital and Treasury Management projections for 2020/21.

Page 159



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.2

2.3

3.2

Recommendation(s)
That the Cabinet recommends that Full Council:

Approve the Capital Strategy for 2020/21 including approval of the
Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) statement for 2020/21;

Approve the adoption of the prudential indicators as set out in Appendix
1; and

Note the revised 2019/20 and 2020/21 Treasury Management projections
as set out in Annex 1 paragraph 2.32

Considers the recommendation from the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to further increase the democratic oversight of
investment activity

Introduction and Background

The Capital Strategy and the Annual MRP Statement are prepared under the
terms of the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities
(the Code) and approval is sought for the adoption of the Prudential Indicators
that have been developed in accordance with the Code.

The report also includes a forecast for Interest Receivable from Investments
and the indicative Interest Payable on Borrowing.

The report covers a range of areas as set out below with the detailed
document attached at Appendix 1.

Borrowing Activity

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

The Capital strategy of the Council is attached as an appendix to this report
and has been set with consideration of relevant legislation and appropriate
guidance. This includes Annex 1 which incorporates the Treasury
Management Strategy. The Prudential Indicators are governed by decisions
made on the revenue and capital budgets.

The Capital Strategy sets out a high-level overview of how capital
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to
the provision of local public services along with an overview of how
associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial
sustainability. It includes the following:

e Details of capital expenditure and financing;

e The governance arrangements around the identification and approval
of capital bids;

e Details on the sources of funding and projections on capital receipts;

Page 160



3.3

5.2

5.3

b)

e The strategic approach of the Council to borrowing and the governance
arrangements in place;

e The proposed prudential indicators for 2020/21;

e Details of the Council’s strategic approach to investments and
commercial activities;

e Details of other liabilities and revenue implications arising from this
strategy; and

e A further annex containing the detailed treasury management strategy
that supports the capital strategy. This includes the annual statement
on the Minimum Revenue Provision.

There are two key areas in this report for Members to be particularly mindful
of:

The Council has held significant levels of temporary borrowing since 2010 and
hence there is potential exposure to interest rate changes. Officers continue
to monitor this to ensure the Council can react to any changes in the economy
through MTFS forecasting; and

The approach taken to the Minimum Revenue Provision (as set out in Annex

1).
Reasons for Recommendation

There is a statutory requirement for the Capital Strategy and the Annual
Minimum Revenue Provision Statement to be ratified by Full Council. This
report and appendices have been written in line with best practice and the
Council’s spending plans

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

As set out in section 4, the report is largely based on best practice and the
Council’s spending plans that have been scrutinised throughout recent
months.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the report at their
meeting on 23 January 2020.

The discussion included consideration of:
e capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity
e a summary of the overall treasury position of the Council

e asummary of the approach to short term and long term borrowing
including an explanation of how the local authority market provides the
opportunity for investment and borrowing at competitive interest rates

e how assurance is provided by external agencies to support the level of
investment risk taken on by the Council

Page 161



5.4

6.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

e An overview of the impact of the guidance the Council is required to
meet on the treasury activity undertaken.

The Committee recommended to Cabinet that it should consider the best way
to increase the democratic oversight of investments.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

Treasury Management plays a significant role in funding the delivery of
services to the community. The debt restructuring carried out in August 2010
will have contributed savings in the region of £32.2m by the end of 2019/20.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by:  Chris Buckley
Treasury Management Officer

The financial implications are included in the main body of the report and
appendix. Investment income generated from the Investment Strategy
contributes significantly to the council’s financial position.

Legal

Implications verified by: ~ Tim Hallam

Acting Assistant Director for Law &
Governance, Head of Legal and Monitoring
Officer

The report is in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, related
secondary legislation and other requirements including the Prudential Code.

Publication of the strategies is a statutory requirement and conforms to best
practice as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by:  Becky Lee
Team Manager - Community Development

There are no direct diversity implications noted in this report

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Section 17, Risk Assessment,
Health Impact Assessment, Sustainability, IT, Environmental

e Not applicable

Page 162



8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):

e Revised CIPFA Prudential Code

e Revised draft ODPM’s Guidance on Local Government Investments

e Revised CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public Services Code of
Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes

e Treasury Management Policy Statement

e 2017/18 Annual Investment Strategy

e Arlingclose Sector Briefings

9. Appendices to the report

e Appendix 1 — Capital Strategy Report 2020/21
e Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21

Report Author:

Chris Buckley
Senior Financial Accountant
Corporate Finance

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Thurrock Council
Capital Strategy Report 2020/21
Introduction

This capital strategy is a refreshed report for 2020/21, giving a high-level overview of
how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity
contribute to the provision of local public services along with an overview of how
associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability. It
has been written in an accessible style to enhance Members’ understanding of these
sometimes technical areas.

Capital Expenditure and Financing

Capital expenditure is where the Council spends money on assets, such as property
or vehicles that will be used for more than one year. In local government this
includes spending on assets owned by other bodies, and loans and grants to other
bodies enabling them to buy or build assets. The Council has some limited discretion
on what counts as capital expenditure, for example assets costing below £10k are
not capitalised and are charged to revenue in year.

e Details of the Council’s policy on capitalisation are included within the
annual Statement of Accounts, which can be accessed through the
Council’s website.

In 2020/21, the Council is planning capital expenditure of £341.471m as summarised
below:

Table 1: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Expenditure in £m

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
actual forecast | forecast | forecast | forecast
General Fund 44.643 171.592 63.723 61.180 98.998
services
Council housing 21.303 30.219 27.748 29.717 19.155
(HRA)
Capital investments 401.176 54.170 250.000 250.000 250.000
TOTAL 467.122 255.981 341.471 340.897 368.153

The main General Fund capital projects include the widening of the A13, eastbound
slip roads on the A13 at Lakeside, Purfleet redevelopment, refurbishment works at
Thameside and Civic Offices and school expansions. The Council also plans to incur
£250.0m of capital expenditure on investments, which are detailed later in this report.

Page 165



The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures that
council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local services.

HRA capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately, and includes the building
of 117 new homes over the forecast period (£24m).

Governance: Service managers bid annually in September to include projects in the
Council’s capital programme. Bids are collated by corporate finance who calculate
the financing cost (which can be nil if the project is fully externally financed). The
bids are then collated and prioritised by either Property Board, Digital Board or
Service Review. The proposed programme is then considered by Director’s Board.
This includes a final appraisal of all bids including final consideration of service
priorities and financing costs. The final proposed capital programmes is then collated
and reported with recommendations to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
committee. The final capital programme is then presented to Cabinet and to Council
in February each year as part of the overall budget setting process.

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources (government
grants and other contributions), the Council’s own resources (revenue, reserves and
capital receipts) or debt (borrowing, leasing and Private Finance Initiative). The
planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows:

Table 2: Capital financing in £m

2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 2022/23

actual forecast | forecast | forecast forecast
External sources 30.557 82.234 22174 18.891 46.750
Own resources 19.872 21.034 14.515 10.757 11.415
Debt 416.693 | 152.713 | 304.782| 311.249 309.988
TOTAL 467.122 | 255.981 | 341.471| 340.897 368.153

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid,
and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue
which is known as the minimum revenue provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds
from selling capital assets (known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt
finance and repayments of investments on maturity will repay the associated debt.
Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows:

Table 3: Minimum Revenue Provision in £m

2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 2022/23
actual forecast | forecast | forecast forecast
Own resources 2.808 5.343 7.893 9.184 9.950

Page 166




The Council’s full minimum revenue provision statement is included in the treasury
management statement appended as an annex to this document.

The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the
capital financing requirement (CFR). This increases with new debt-financed capital
expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital receipts used to replace debt. The
CFR is expected to increase by £294.713m during 2020/21. Based on the above
figures for expenditure and financing, the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows:

Table 4: Prudential Indicator: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement in £m

31.3.2019 | 31.3.2020 | 31.3.2021 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023
actual forecast | forecast | forecast | forecast
General Fund 179.441 262.392 296.498 329.603 371.900
services
Council housing 187.260 197.509 210.292 229.252 236.992
(HRA)
Capital investments 739.847 794.017 | 1,044.017 | 1,294.017 | 1,544.017
TOTAL CFR 1,106.548 | 1,253.918 | 1,550.807 | 1,852.872 | 2,152.909

Asset management: To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use,
the Council is further developing an asset management strategy which will be

completed in 2020/21.

Asset disposals: When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that
the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to repay
debt. The Council is currently also permitted to spend capital receipts on service
transformation projects until 2021/22. Repayments of capital grants, loans and
investments also generate capital receipts. The Council plans to receive £8m of
capital receipts (total includes both GF and HRA receipts) in the coming financial

year as follows:

Table 5: Capital receipts in £m

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

actual forecast | forecast | forecast | forecast
Asset sales 12.038 2.000 8.000 8.000 8.000
Loans repaid 5.525 0.039 0.041 0.043 0.045
TOTAL 17.563 2.039 8.041 80.43 8.045

Page 167




Treasury Management

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash
available to meet the Council’s spending needs, while managing the risks involved.
Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will be met by
borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank current
account.

Due to decisions taken in the past, the Council currently has £1.327bn borrowing at
an average interest rate of 2.45% and £238.2m treasury investments at an average
rate of 3.01%.

Borrowing strategy: The Council’s main objectives when borrowing are to achieve
a low but certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in
future. These objectives are often conflicting, and the Council therefore seeks to
strike a balance between cheap short-term loans (currently available at around 1%)
and long-term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but higher, currently
2.510 3.1%).

Projected levels of the Council’s total outstanding debt (which comprises borrowing,
PFI liabilities, leases are shown below, compared with the capital financing
requirement (see above).

Table 6: Prudential Indicator: Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement in
£m

31.3.2020 | 31.3.2021 | 31.3.2022 | 31.3.2023
forecast | forecast | forecast | forecast
Debt (incl. PFI & 1.327.000 | 1,550.808 | 1,852.872 | 2,152.909
leases)
Capital Financing 1,253.917 | 1,5650.807 | 1,852.872 | 2,152.909
Requirement

Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing
requirement over the medium to long term but can exceed this in the short term
recognising borrowing requirements ahead of need for future capital expenditure. As
can be seen from table 6, the Council complies with this requirement.

Affordable borrowing limit: The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable
borrowing limit (also termed the authorised limit for external debt) each year. In line
with statutory guidance, a lower “operational boundary” is also set as a warning level
should debt approach the limit.

Page 168



Table 7: Prudential Indicators: Authorised limit and operational boundary for external

debt in £m
2019/20 | 2020/21 2021/22 | 2022/23
Forecast Iimit Iimit Iimit
Authorised limit — borrowing 1,452.949 | 1,683.963 | 1,936.565 | 2,196.509
Authorised limit — PFIl and leases 0.400 0.200 0.000 0.000
Authorised limit — total external 1,453.349 | 1,684.163 | 1,936.565 | 2,196.509
debt
Operational boundary — borrowing | 1,352.949 | 1,583.963 | 1,836.565 | 2,096.509
Operational boundary — PFl and 0.400 0.200 0.000 0.000
leases
Operational boundary — total 1,353.349 | 1,584.163 | 1,836.565 | 2,096.509
external debt

It is noted that should the Council exceed the agreed limits during a specific financial
year then the limits are required to be reset and approved by Members before the
end of that financial year.

Further details on borrowing are contained in the treasury management strategy as
annex 1 on this report.

Investment strategy: Treasury investments arise from receiving cash before it is
paid out again. Investments made for service reasons or for pure financial gain are
not generally considered to be part of treasury management.

The Council’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity over
yield - that is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns. Cash that is
likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example with the
government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to minimise the
risk of loss. Money that will be held for longer terms is invested more widely,
including in bonds, shares and property, to balance the risk of loss against the risk of
receiving returns below inflation. Both near-term and longer-term investments may
be held in pooled funds, where an external fund manager makes decisions on which
particular investments to buy and the Council may request its money back at short
notice.

Further details on treasury investments are contained in the treasury management
strategy as annex 1 to this report.

Governance: Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are
made daily and are therefore delegated to the Director of Finance and staff, who
must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by Full Council.

Page 169



Maturity structure of borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of
borrowing will be:

Refinancing rate risk indicator Upper limit Lower limit
Under 12 months 100% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 60% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 60% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 60% 0%
10 years and within 40 years 60% 0%
Over 40 years 100% 0%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Investments for Service Purposes

The Council can make investments to assist local public services, including making
loans to and buying shares in local service providers, local small businesses to
promote economic growth, the Council’s subsidiaries that provide services. In light of
the public service objective, the Council is willing to take more risk than with treasury
investments, however it still plans for such investments to break even after all costs.

Governance: Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant service
manager in consultation with the Director of Finance and must meet the criteria and
limits laid down in the investment strategy. Most loans and shares are capital
expenditure and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the capital
programme.

Further details on service investments are contained in the treasury management
strategy in annex 1 2 to this report.

Commercial Activities

With central government financial support to local public services declining, the
Council decided to investigate various options to increase income and has
subsequently made investments in line with the principles set out in the Council’s
Investment Strategy.

To this end on 25 October 2017 a Long Term Investment Strategy was approved by
Council outlining the Council’s approach to Service/Non-Treasury/Commercial
Investments rather than the standard treasury investments. The report outlined the

Page 170



key principles involved, governance arrangements and the considerations required
to ensure all investments are thoroughly scrutinised before completion.

Liabilities

In addition to debt detailed above, the Council is committed to making future
payments to cover its pension fund deficit (valued at £162.6m at 31 March 2019). It
has also set aside £4.9m to cover risks of business rates appeals and insurance
claims.

Governance: Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by service
managers in consultation with corporate finance and, where appropriate, the Director
of Finance. The risk of liabilities crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by
corporate finance.

Revenue Budget Implications

Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest
payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any investment income
receivable. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to
the net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and
general government grants.

Table 9: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of net financing income to net revenue
stream

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
forecast budget budget budget

Net Financing costs

(Em) (25,298) | (25,946) | (22,316) | (19,550)

Proportion of net

-25.30% -25.95% -22.32% -19.55%
revenue stream

Sustainability: Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and
financing, the revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few
years will extend into the future. The Director of Finance & IT is satisfied that the
proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable as set out
annually in the s25 statement accompanying the setting of the annual budget.

Knowledge and Skills

The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior
positions with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and
investment decisions. For example, the Director of Finance & IT is a qualified

Page 171



accountant with 32 years’ experience. The Council pays for junior staff to study
towards relevant professional qualifications including CIPFA, ACT (treasury), AAT &
ACCA.

Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of
external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. This approach is
more cost effective than employing such staff directly, and ensures that the Council
has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

Page 172



Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21

The Treasury Management Strategy is a critical component of the way Thurrock
Council manages cash-flow. It is also intrinsically linked to the council’s ambitions of
becoming a more commercially focused borough; one where sensible transactions
are completed which create revenue returns which can then be allocated to spending
on the services for Thurrock residents.

Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of
CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition
(the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a Treasury Management
Strategy before the start of each financial year. This report fulfils the Council’s legal
obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

In accordance with the above Codes, this report:
a) sets out the Treasury Management strategy for 2020/21; and

b) sets out the Treasury Management projections for 2020/21

2 Introduction and Background

2.1 The Treasury Management Strategy and Annual MRP Statement are prepared
under the terms of the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (the Code).

2.2  The report also includes a forecast for Interest Receivable from Investments
and the indicative Interest Payable on Borrowing.

Borrowing Activity 2019/20 and 2020/21

2.3  The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes, as measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), together with the level of balances and
reserves, are the core drivers of Treasury Management activity. The
estimates, based on the current revenue budget and capital programmes are:

31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
General Fund Borrowing CFR 296,468 329,603 371,900
Housing Revenue Account 210,292 229,252 236,992
Borrowing CFR (includes
effects of Housing Finance
Reform based on current
available figures)
Capital Investments 1,044,017 1,294,017 1,544,017

Page 173




Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

Total Borrowing CFR 1,550,777 1,852,872 2,152,909
Less: External Borrowing 1,327,000 1,537,541 1,839,676
Internal/(Over) Borrowing 223,777 315,331 313,233
Less: Useable Reserves (11.000) (11.000) (11.000)
Borrowing Requirement 212,777 304,331 302,233

The increases above demonstrate the size of the council’s capital programme
needs in both recent and future years. Repayments of prudential debt are
made through the annual MRP provision and where surplus cash balances are
accumulated. However, the amounts needed to finance the capital
programme, even just essential operational requirements, are in excess of
these repayments and so lead to an annual increase in net debt.

The Council’s levels of borrowing and investments are calculated by reference
to the balance sheet. The Council’s key objectives when borrowing money are
to secure low interest costs and achieve cost certainty over the period for
which funds are required, all underpinned with sound Return on Investment
principles. A further objective is to provide the flexibility to renegotiate loans

In light of the ongoing reductions to Local Government funding, the Council’s
focus of the treasury management strategy remains on the balance between
affordability and the longer term stability of the debt portfolio. Given the
availability of low short term interest rates it remains cost effective to borrow
over short term periods or utilise internal balances. The table above shows
that it should not be necessary for the Council to borrow further funds above
the current levels and this will be monitored on a regular basis by officers to
assess the most appropriate form of borrowing. In the short term, these
balances are generating investment returns to support service delivery.

This further enables the Council to reduce borrowing costs and hence the
overall treasury management risk. While such a strategy may be beneficial
over the next 2 to 3 years as official interest rates remain low, it is unlikely to
be sustainable in the medium to long-term. The benefits of internal borrowing
will be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring additional costs
by deferring borrowing into future years when long term borrowing rates are
forecast to rise. This will help inform whether the Council borrows additional

In addition, the Council may use short term loans (normally up to one month)
to enable management of the Council’s cash flow and, where possible,

2.4
25
should the Council’s long term plans change.
2.6
2.7
sums at long term fixed rates in 2020/21.
2.8
generate a return on investment
29

The Council will keep under review the following sources for long term and
short term borrowing:

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans and its successor body;
UK Local Authorities;
Any institution approved for investments;

Page 174



Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

210

2.1

212

213

2.14

Any other bank or building society authorised by the Prudential Regulation
Authority to operate in the UK;

Public and private sector pension funds;

Capital market bond investors;

UK Municipal Bonds Agency;

Special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond issues;
Local Authority bills; and

Structured finance, such as operating/finance leases, hire purchase, Private
Finance Initiative or sale and leaseback.

With regards to debt rescheduling, the PWLB allows Councils to repay loans
before maturity and either pay a premium or receive a discount according to a
set formula based on current interest rates. Some lenders may also be
prepared to negotiate premature repayment terms. The Council has in
2019/20 reviewed the debt portfolio to identify opportunities expected to lead
to an overall saving or reduction in risk. At this time, it is not financially prudent
to take any options of early repayment, owing to early redemption fees.

Borrowing and rescheduling activity will be reported to the Cabinet on a
regular basis during 2020/21

In August 2010 the Council repaid its entire PWLB portfolio of loans (£84
million) to obtain significant interest savings. The re-financing was undertaken
by utilising short term funds from the money markets, mainly other Local
Authorities, at substantially lower rates than taking longer term fixed debt. To
the end of 2018/19 the rescheduling had saved £29.2m of interest costs and is
estimated to have saved £32.2m by the end of 2019/20. Currently financing
from short term money market debt is expected to continue into 2020/21 and
beyond. The inherent risk of this strategy is noted with potentially higher rates
and increased debt costs in the future.

The Council retains the ability to fix interest rates. This can be achieved within
a matter of days of the decision being made or profiled against the maturity
schedule of the short term debt. Current Interest rate forecasts show the
interest rate being maintained at 0.75% during 2020 with the official rate
remaining at that level for the foreseeable future. There is both a downside
and upside risk to the forecast with the downside risk being larger in the main
due to potential Brexit issues causing rates to be cut to stimulate the economy,
but, the overall forecast is for rates follow the course outlined. However, even
if the base rate increases to 1.50%, a 0.75% rise, due to any unforeseen
circumstances this will still be below the level of current long term rates that
the Council could borrow at from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). The
recent increase from the PWLB of an additional 1% on top of current loan
rates has led to 5 year rates of 2.52% and 50 year rates of 3.13%. In addition,
as the Council borrows from other public bodies, rates are not fixed to the
bank base rate and are generally lower. The normalised level of the bank
base rate post this period is expected to be between 2.50% to 3.50%.

Based on this outlook, the council may borrow on a short term basis when
deemed beneficial to the taxpayer while monitoring interest rates to ensure

Page 175



Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

borrowing is fixed if required. Prudently, the Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) does assume rate increases over the 5 year period.

The Council has £29 million of loans which are LOBO loans (Lenders Option
Borrowers Option) where the lender has the option to propose an increase in
the interest rate at set dates, following which the Council has the option to
either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost. All of
these loans, excluding one with Barclays, could now be amended at the
request of the lender only and, although the Council understands that lenders
are unlikely to exercise their options in the current low interest rate
environment, there remains an element of refinancing risk. In the event the
lender exercises the option to change the rate or terms of the loan, the Council
will consider the terms being provided and also repayment of the loan without
penalty. The Council may utilise cash resources for repayment or may
consider replacing the loan by borrowing from the PWLB or capital markets.
Barclays have taken out the option to increase the rate of their loan thereby
effectively turning the loan into a fixed rate deal. LOBO loans have become
less attractive to Banks and there may be opportunities in the future to redeem
these loans. Officers will continue to monitor any developments in this area.

On 1 April 2012, the Council notionally split each of its existing long-term loans
into General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) pools. New long-
term loans will be assigned in their entirety to one pool or the other. Interest
payable and other costs and income arising from long-term loans (e.g.
premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged or credited to
the respective revenue account. The Council will credit interest to the HRA
based on the average balances of its reserves and revenue account balance
at the average 7 day LIBID rate for the year.

The Council continues to undertake a series of new housing related building
schemes utilising borrowing. With the abolition of the Housing Debt Cap the
Council will investigate whether further schemes can be undertaken.

Finally, there may be significant regeneration programmes to consider
investment vehicles for. The need to borrow for investment will be on a case
by case basis after considering investment returns, risk and the result of due
diligence.

Investments

The Council holds significant invested funds, representing loans received in
advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. It is envisaged that
investment balances held internally will be approximately £20 million at the
financial year end. The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the
counterparties detailed in Appendix 2.

The Council holds a £103m investment in the CCLA Property Fund that is
estimated to provide a gross return in 2019/20 of 4.25% with income in the
region of £4.3m. The Council has also invested in a number of bonds of
various durations since 2016/17 that provides finance to the private sector for,
as an example, the purchase of solar farms, whilst providing significant net
returns to the council to support front line services in a move towards financial
sustainability.

Page 176



Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

2.21 Local Authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded
into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk and to reduce
costs or increase income at the expense of greater risk. The general power of
competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the
uncertainty over Authorities use of standalone financial derivatives. The CIPFA
code requires authorities to clearly detail their policy on the use of derivatives
in the annual strategy.

2.22 The Council will only use standalone derivatives (such as swaps, forward,
futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the
Council’s overall exposure to financial risks. Additional risks presented, such
as credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account
when determining the overall level of risk. Embedded derivatives, including
those present in pooled funds, will not be subject to this policy, although the
risks they present will be managed in line with the overall Treasury
Management strategy.

2.23 Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that
meets the approved investment criteria. The current value of any amount due
from a derivative counterparty will count against the counterparty credit limit
and the relevant foreign country limit. The Local Authority will only use
derivatives after seeking expertise, a legal opinion and ensuring officers have
the appropriate training for their use.

2.24 The Authority has opted up to professional client status with its providers of
financial services, including, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it
access to a greater range of services, but, without the greater regulatory
protections afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the size and
range of the Council’s treasury management activities the Director of Finance,
Governance & Property believes this to be the most appropriate status.

2.25 The Council complies with the provisions of s32 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 to set a balanced budget.

2.26 The needs of the Council’s Treasury Management staff for relevant training
are assessed as part of the annual staff appraisal process and additionally
where the responsibilities of individual members of staff change. Staff attend
courses, seminars and conferences provided by Financial Authorities and
CIPFA. Corporate Finance staff are encouraged to study for professional
accountancy qualifications from appropriate bodies.

2.27 Under the new IFRS standard the accounting for certain investments depends
on the business model for managing them The Council aims to achieve value
from its internally managed treasury investments by a business model of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where other criteria are
also met, these investments will continue to accounted for at amortised cost.

Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement

2.28 Local Authorities are required to prepare an Annual Statement of their policy
on making MRP for each financial year. Appendix 3 outlines the assessment
of the Council’s Annual MRP Statement for 2020/21, which is included in the
Annual Strategy in paragraph 2.30.

Page 177



Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

2.29 Officers have reviewed the current strategy and recommend no changes to the
2020/21 strategy.

2.30 Consequently the following paragraphs on Borrowing Activity and Investments
form part of the Council's Treasury Management Strategy with effect from 1
April 2020:

2.30.1  To obtain any long term borrowing requirement from the sources of
finance set out in paragraph 2.9;

2.30.2 To continue to fund the ex-PWLB debt via short term funds from the
money markets unless circumstances dictate moving back into long term
fixed rate debt. The borrowing sources mentioned in paragraph 2.9 will
then be assessed as to their suitability for use;

2.30.3 To repay market loans requiring renewal by realising equivalent amounts
of investments. If it is not possible to realise investments then the
borrowing sources in paragraph 2.9 will be assessed as to their suitability
for use as replacements;

2.30.4 To undertake short term temporary borrowing when necessary in order to
manage cash flow to the Council's advantage;

2.30.5 To reschedule market and PWLB loans, where practicable, to achieve
interest rate reductions, balance the volatility profile or amend the debt
profile, dependent on the level of premiums payable or discounts
receivable;

2.30.6 To ensure security and liquidity of the Council’s investments and to then
optimise investment returns commensurate to those ideals;

2.30.7 To contain the type, size and duration of investments with individual
institutions within the limits specified in Appendix 2;

2.30.8 To move further funds into the CCLA Property Fund or other externally
managed funds if it is felt prudent to do so following appropriate due
diligence; and in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Transformation;

2.30.9 To meet the requirements of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 the Council’s
policy for the calculation of MRP in 2020/21 shall be that the Council will
set aside an amount each year which it deems to be prudent and
appropriate, having regard to statutory requirements and relevant
guidance issued by DCLG. The Council will also consider the use of
capital receipts to pay down any MRP incurred; and

2.30.10 To ensure all borrowing and investment activities are made with due
reference to any relevant Prudential Indicators.

Interest Projections 2019/20 Revised and 2020/21 Original
2.31 The CIPFA document Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of

Practice places a requirement on the Council to publish estimates relating to
the operation of the borrowing and investment function.

Page 178



Annex 1 — Treasury Management Strategy.

2.32 The 2019/20 budget and the projected position for 2019/20 as at November
2019 and also an initial projection for 2020/21 are shown in summary format in
the table below:

Budget Projected Projection
2019/20 2019/20  2020/21

£000’s £000's £000's

Interest payable on External Debt

Debt Interest 14,651 15,705

Total internal interest 96 96

Interest payable 0 14,747 15,801

Investment Income

Interest on Investments 0 (46,073) (49.639)
)

Net interest credited to the General 0 (31,326) (33,838)

Fund

MRP- Supported/Unsupported 0 6,018 7,893

Borrowing

2.33 ltis noted that the figures shown above for 2020/21 include assumptions
made about the level of balances available for investment, any anticipated
new long term borrowing and the level of interest rates achievable. They may
be liable to a significant degree of change during the year arising from
variations in interest rates, other market and economic developments, and
Council’s response to those events.

2.34 In accordance with the requirements of the revised CIPFA Treasury
Management Code, the Council will report on treasury management activity
and the outturn against the treasury related Prudential Indicators at least bi-
annually.

Page 179



Appendix2

Approved Investment Counterparties:

Credit Baréks/_Bu_iIding Bankll?ui_lding Government Corporates Registered
ocieties Societies
Rating Unsecured Secured Providers
Amount | Period Amount | Period Amount Period Amount | Period Amount | Period
grcfvt N/A N/A N/A N/A £unlimited | 50 years | N/A N/A N/A N/A
AAA £10m 5 years £20m 20 years £20m 50 years | £10m 20 years £10m 20 years
AA+ £10m 5 years £20m 10 years £20m 25 years | £10m 10 years £10m 10 years
AA £10m 4 years £20m 5 years £20m 15 years | £10m 5 years £10m 10 years
AA- £10m 3 years £20m 4 years £20m 10 years | £10m 4 years £10m 10 years
A+ £10m 2 years £20m 3 years £10m 5years | £10m 3 years £10m 5 years
g-? A £10m 1 year £20m 2 years £10m 5years | £10m 2 years £10m 5 years
L(% A- £7.5m |13 months | £15m 13 months £10m 5years | £10m 13 months | £10m 5 years
= BBB+ £5m 6 months £10m 6 months £5m 2years | £5m 6 months £5m 2 years
g BBB £5m 100 days £10m 100 days N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
BBB- £5m 100 days £10m 100 days N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
None £5m 6 months N/A N/A £5m 25 years | N/A N/A N/A N/A

Pooled Funds ,External Fund Managers and any other investment vehicle approved by the Section 151 Officer — Decisions are
based on each individual case following appropriate due diligence work being undertaken.




Appendix 2

The above limits are the maximum that the Council would expect to have in place at
any time. However, in practice the actual duration limits in place are continually
assessed are often much shorter than the limits in the above table.

Credit ratings: Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published
long-term credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s. Where available,
the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used,
otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used.

Banks and Building Societies Unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit
and senior unsecured bonds. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss
via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail.

Banks and Building Societies Secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase
agreements and other collateralised arrangements. These investments are secured
on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential loss in the unlikely event of
insolvency and means that they are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no
investment specific credit rating, but, the collateral upon which the investment is
secured has a credit rating, the highest of the collateral credit rating and the
counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits. The
combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the
cash limit for secured investments.

Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments,
regional and local authorities and multi development banks. These investments are
not subject to bail-in and there is an insignificant risk of insolvency. Investments with
the UK Central government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than
banks and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but, are
exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent.

Other Organisations — The Council may also invest cash with other organisations, for
example making loans to small businesses as part of a diversified pool in order to
spread the risk widely. Because of the higher perceived risk of unrated businesses
such investments may provide considerably higher rates of return. The Council will
also undertake appropriate due diligence to assist in all investment decisions.

Registered providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the
assets of Registered Providers of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing
Associations. These bodies are tightly regulated by the Homes and Community
Agency and as providers of public services they retain a high likelihood of receiving
Government support if needed.

Pooled Funds: Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any of the
above investment types plus equity shares and property. These funds have the
advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks coupled with the
services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee. Money market funds that
offer same-day liquidity and aim for a constant net asset value will be used as an
alternative to instant access bank accounts while pooled funds whose value changes

Page 181



Appendix 2

with market prices and/or have a notice period will be used for longer investment
periods.

Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but,
are more volatile in the short term. These allow authorities to diversify into asset
classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying
investments. These funds have no defined maturity date but are available for
withdrawal after a notice period. As a result their performance and continued
suitability in meeting the authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly
and decisions made on entering such funds will be made on an individual basis.

Risk assessment and credit ratings: Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded
so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:

¢ No new investments will be made
¢ Any existing investment that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and

e Full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other investments
with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible
downgrade so that it may fall below the approved rating criteria then only
investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made with that
organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not apply
to negative outlooks which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an
imminent change of rating.

Other information on the security of investments: The Council understands that credit
ratings are good but not perfect predictors of investment default. Full regard will
therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of the
organisations in which it invests including credit default swap prices, financial
statements, information on potential government support and reports in the quality
financial press. No investments will be made with an organisation if there are
substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may meet the credit rating
criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but, can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the
Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and
reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of
security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market
conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of
high credit quality are available to invest the authorities cash balances then the
surplus will be deposited with the UK Government via the Debt Management Office
or invested in treasury bills for example or with other local authorities. This will cause
a reduction in the level of investment income earned, but, will protect the principal
sum.

Page 182



Appendix 2

Specified Investments

Specified investments will be those that meet the criteria in the CLG Guidance, i.e.
the investment:

is sterling denominated;
- has a maximum maturity of one year;

- meets the “high credit quality” as determined by the Council or is made with
the UK government or is made with a local authority in England, Wales,
Scotland or Northern Ireland or a parish or community council; and

- The making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section
25(1)(d) in SI 2003 No 3146 (i.e. the investment is not loan capital or share
capital in a body corporate).

The Council defines ‘high credit quality’ organisations and securities as those having
a credit rating of BBB- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country with
a sovereign rating of AA+ or higher. For money market funds and other pooled funds
‘high credit quality is defined as those having a credit rating of A- or higher

Non-specified Investments

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed as
non-specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments denominated in
foreign currencies, nor any that are defined as capital expenditure by legislation,
such as company shares

Non-Specified Investment Limits

Cash Limit
Total Long Term Treasury Investments £450m
Total Investments without credit ratings or rated below A- with £70m
appropriate due diligence having been performed
Total Investments in foreign countries rated below AA+ £30m
Maximum total non-specified investments £550m

Investment Limits

The maximum that will be lent to any one organisation in the Approved Investment
Counter Party list (except the UK Government) is £20m.For other investments
approved by the Section 151 Officer the amount to be invested will be determined by
the Section 151 Officer, taking into account the relevant merits of the transaction
such as, for example, duration and risk following due diligence work undertaken. A
group of banks under the same ownership, a group of funds under the same
management, brokers nominee accounts, foreign countries and industry sectors will
all have limits placed on them as in the table below:

Page 183



Appendix 2

Cash Limit
Any single organisation, except the UK Central Government £20m each
UK Central Government unlimited
Any group of organisations under the same ownership £40m
Any group of pooled funds under the same management £50m
Any external Fund Manager £750m
Negotiable instruments held in a brokers nominee account £20m
Foreign countries (total per country) £30m
Registered Providers in total £30m
Building Societies in total (excluding overnight investments) £40m
Loans to small businesses £20m
Money Market Funds £40m
Investments approved by the Section 151 Officer Reviewed

for each

case

Liquidity Management

The Council maintains a cash flow spreadsheet that forecasts the Council’s cash
flows into the future. This is used to determine the maximum period for which funds
may be prudently committed. The forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with
receipts under estimated and payments over estimated to minimise the risk of the
Council having to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments.

Page 184



Appendix 2

THE MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STATEMENT
Introduction:

The rules for Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) were set out in the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003. These
rules have now been revised by the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008.

Authorities are required to submit to a meeting of their Council an annual statement
of their policy on making MRP.

Background:

Each year the Council borrows money in order to finance some of its capital
expenditure. The loans taken out for this purpose, unlike a mortgage which is repaid
in part each month, are fully repayable at a future point in time. The repayment date
is chosen to secure the best financial result for the Council.

The concept of Minimum Revenue Provision was introduced in 1989 to prescribe a
minimum amount which must be charged to the revenue account each year in order
to make provision to meet the cost of repaying that borrowing.

The detailed rules and formulae to be used in the more recent method of calculation
were laid down in the Regulations mentioned in the introduction section.

This system has now been radically revised and requires an annual statement to full
Council setting out the method the Council intends to adopt for the calculation of
MRP.

Considerations:

Under the old regulations Local Authorities were required to set aside each year,
from their revenue account an amount that, in simple terms equalled approximately
4% of the amount of capital expenditure financed by borrowing. Local Authorities
had no freedom to exercise any discretion over this requirement.

The amendment regulations introduce a simple duty for an authority each year to set
aside an amount of MRP which it considers to be ‘prudent’. The regulation does not
define a ‘prudent provision’ but the MRP guidance makes recommendations to
authorities on the interpretation of that term.

The MRP guidance document is a statutory document and authorities are obliged by
section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to such guidance. The
guidance aims to provide more flexibility and in particular for development schemes
it is possible to have an MRP “holiday” for assets or infrastructure under
construction.

In addition, it is accepted that where there is capital expenditure that will give rise to
a capital receipts, either through the disposal of the asset or loan repayments, then

Page 185



Appendix 2
there is no need to set aside MRP on an annual basis but the capital receipt or loan
repayments should be set aside on receipt for that purpose.

The operative date of the change was 31 March 2008, which means the new rules
have applied since the financial year 2007/08.

The Annual MRP Statement

As stated above, Local Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of
their policy on making MRP for submission to their full Council. This mirrors the
existing requirements to report to the Council on the Prudential borrowing limits and
Treasury Management strategy. The aim is to give elected Members the
opportunity to scrutinise the proposed use of the additional freedoms conferred
under the new arrangements. The statement must be made before the start of each
financial year.

The statement should indicate how it is proposed to discharge the duty to make
prudent MRP in the financial year in question for the borrowing that is to take place
in that financial year. If it is ever proposed to vary the terms of the original statement
during any year, a revised statement should be put to Council at that time.

The guidance includes specific examples of options for making a prudent provision.
The aim of this is to ensure that the provision to repay the borrowing is made over a
period that bears some relation to the useful life of the assets in question or where a
capital receipt will be received to repay the debt in part or in full.

Proposals
The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement for 2020/21:

¢ In accordance with the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 the Council’s policy for the
calculation of MRP in 2020/21 shall be that the Council will set aside an
amount each year which it deems to be prudent and appropriate, having
regard to statutory requirements and relevant guidance issued by DCLG; and

e The Council will also consider the use of capital receipts to pay down any
MRP incurred.

The policy will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 186



Agenda Iltem 16

12 February 2020 ITEM: 16
Cabinet

Housing Revenue Account - Business Plan and Budgets
2020/21

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Councillor Barry Johnson — Portfolio Holder for Housing

Accountable Assistant Directors: Carol Hinvest — Assistant Director for Housing,
Jonathan Wilson — Assistant Director for Finance

Accountable Directors: Roger Harris — Corporate Director of Adults, Housing and
Health, Interim Corporate Director of Children’s Services, Sean Clark — Corporate
Director of Finance, Governance and Property

This report is public

Executive Summary

This report sets out the base budget position for 2020/21 following the review and
update of the 30 year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan. The
Business Plan is a statutory requirement used to assess the ongoing financial
viability of the HRA and its ability to deliver the Council’s Housing priorities.

The Business Plan considers whether the revenue streams from all sources,
principally rents and service charges, are sufficient to finance anticipated
expenditure on housing stock (both revenue and capital), service delivery, debt
management and recharges.

From 2020/21 local authorities and registered providers have the ability to increase
social and affordable rents in line with the new rent standard. In brief, this uses the
formula of the September 2019 CPI rate of inflation (1.7 per cent) plus 1 per cent.
This equates to a maximum level of increase applicable to a dwelling of 2.7 per cent.
This provides the resources to meet the projected inflationary demands in order
maintain the current level of service, whilst allowing some additional funding for
service improvement.

Officers from the Corporate Finance department and the Housing service undertook
a series of consultations with tenants in October 2019 to explain the rent setting
process, changes in legislation and what a rent increase would mean financially for
the HRA. These sessions were attended by 113 people in total, and allowed tenants
to ask questions and voice any concerns that they had. Whilst the sessions were

Page 187



primarily aimed at explaining rent and service charges, it also allowed tenants to
raise specific issues around repairs and maintenance and service delivery.

A review of the housing services funded by the HRA has been undertaken. This has
included identification of essential works required to the existing HRA stock and a
detailed assessment of the demographic and inflationary costs in future years. This
assessment has been factored into the budget requirement set out in this report

The stock condition survey has informed a number of the budget requirements for
both the medium and long term. In addition, changes in legislation require the
Council to finance compliance works, most notably in relation to high rise tower
blocks. This is also included in the budget provision.

The transforming homes programme, which is intrinsically linked to the stock
condition survey, has identified significant investment is required annually across the
life of the 30 year Business Plan. Delivery of these works will ensure properties
reach and maintain a decent homes standard. Specific capital investment in certain
types of dwellings is also needed, namely non-traditional properties. This
encompasses internal and external features of residential units (general needs and
sheltered) as well as other assets such as communal hallways, parking areas, and
garages.

The Housing service is focussed on ensuring that the HRA remains financially viable,
and that the right priorities are set for capital expenditure to ensure residents have
safe and secure accommodation maintained to a good standard of repair.

The proposed changes to rents and service charges are essential to ensure the level
of investment identified in the business plan can be fulfilled and the HRA property is
provided to a standard that primarily meets the needs of residents, while also
delivering on the statutory responsibilities of the Council.

1. Recommendation(s):

1.1  That the changes included in the base budget for 2020/21 be agreed.

1.2 That an increase in domestic rent of 2.7%, in line with the 30-year HRA
business plan from 6 April 2020 be agreed.

1.3 That a 2.7% increase in service charges for 2020/21 be agreed.

1.4 That the Leaseholder charges for Homeownership services, detailed in
para 5.8 be agreed.

1.5 That the changes to garage rents detailed in para 3.11 be agreed.

1.6  That the approval process for specific acquisitions that affect the HRA,
detailed in para 4.5 be agreed.

Page 188



1.7

2.1

2.2

That Cabinet consider the recommendation made by the Housing
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, set out in section 7.

Introduction and Background

The proposed Housing Revenue Account budget for 2020/21 is summarised
below, and has been set in accordance with the revised 30 Year HRA
Business Plan. This takes into account the long term strategy and financial
viability of the service. The Business Plan, in its full detail sets out how the
Council will finance the delivery of services within HRA over the next 30
years.

Following the tenants consultation, and taking on board the feedback from
residents, funding has been identified and allocated for the priority areas
discussed which include additional works on door entry systems, a brand new
external and communal areas decorating programme, external refurbishment
of tower blocks and the continuation of the transforming homes programme.
This forms the basis of the proposed 2020/21 budget which can only be made
possible with an increase to rent at the recommended level of 2.7%.

Table 1: Provisional 2020/21 budget summary

2020/21

2019/20 .
i . i Additional .., 2020/21
. Revised Additional Inflationary External i New Build
Service . Repairs and )
Budget Income Pressures decorating . Properties
Maintenance Budget

£000's

Financing and Recharges 23,681 509 24,190
Housing Operations 10,886 325 11,211
Repairs and Maintenance 13,597 160 600 559 203 15,118
Development and Regeneration 178 12 190,
Rent and Income (48,342) (1,656) (712) (50,709)

Net Budget 0 (1,656) 497 600 559 0 0

2.3

3.1

Income raised through tenant’s rents and service charges is ring-fenced, and
cannot be used to fund expenditure outside of the housing revenue account.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

Rent and Service Charges

As detailed in the Housing O&S report on 1 October 2019, Central Government
has given Councils the ability to increase rents form 2020/21. This follows the
previous requirement for the Council to implement rent reductions in each of
the previous 4 years.

Page 189



3.2

3.3

3.4

For 2019/20, and the preceding three years, housing rents were subject to a
1% annual reduction. The financial impact of this on the previous HRA
business plan, after being adjusted for inflation, equated to a cumulative
reduction of 11% in the weekly rent charge. As a result of the rent reductions,
and taking into account inflation, tenants, on average have been paying
£10.74 per week less.

This is illustrated in the table below:

Table 2: Inflationary impact of rent reductions:

. . September Rent Reduction Average Rent Inflated
Financial . i X k Actual Inflated
CPI for Reduction CPI+1% including applying new ] rent
Year . i X A Average Reduction X
prevailing applied inflation standard reduction
% % % £ £ £
2019/20| Sep-18 2.40% -1%  3.40% 4.40% 97.77 87.03 10.74 11.0%
2018/19| Sep-17 3.00% -1%  4.00% 5.00% 96.73
2017/18| Sep-16 1.00% -1%  2.00% 3.00% 93.01
2016/17| Sep-15 -0.10% -1%  0.90% 1.90% 91.19
Average Rent 2015/16 (prior to rent reductions) 90.18

Since the report to the Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee in October
2019, the following updates are applicable:

e The proposed average increases in rent and service charges has
reduced from 3.2% to 2.7% following confirmation of the September
2019 CPI (1.7%).

e An extensive face to face and online consultation exercise has been
undertaken to engage with residents.

e The findings of the Phase 1 Grenfell Tower inquiry have been
published.

In order to finance the required level of investment, and taking on board
feedback from residents on the proposal and their views on service delivery
and priorities, it is recommended that the Council apply the full 2.7% rent
increase in 2020/21. Based on the overall average of the stock, this is shown
in the Table below:

Page 190




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Table 3: Proposed 2020/21 weekly rents

2019.20 2019.20 2020.21 2020.21 2020.21
Proposed

Number of Actual Service Proposed Service Actual Rent

properties | Bedrooms Rent Charge Rent Charge Increase %
244 Studio 60.47 21.00 62.09 21.57 2.69%
2791 1 73.69 9.76 75.68 10.03 2.70%
2205 2 80.47 17.00 82.62 17.45 2.68%
4211 3 100.54 2.39 103.25 245 2.70%
223 4 113.00 0.26 116.04 0.27 2.69%
7 5 113.22 0.00 116.28 0.00 2.70%
3 >5 124.20 0.00 127.43 0.00 2.60%
9,684 | OVERALL 87.52 8.26 89.88 8.48 2.69%

Tenants Consultation

The overarching response from tenants, as detailed in the executive
summary, was that they appreciate the need to continue with, and improve
service delivery, and that the HRA needs to increase rents in order to
generate the resources required to finance the plans of the service. One key
area of clarification required at the meetings was an explanation of how Local
Authority funding works, and in particular, the distinction between the HRA
and the General Fund. Tenants were assured that any increase in rent
charges would result in additional resources that are ring-fenced to the HRA
which cannot be spent on wider Council activities and must provide a direct
benefit to housing tenants.

No significant concerns were raised towards an increase to the rent, and the
underlying message that the Council can only deliver improved services with
additional resources resonated well with the participants in these discussions.

Clarification was also provided to explain a 2.7% rent increase would still
result in rent being significantly lower than the Local Housing Allowance (or
upper limit for housing benefit and universal credit).

Officers from the Council articulated where the additional funding would be
spent with the key focus being the medium term continuation of the
transforming homes programme and further improvements to housing stock
through additional funding of repairs and maintenance

The weekly rent charge, including service charges applied to new build

properties has been capped at the Local Housing Allowance level for the
area. This will apply to the new properties at the Tops Club site in Grays, and

Page 191



3.10

3.11

3.12

Claudian Way in Chadwell that will form part of the housing stock in the near
future.

Adjustments to reflect spending in current financial year

The HRA has seen an increase in demand for repairs and maintenance
during the current financial year. Specifically these additional works pertain to
electrical maintenance testing, as well as minor repairs. The 2020/21 budget
will be increased to reflect the additional cost pressures to address the
demand, and allow the continuation of these works.

Garage Rents

The current weekly charges for garage rents are £10 per week for council
tenants and £12 per week for non-Council tenants. It is recommended that
these charges are increased to £10.50 for a Council tenant, and £15.00 per
week for a non-Council tenant in 2020/21. This will bring the up to a level in
line with inflation.

Capital programme and priorities

The medium term (next 5 years) findings of the HRA business plan have
highlighted a need to significantly increase the capital investment in existing
the stock. The key areas of focus are:

Continuation of the transforming homes programme

Fire safety works

Tower block refurbishment

Non-traditional property refurbishment

Large scale replacements of maintained items i.e. boilers, door entry and
water mains

Refurbishment of lifts

e Additional resources to manage the maintenance and safety of the stock

3.13 The medium term financial implication of these works are set out in the table
below:

Page 192



Table 4: HRA Business Plan Capital Investment Requirements

Year/fm
Programme

2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25
Transforming Homes 11.84 10.30 10.30 10.30 10.30
Major Adaptations 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15
Sheltered Improvement Project 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fire Safety Works 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Tower Block Refurbishment 6.18 14.42 2.58 0.00 0.00
Non-Traditional Refurb 0.20 1.72 2.34 3.03 0.00
Garages 0.20 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Gas Boiler Installs 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60
Lifts 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14
Door Entry Installations 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35
Water Mains 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16
Staffing Costs Capital Programme 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.16
Capital financing requirement 21.48 29.50 18.28 16.39 13.36
Financing of Capital Programme
Revenue Contribution to Capital (10.54) (10.54) (10.54) (10.54) (10.54)
Borrowing requirement (10.94) (18.96) (7.74) (5.85) (2.82)
Revenue Capital financing cost 0.33 0.57 0.23 0.18 0.08
Cumulative budget requirement 0.33 0.90 1.13 131 1.39

3.14 Through the use of prudential borrowing and revenue contributions to Capital,
the HRA is able to finance the cost of the proposed five year capital
programme. This will ensure that the Council is able meet the cost of existing
statutory compliance works, continue with the transforming homes
programme as well as additional recommendations that have been made
following the Grenfell tragedy.

3.15 Itis essential that these works are completed within the medium term, and the
prudential borrowing costs will be funded from additional income generated
though the rent increase. This will also ensure that the maximum number of
tenants receive a tangible benefit from the rent increase proposed.
Furthermore, additional investment into the stock will have a financial benefit
by reducing the level of voids, and re-let times and increase long term
sustainability.

4 HRA New Build — Continuing to Build

4.1  The housing developments at Tops Club and Claudian Way are now nearing
completion, and will add additional capacity to the housing stock in the form of

Page 193



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

new, quality dwellings. In 2021/22, Calcutta Road will continue to be built out,
thus completing the first phase of the HRA new build programme.

The HRA has a clear ambition to deliver new, quality social housing. Through
a combination of prudential borrowing and the application of Right to Buy one
for one capital receipts, delivery of new housing is financially viable and
achievable while also capping rents at an upper limit equal to the Local
Housing allowance. Further development sites continue to be identified, and
will come forward to Cabinet in due course.

One for One Right to Buy Receipts

The Council currently has unallocated receipts in the region of £10m. Under
current Central Government legislation, these receipts remain time limited and
must be return, with a compound interest of 4% per annum. The proposal to
utilise the receipts which are approaching their expiration period in March
2020, was through a programme of strategic property acquisition comprising
of the following:

Purchase of properties for the Head Start Housing Programme in conjunction
with Children’s services and endorsed in the recent OFSTED inspection

Purchase of 5 and 6 bedroom properties to combat the overcrowding
problems some families are experiencing with their current housing allocation

This programme is fully funded through a combination of prudential borrowing,
the capital allocation within the General Fund (£1m agreed within the 2019/20
Capital programme for Head start Housing) and the use of one for one
receipts, which will fund 30% of all expenditure

In light of the decision taken by General Service Committee and full Council to
change the constitution with regards to property acquisitions and disposals
over £0.200m, Cabinet are asked to agree a process for specific acquisitions
that affect the HRA. This will include the acquisition of properties where the
HRA is buying back properties that were previously sold under right to buy,
and open market properties where 30% of the cost can be offset by utilising
one for one right to buy receipts. This recommendation will also include
properties to be used as part of the Head start housing programme where a
quick decision is required in order to complete the purchase within a short
time frame. Cabinet will be asked to delegate these decision to the Corporate
Director in consultation with the Portfolio holder. This will ensure that the
properties can be acquired speedily (subject to appropriate due diligence),
and avoid the need to return the right to buy capital receipts, whilst at the
same time ensuring there is appropriate member oversight.

HRA Medium Term Financial Strategy

Page 194



5.1

5.2

5.3

The table below sets out the main HRA budget medium term financial strategy
from the HRA Business Plan, 2020/21 to 2024/15. This shows the forecast
incremental changes to the budget for the duration of the next five years.

. 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Narrative
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1. Local Funding ' '
Rents and Service Charges for existing stock | (1,427) (1,358) (1,399) (1,440) (1,481)
New Build rents and service charges (712) (250) 0 : 0 0
Other Income (15) (15) (15) V(19 (15)
(2,154): (1,623) (1,414): (1,455) (1,496)
Net Additional (Reduction) in resources (2,154) (1,623) (1,414) (1,455) (1,496)
2. Inflation and other increases
Housing Operations 341 351 360 370 380
Repairs and Maintenance Contractors 156 160 164 169 173
497 510 524 538 553
3. Treasury
Interest Costs 1,584 0 0 0 0
Treasury and Capital Financing 1,584 0 0 0 0
4. Growth
Ex terior Decorating 600 200 200 200 200
Repairs and Maintence 559 250 250 250 250
New Build contingency 203 0 0 0 0
1,361 450 450 450 450
5. Capital Financing Adjustment (1,288) 0 0 0 0
6. Future Service Investment 0 663 440 467 493
(Surplus) I Deficit 0 0 0 0 0

Reserves

The opening level of useable reserve for 2019/20 are detailed in the table
below. Funding within the development is earmark against the cost of the
HRA new building programme, and the housing zones funding supported the
development of identified sites.

The HRA is required to maintain a level of balances, which currently amount
to £2.175m. This balance will be maintained in the current financial year, and
will be assessed on a annual basis to ensure that remains sufficient.

Page

195




5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.

6.1

HRA Reserves 28,?3 II;(?
Development Reserve (HRA) (5.785)
Balances (HRA) (2.175)
Housing Zones Funding (HRA) (1.,274)

Leaseholder charges — Homeownership Services

The Council has almost 1,000 leaseholders, of these 337 do not reside at
their property. Additionally, 185 do not reside within the Borough.

In addition to the day to day services provided to manage and administer
these properties, the Homeownership team are asked to provide a number of
services to the Council’s leaseholders and their legal representatives. This
arises when the leaseholders wish to sell on their properties, make changes to
their lease arrangements or require additional copies of previously provided

information.

Housing are seeing increased requests for these services. In addition to this
all local authority leases are now falling below 80 year life spans and are
therefore requiring extensions in order for the properties to remain mortgage
able. The Homeownership service have processed the first of these this year
and we are likely to see many more requests for these at the point of sale in

future.

It is normal practice for local authorities to make charges for these additional
services and to recover the costs of any professional fees required.

It is proposed that the following charges are applied. The charges proposed
are comparable to other boroughs and housing organisations.

Housing Management Pack £ 210
Housing - Management Pack follow up questions £ 45
Lease Extension - valuation and administration £1,200
Retrospective landlord consent - Homeownership fee £ 120
Retrospective landlord consent - Surveyors fee £ 120
Notice of Assignment - Homeownership fee £ 17

Reasons for Recommendation

The report sets out the 2020/21 HRA budget implications following the update
of the HRA business plan. The proposals put forward have been calculated
and assessed in terms of affordability. It is a legal and operational
requirement that a balanced budget is set for the HRA.

Consultation

Page 196



7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

The report was presented to the Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
on 14 January 2020. The Committee commented on the budget assumptions
made within the report, the impact of the rent increase on the business plan
and the ability to deliver the services and level of Capital investment required.
The Committee concluded that they could not endorse the recommendation of
a 2.7% rent increase, and a 2.7% increase in service charges (to reflect the
cost of delivering the service to maintain cost recovery), and made a
recommendation to propose to Cabinet a freeze on both of the increases.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

The management and operation of the HRA strives to support vulnerable
residents. The 30 year business plan sets out to ensure there is value for
money within the Housing Service. The service is committed to the delivery of
decent homes for its tenants, and compliance with legislation.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Mike Jones
Strategic Lead Corporate Finance

Financial implications are set out in the body of the report.
Legal

Implications verified by: Martin Hall
Housing Solicitor

Section 76 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 imposes a duty on
local housing authorities to prevent debit balances arising in their Housing
Revenue Account (“the HRA”). The HRA is a record of revenue expenditure
and income in relation to an authority’s own housing stock.

The principal statutory provision governing the fixing of rent for Council
property is contained in section 24 of the Housing Act 1985, which provides
that authorities may “make such reasonable charges...as they may
determine.” Further, it requires the local authority, from time to time, to review
rents and other charges and make such changes, as circumstances may
require.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Natalie Smith

Page 197



Community Development and Equalities
Manager

The Councils Housing Revenue Account works to reflect the Council’s policy
in relation to the provision of social housing with particular regard to the use of
its own stock. In addition to the provision of general housing, it incorporates a
number of budgetary provisions aimed at providing assistance to
disadvantaged groups. This included adaptations to the stock for residents
with disabilities.

10. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location on
the Council’'s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected by

copyright):
None
11. Appendices to the report

None

Report Author:

Mike Jones
Strategic Lead
Corporate Finance

Page 198



Agenda Iltem 17

12 February 2020 ITEM: 17
Decision: 110524

Cabinet

Housing Development Options List

Wards and communities affected: Key Decision:
All Key

Report of: Councillor Barry Johnson, Portfolio Holder for Housing

Accountable Assistant Director: David Moore, Interim Assistant Director of Place
Delivery

Accountable Director: Andy Millard, Director of Place

This report is Public

Executive Summary

On 15 January 2020, Cabinet agreed a process and criteria by which Council owned
sites are selected for redevelopment for residential purposes. This report now follows
the criteria established by Cabinet and sets out a list of site options that are
recommended to be considered for residential development by the Council (through
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)) or by the Council’s wholly owned company,
Thurrock Regeneration Limited (TRL).

The list of site options will enable officers to have greater focus and work more
efficiently towards delivering the housing development targets as time will be spent
on sites that are agreed, rather than reacting and working on sites that may be
abortive.

The report does not seek approval for individual housing development schemes, nor
for housing development contracts to be tendered. Its purpose, in accordance with
the procedure agreed by Cabinet in January, is to identify a list of potential housing
development site options that have been assessed against the initial criteria agreed
by Cabinet. The list of site options will then be explored further to establish their
suitability for development, subject to the appropriate levels of engagement and
consultation with stakeholders and communities.

1. Recommendation
1.1 Cabinet approve the list of housing development site options to be

taken forward for further detailed work, involving engagement with
stakeholders and communities.

Page 199



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2.

Introduction and Background

The emerging Local Plan refers to the need for up to 32,000 new homes in
Thurrock during the next Local Plan period to 2038.

As a contribution to this target, the Council has agreed its own ambitious
targets for house-building, both through the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
and through Thurrock Regeneration Limited (TRL). These targets are to
build:

e up to 500 affordable HRA homes between 2019 to 2029
e 1,000 homes for sale and rent by TRL by 2023

This follows the publication of the South Essex Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (May 2017) which objectively assessed the need for housing in
Thurrock between 2014 and 2037 as being between 1,074-1,381 new
dwellings per annum, within which the affordable housing element is
estimated at 472 dwellings per annum.

On 18 June 2019, the Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorsed
the delivery of a New Homes Delivery Programme through the HRA for the
next 5 to 10 years and resolved to receive regular updates to assist in its
successful delivery.

Further reports to Housing Overview and Scrutiny and Cabinet on 29 October
2019 and 15 January 2020 respectively established the process and criteria
by which sites are to be identified as potential housing development sites.

The aim of the list of site options is to provide greater transparency on the
sites being considered for potential housing development, to address the
Council’'s growth aspirations and Housing Development targets.

The list of development site options will also provide a focus for Housing
Development activity in the Council and through TRL, leading to greater
efficiencies and improved delivery.

Issues, Options and Analysis of Options
The Options List

This report identifies twenty Council-owned sites that have been through the
newly established process and criteria and have been identified as potentially
being suitable for residential development by the HRA or TRL. The list of site
options is summarised in Appendix A, with more detailed site by site
information contained in Appendix B.

In total, the site options on the list could deliver up to 926 new homes against

the Council’s and TRL’s targets, although it should be emphasised that these
figures are presently indicative. It is expected that there will be a mix of unit

Page 200



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

types, tenures and sizes that are appropriate for each site and which also
meet (at a programme level) the Council’s cross-tenure housing needs.

It should be noted that the recommended approval of the Housing
Development Options List does not constitute any form of planning
endorsement, nor does this report create authority for schemes to proceed or
construction contracts to be tendered. The sites on the list will be brought
forward in the normal way, including consultation with stakeholders and
communities. Regular progress and update reports will be brought to the
Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee, on the overall progress of the
housing development programme, together with any additional schemes or
amendments to the existing programme.

In addition, if site options are identified as being suitable for development by
TRL, then further approvals will be needed from TRL’s Board once the site
has been deemed viable. The terms of any land transfer will require separate
Cabinet approval.

Next Steps

Following agreement of sites on the options list, they will be taken forward for
further development work and detailed engagement with local communities, in
a process that will be supported by the Council’s internal Community
Development and Equalities Team, with input from other agencies as
required. This is to ensure that any new development meet the Council’s
standards and that stakeholders and communities are fully engaged in the
process.

Those sites considered suitable to progress to the development stage will
then be subject to final approvals at Cabinet (tender approvals, award of
contracts etc.) and Planning Committee as set out above.

Updates and Amendments

The list of potential sites for development will from time to time require
amendment and updating as new sites become available in line with the
established criteria. The housing development programme will need to be
dynamic and forward moving and it is recommended that programme updates
should be brought to Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a regular
basis to update Members on progress.

Any significant changes to the sites on the agreed list (such as changes to the
“redline” boundary if neighbouring sites are identified that could sensibly be
added to an agreed scheme) would be made in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder and reported back regularly to Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Reasons for Recommendation

Page 201



4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

The recommendation is informed by the recently agreed Housing Delivery
process, which was put into place in order to ensure that the Council can
achieve its Housing Delivery targets in an open and transparent manner and
in close liaison with local communities and can then focus on the effective
delivery of schemes.

Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

These site options are to be considered by Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 11" February 2020 and, due to the need to publish this Cabinet
paper prior to that meeting, comments from the Housing and Scrutiny
Committee will be reported verbally to Cabinet.

Housing Overview and Scrutiny committee has also previously considered the
New Homes Delivery Programme on 18™ June 2019 and the Housing
Development Process on 29" October 2019.

Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community
impact

The proposed list of housing development site options aligns closely with the
Council’s Vision and Priorities adopted in 2018. In particular it resonates with
the “Place” theme which focuses on houses, places and environments in
which residents can take pride.

Implications
Financial

Implications verified by: Jonathan Wilson
Assistant Director, Finance

Approval of the process will enable the Council and TRL to move forward with
delivering a house programme which will contribute to the wider objectives of
the Council and support the Council’s MTFS (where schemes are developed
through TRL).

Costs associated with the initial feasibility assessment of schemes will need to
be considered depending on the nature of the scheme and whether it is
subsequently developed by the HRA or TRL.

The proposal is also likely to reduce the level of capital receipts available to
the Council to fund other priorities.

Legal

Page 202



7.3

7.4

Implications verified by: Courage Emovon

Acting Strategic Lead / Deputy Head of Legal
Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer

This report sets out the list of potential site options for development on
Council owned sites for residential development via the Housing Revenue
Account or for development by Thurrock Regeneration Limited (a Council
wholly owned company). Legal Services will provide all legal advice (if any)
arising from this report, as and when required by the Council.

Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by: Becky Lee

Team Manager — Community Development and
Equalities

The service has completed a Community Equality Impact Assessment (CEIA)
in line with Equality Act 2010 requirements and to gather an understanding of
the impact on protected groups through the implementation of the process set
out in this report. The findings from the CEIA established that the implications
for each protected group is currently considered neutral. Individual CEIAs will
sit alongside development proposals with information gathered in consultation
with communities determining potential impacts and mitigation where
identified for individuals or groups with protected characteristics. This will
ensure more detailed consideration of the impacts of particular developments
than is possible within the scope of the overarching CEIA and process set out
in this report.

Other implications (where significant) — i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability,
Crime and Disorder)

None

Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected

by copyright):
e Cabinet report 15 Jan 2020 (Housing Development Process)
Appendices to the report

e Appendix A — The list of proposed residential development sites
e Appendix B — Individual site infographics

Page 203



Report Author:

Keith Andrews
Housing Development Manager
Place Delivery

Page 204



APPENDIX A - HOUSING DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS LIST

Potential
# SCHEME NAME Size (ha) Size (ac) [Capacity Ward Comment
Library re-provided. Future of adjoining hall remains
1 under discussion but could be incorporated if released for
Aveley Library/Hall/Car Park 0.26 0.64 9 Aveley & Uplands development.
2 Existing grassed area identified by 3R's review and does
Garron Lane/Humber Ave 0.78 1.93 26 Belhus not provide high quality amenity space
3 Existing grassed area identified does not provide high
Enborne Green 0.35 0.87 11 South Ockendon quality amenity space
4 Existing grassed area identified does not provide high
Derry Avenue 0.40 0.99 14 South Ockendon quality amenity space
Open space identified as "low" quality & surplus to
5 requirements. Education support release of former Culver
Culver Centre & Field 4.42 10.92 195 Belhus Centre as surplus.
6 45 self-contained dwellings as part of a wider residential
Whiteacre 1.24 3.06 45 Belhus care facility
7 Vacant and dilapidated former pub. Potential wider site
Prince of Wales Public House 0.46 1.14 10 South Ockendon with adjoining open space
8 Existing grassed area identified does not provide high
Callan Grove 0.51 1.26 43 Belhus quality amenity space
9
Broxburn Drive 0.81 2.00 60 Belhus Site includes a high number of vacant garages and infill
10 Locations largely comprised of underused and cleared
Crammervill Street/Fleethall Grove 0.50 1.24 17 Stifford Clays HRA garage sites.
11 Council car park. Parking survey identifies surplus town
Darnley & Crown Road 0.56 1.38 920 Grays Riverside centre parking
12 Housing redevelopmemt replacing office space to be
CO1(Civic Offices). 0.18 0.44 82 Grays Riverside relocated under the civic extension project
13 Council car park. Parking survey identifies surplus town
Argent Street 0.21 0.52 32 Grays Riverside centre parking
14 Council car park. Parking survey identifies surplus town
Thames Road 0.40 1.00 89 Grays Riverside centre parking
15 Potential development with adjoining private sector led
Manor Way 0.82 2.03 60 Grays Thurrock development.
16 Cleared site adjoining scout hall. Infographic red line
includes part of land used as car parking for Adult
Bridge Road (East Side) 0.54 1.33 20 Grays Thurrock Education Centre if not required for that purpose.
17
13 Loewen Road 0.12 0.30 5 Chadwell St Mary Vacant HRA dwelling in poor condition in large plot
18
Vigerons Way 0.17 0.42 8 Chadwell St Mary Underused and largely vacant HRA garage site
19 Redevelopment and replacement of existing Pre-cast
Ridgewell Road 1.50 3.71 55 Orsett dwellings HRA and privately owned dwellings.
20 Stanford East &
Springhouse Road 1.78 4.40 55 Corringham Town | Open space. Identified for redevelopment by 3R's review

Page 205




This page is intentionally left blank



/0¢ abed

Appendix B

Housing Development Options List - Infographics
Cabinet

12 February 2020



@ thurrock.gov.uk

(> thurrock.gov.uk

Aveley Library / Hall / Car Park, Aveley

Address Aveley Library, Purfleet Road, South Ockendon, RM15 4D)J
Ward Aveley & Uplands

Site Area 0.26 Hectares / 0.64 Acres

Tenure Freehold

Existing Use Vacant Site (Brownfield)

Local Plan Designation Undesignated

Estimated Site Capacity 9 Units
[ JE T I




Q} thurrock.gov.uk

(b thurrock.gov.uk Garron Lane ! Avene, South O i
% Address Garron Lane/Humber Ave, South Ockendon RM15 5JQ
— Ward Belhus
Site Area 0.78 Hectares / 1.93 Acres
| Tenure Freehold
| Existing Use Amenity Green
| Local Plan Designation Existing Open space
I Estimated Site Capacity Houses: Total: 26 Units

e

_,

%Hﬂ

0 10 20 40 60 80 100
— — — 1 Metres




Qj thurrock.gov.uk

(b thurrock.gov.uk

Enbome Green, South Ockendon

>

Address Enborne Green, South Ockendon, RM15 5EL
Ward South Ockendon

Site Area 0.35 Hectares / 0.87 Acres

Tenure Freehold

Existing Use Amenity Green

Local Plan Designation Undesignated

Estimated Sitg Capacity Houses: To'@l; 11 U'nits

o .




@; thurrock.gov.uk

(b thurrock.gov.uk

Derry Avenue, South Ockendon

& Lo 2 wgrt ane dasmsans Qs 3078 Ontrar ce Davey $008

Scwie 1,280

Address

Ward

Site Area

Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

Derry Avenue, South Ockendon RM15 5DZ
South Ockendon

0.4 Hectares / 0.988 Acres

Freehold

Amenity Green

Undesignated

Houses: Total 14 Units




Q) thurrock.gov.uk

( thurrock.gov.uk

Culver Centre & Field, South Ockendon

Address
Ward

Site Area
Tenure
Existing Use
Classification

Estimated Site Capacity

Culver Centre, South Ockendon, RM15 5RR
Belhus

4.42 Hectares / 10.92 Acres

Freehold

Vacant Brownfield & Open Space

Part Existing Open Space& Part Undesignated
(Mix of Houses/Apartments) Total: 195 Units



@ thurrock.gov.uk
{» thurrock.gov.uk Whiteacre, South Ockendon i
(= ——_—— = N
§ \_ 3;1..1— ‘ |-|-| :i__'_- S % I:'— ﬂl
U 0o

715 | wo21f |

AN

0 G 1y e 4 S I 2078 Ot Dy T

%

Address
Ward
Site Area
Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

Whiteacre, South Ockendon
Belhus

1.24 Hectares / 3.06 Acres
Freehold

Vacant site (Brownfield) — Cabinet approval exists for
redevelopment for scheme providing residential and
nursing care

Undesignated

A new residential care facility will provide social care and
nursing care in a specialised setting of 45 self-contained
dwellings, and 30 ensuite bedrooms, with associated care
facilities (lounges, restaurant, treatment rooms, laundry etc).

L b AR o



@j thurrock.gov.uk

xn'AoS'xoounLn 9,

Address

Ward

Site Area

Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

@

Prince of Wales, South Ockendon RM15 6PA
South Ockendon

0.46 Hectares / 0.14 Acres

Freehold

Vacant site (Brownfield)

Undesignated

Apartments: 10 Units




{3 thurrock.gov.uk @

";}) thurrOCk.gov-UK Sk ‘ __

Address Callan Grove, South Ockendon RM15 5PW
Ward Belhus

Site Area 0.51 Hectares / 1.26 Acres

Tenure Freehold

Existing Use Open Space

Local Plan Designation Existing Open space

Estimated Site Capacity Apartments: 43 Units




@3 thurrock.gov.uk

South Ockendon RM15 5P)

Broxburn Drive,

Address

Belhus

Ward

0.81 Hectares / 2.00 Acres

Site Area

Freehold

Tenure

Vacant garages and greensward

Existing Use

Undesignated

Local Plan Designation

Apartments: 60 Units

Estimated Site Capacity

Drive, South Ock

(» thurrock.gov.uk

K AVEN

AUICK TEN -
rAMBmEN L

[ -
et ,-...emﬂ—.w—=—=_

FRELS
111

2
AR

= ':: ': ;:" “
F AN/ A I

0 20 40 80
I T— —

A M NN A NN T L




Qj thurrock.gov.uk @

N

Crammavill Street, Stifford Clays

Address Crammaville Street, & Fleethall Grove, Stifford Clays
Ward Stifford Clays

Site Area 0.50 Hectares / 1.24 Acres (combined)

Tenure Freehold

Existing Use Existing and Cleared Garage site

Local Plan Designation Undesignated

Estimated Site Capacity Houses: 17 Units in total

100

Metres
) T W 1 W B i -~ I
=23




{1 thurrock.gov.uk @3

LS Nl oo # MNemessiest  Darley & Crown Road, Grays |
7] ‘ ) \ JHHEn 7~ e e

=3 /:} SAEHCE ROAD =5 f’”/ﬂﬁwﬁ?ﬂ ﬂ Address Darnley Road, Grays RM17 6QS
st e TR sa@l T | . 1 || X X
i _'-.‘_‘ ’ Lx}hﬂfﬁ }J'th |. A_%‘Hﬁ'.] J |l Tﬁlnb%j H ! Ward Grays Riverside
/ | — [ T
jl» M1/ '. ll U}d" LLLIR_U{.M lj_EJT-lLU-_—J:““'I_’_@‘% i Site Area 0.56 Hectares / 1.38 Acres
F| — e il g =11 [
5 } | T] “ﬂ l i : | '.WUR_':MIL-‘J,:—% Ti:jaﬁ Tenure Freehold
CarFant | 3| 1 E \! — —1 "!|
ﬂ - | . . i |11 IR = ]”. Existing Use Surface Car Park
CE = " i W' 'H —= - .
== WJP]: j s 5—4'\ Local Plan Designation Undesignated
v i ,_14_. {
- ; ‘ _“Eﬁ\‘ Estimated Site Capacity Apartments: 90 Units
;B_ i E—“:%ET%E e
——1
(Q_meiom Y 1
D : — E{_J
Pomm ‘E\ ?_ EA j:j
e i g C o
= s
=<7 I T\ =TT
- - — i

— I I
© Crown copyright and Gatabase rights 2020 Ordnance Suvey 100025457




Q) thurrock.gov.uk

{» thurrock.gov.uk CO1 (Civic Offices), Grays Riverside

Sauth Ml

Address
Ward

Site Area

Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

@

CO1 Civic Offices, Grays Riverside RM17 6SL

Grays Riverside

0.18 Hectares/ 0.45 Acres
Freehold

Offices

Undesignated
Apartments: 82 Units




Qj thurrock.gov.uk @D

(. thurrock.gov.

Argent Street, Grays

Address Argent Street, Grays Riverside, RM17 6NZ
Ward Grays Riverside

Site Area 0.21 Hectares / 0.52 Acres

Tenure Freehold

Existing Use Car Park

Local Plan Designation Undesignated

Estimated Site Capacity Apartments: 32 Units




@ thurrock.gov.uk

(b thurrock.gov.uk

Thames Road, Grays

T
7 1058
;
i

) T
281 Trr——

0 10 20 40

60 80

€ Crmen 5 0u Y ane mtane RgPER 2378 s ca Savey 10T

%

Address

Ward

Site Area

Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

Thames Road, Grays RM17 6JT
Grays Riverside

0.40 Hectares / 1.00 Acres
Freehold

Car Park

Existing Open Space

Apartments: 89 Units



@ thurrock.gov.uk @
T FHTTTR (R \“ 3 g - .
=ssss sis ol r-'r'] e

Address Land adjacent Manor Way, Grays
Ward Grays Thurrock

Site Area 0.82 hectares/ 2.03 acres

Tenure Freehold

Existing Use Open Space

Local Plan Designation Green Belt/Additional Open Space
Estimated Site Capacity Total: 60 Units

v 3 T

- LS

ul.

D




Q; thurrock.gov.uk @3
Alr ——— DTDJL E;r@u%q
.

-

i Address Bridge Road, Grays, Thurrock RM17 6RS

T Ward Grays Thurrock

_—1 T 1 | ]
Site Area 0.54 Hectares / 1.33 Acres
4 Bfff Tenure Freehold
w Existing Use Vacant Site (Brownfield)
JHE Local Plan Designation Undesignated

Estimated Site Capacity Total: 20 Units




@ thurrock.gov.uk

13 Loewen Road, Chadwell St Mary

frrzzafFem==d,
3 s

(> thurrock.gov.uk
lﬁ’.’.ﬁ:'_ﬁ-—‘/{ """ ."-\
Rl Weather Games Plion
Sports Court
o -
(O
D
N
N
D
0 10 20 40 60 80 100I
Metres

Address

Ward

Site Area

Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

13 Loewen Road, Chadwell St Mary RM16 4XP
Chadwell St Mary

0.12 Hectares / 0.30 Acres

Freehold

Vacant dwelling

Undesignated

Houses: 5 Units




@ thurrock.gov.uk

Vigerons Way, Chadwell St Mary RM16 4LX

Address

Chadwell St Mary

Ward

0.17 Hectares / 0.42 Acres

Site Area

Freehold

Tenure

Former Garage Site

Existing Use

Undesignated
Houses: 8 Units

Local Plan Designation
Estimated Site Capacity

Vigerons Way, Chadwell St Mary

(> thurrock.gov.uk

[ a.l.w

| LY N I N N N A N N




~

{

77 thurrock.gov.uk

K

Ridgwell Avenue, Orsett, RM16 3HR

1.50 Hectares /3.71 Acres
Occupied HRA/Private dwellings

Orsett
Freehold

Address
Ward

Site Area
Tenure
Existing Use

Undesignated (outside of Conservation area)

Local Plan Designation

Houses: 55 Units

Estimated Site Capacity

(» thurrock.gov.uk

Ridgwell Avenue, Orsett

\—

\ A=t
I g =

emn s

1
€ Come 2 ppege s s nghea 335 Crnan ca Lvey DT




@j thurrock.gov.uk

(. thurrock.gov.uk

€ Cmoem =0yt 4 dataemn g 338 Srrurca Gavey 05T

Address
Ward

Site Area

Tenure

Existing Use

Local Plan Designation

Estimated Site Capacity

Springhouse Road, Stanford-le-Hope
Stanford East & Corringham Town
1.78 Hectares /4.40 Acres

Freehold

Open Space

Existing Open Space

Houses and Apartments: 55 Units




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	10 Incorporation of South East Local Enterprise Partnership
	Incorporation of South East Local Enterprise Partnership - Appendix 1
	Incorporation of South East Local Enterprise Partnership - Appendix 2
	Incorporation of South East Local Enterprise Partnership - Appendix 3

	11 Procurement of Transport and Highway Contracts
	12 A13 East Facing Access Scheme Update (Decision: 110523)
	A13 East Facing Access Scheme Update - Appendix A
	A13 East Facing Access Scheme Update - Appendix B
	A13 East Facing Access Scheme Update - Appendix C

	13 Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21
	Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21 - Appendix 2
	Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21 - Appendix 3
	Fees and Charges Pricing Strategy 2020/21 - Appendix 4

	14 Draft 2020/21 Budget Proposals & Medium Term Financial Strategy Update
	15 Capital Strategy 2020/21
	Capital Strategy 2020/21 - Appendix 1
	Capital Strategy 2020/21 - Annex 1

	16 Housing Revenue Account - Business Plan and Budgets 2020/21
	17 Housing Development Options List (Decision: 110524)
	Housing Development Options List - Appendix A
	Housing Development Options List - Appendix B


